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CORPORATE PROFILE

AR

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its
consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group”), is the world’s largest travel
luggage company, with a heritage dating back more than 100 years.
The Groupis principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing
and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor
and casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective cases for
personal electronic devices throughout the world, primarily under
the Samsonite®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®,
Gregory®, Speck® and Lipault® brand names as well as other owned
and licensed brand names. The Group’s core brand, Samsonite, is
one of the most well-known travel luggage brands in the world.

FEBEBRERAIAA(AAF] EEH
HEEMBEARBARAIAEE]) B2
BANKEBETZHEAR  HEEBEI100FKA
BEL - AEBEIEUIHFZE® American
Tourister®~ Hartmann® ~ High Sierra® »
Gregory® ~ Speck® R Lipault® BiEU R EMEE
REFRENDE  NERETERBRE - ®/iE -
RBROETER BHEEREME  FIHMK
HKEE - RERFUARBASFREBEERE
R REENZL RN EEREHEE BN
BIRMEmEZ—

Samsonite International S.A.’s Strategy
MEEEFERA AR I

Samsonite International S.A. (the "Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”] aims to increase shareholder value through sustainable
revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow generation. In order to achieve
this objective, the Group has adopted the following principal strategies:

MEBBEBEERAR(ARA]  EREGEHEBER
A ARE D EEEENHERERANIER
NRELERRERENETBIREE - BESL
B NEBEDRAN T 250

Continue to develop the Company into a well-
diversified multi-brand, multi-category and multi-

channel luggage, bag and accessories business. in each category.

RESANRBRRABEZRIE  ZERBRIRSHH

RENZTTFHERMDRE - ZHERM -

Tactfully deploy multiple brands to operate at wider
price points and broader consumer demographics

REERBROYHEZ EAREMNRE  BEE

Continue to invest in the Group's core
brands with sustained R&D spending

Increase the proportion of sales from
the Group’s retail channel by growing

e-commerce sales and through targeted
expansion of its retail presence.

BB E TR BN EE RN
BRATEEY  BNASETEREBN
HERMLE -

to produce exciting and innovative new
products as well as new materials,

supported by effective marketing spend
to drive awareness among consumers.

EEREAREER LM - BREHER
FAER - FBARS| DR RIER R
Wk RREREREHFAX - IR M
MIEHEE ZHNANEE -

Execute on market opportunities for
newly acquired brands to further
diversify the Group’s product
offering into non-travel categories.

ERMKERENTISHE - A%
BMEMAAEIFREERERTE
S niia
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR RE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015,
THE GROUP’S:

BZE2015F12A3MHLFE -
AEEH :

Net sales increased to a record level of US$2,432.5 million, reflecting an

SHEFERILE 2 432 5 A &R TTAHALEE @ 1ZE

increase of 11.9% on a constant currency basis!” from the previous year. US TEEBEEN, BEFER11.9%  UETTHR
Dollar reported net sales increased by 3.5%. Excluding amounts attributable RIS E SRR 3.5% © MR 2014 FUBE ETEM
to the acquisitions made in 2014, net sales, on a constant currency basis, FEIRE%E - tHE FHEIRE T S EEILN218.9
increased by US$218.9 million, or 9.8%, and US Dollar reported net sales BEZETHI.8% ' LAETTEHMAIEEFZEIL N

increased by US$25.6 million, or 1.1%.

Operating profit increased by US$27.9 million, or 9.3%, on a constant currency
basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported operating profit increased by US$9.6
million, or 3.2%, to US$308.9 million.

Net Sales $HE&E F&E

llion
Eﬁ%n

US$2,432.

Profit for the year increased by US$20.4 million, or 9.9%, on a constant

currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported profit for the year increased
by US$11.7 million, or 5.7%, to US$217.0 million.

Profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$19.9 million, or 10.7%,
on a constant currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar reported profit
attributable to the equity holders increased by US$11.4 million, or 6.1%, to
US$197.6 million.

Adjusted Net Income® increased by US$19.6 million, or 9.5%, on a constant
currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported Adjusted Net Income
increased by US$10.7 million, or 5.2%, to US$216.9 million.

Adjusted EBITDA®! increased by US$48.5 million, or 12.6%, on a constant
currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA
increased by US$16.8 million, or 4.4%, to US$401.2 million.

Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.5% from 16.4%.

HABERBRAR

Samsonite International S.A.

US$401.

256 BBETH1.1% e

RETEEEE  CEREFIRFER279EE
ZEIT509.3% o UETHFALERFILRI6H
BETHI2%EI089BFEET °

RETEBEE  FREMEFIER20488
E009.9% ° LETTHBNFREIGE11.7
AEETHSTHE21T0BEZET -

RETFEEEE  RERBABGRFRASF
BEI19.9FEETH10.7% o UETERHRK
BEEBEARERFIERE N AEEETHCINE
197.6 BEZETT °

RETEEEE  KRABFRAVRFEER
196 BEEETTKI.5% - LETHRALAE
FWAERI0.7TEEEILHD.2%E21698E
ESIR

Adjusted EBITDA #£38% EBITDA

million
E%%m

RETEEREE  KHAZEBITDANKREFER
485 EBEITLE12.6% o UETTHMALE AR
EBITDA R 16 8 AEXTLK4.4% 401288
ETT e

$CTEEBITDAFEE W 16.4% FFZE16.5% °



Operating Cash Flows & & G )R e
million
EE-EFH

US$259.

The Group generated US$259.0 million of cash from operating activities during
2015 compared to US$229.9 million during 2014. As of December 31, 2015,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$180.8 million and financial
debt of US$64.2 million (excluding deferred financing costs of US$1.4 million),
providing the Group with a net cash position of US$116.6 million.

On March 16, 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors recommended that a
cash distribution in the amount of US$93.0 million, or approximately US$0.0659
per share, be made to the Company’s shareholders, a 5.7% increase from the
US$88.0 million distribution paid in 2015. The distribution will be subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

REBR 2015 FALETHELERE 259088
EJT M2014F8AE2299BFEFETT - K 2015
F12A31H8 - AEERS KB SEEYWR180.8
BEXEL ¢HAEAL2EBEETT(MBRIEL
BMERAILBEERL)  WAEENFREA
1M6.6BEBETT -

R2016F3A 168 » KRAREFTEEZRALAR
AIRERMEL 93.0 B BE TS B RRAY 0.0659 % 7T
MRS DR © B2015FRMNNSB.0EEETLY
IEIER5.7% - BHEDRBBEFRRNANREE
ERERFE RS EitE% - FAMEE -

2015 ACQUISITIONS:

On February 16, 2015, certain of the Company’'s wholly-owned subsidiaries
completed the acquisition of the business and substantially all of the assets
of Rolling Luggage for a cash consideration of GBP15.8 million, with a
subsequent working capital adjustment of GBP(0.3) million and a subsequent
purchase price adjustment of GBP(0.5) million for leases that were not
successfully transferred, for a total purchase price of GBP15.0 million. The
acquisition provides the Group with a significant retail footprint in some of the
world's leading airports, and further expands the Group’s portfolio of retail
store locations.

On June 26, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the 40%

non-controlling interest in its Russian subsidiary for US$15.7 million in cash,
with a final working capital adjustment of US$0.3 million settled in July 2015,
increasing its ownership from 60% to 100%.

2015 F B ETR ¢

MR2015F 28168 » KRRARETEENB AR
TR U EE Rolling Luggage VEE KA FAEE
E HeREARICSEBRE HEREESR
SEE (0.3) BB REMFAR - WHREKINE
FEMHEHWEEEL (0 EEREHAE
BUHEEAI150EERE - WEKERAEER
RIS RE THRAELHMISEETEER -
Wit — PREAEEANTEEHESE ©

2015 6 A26 0 ARB—HE2EHBRAA
NES 157 A8 REERBRNMBRRN
40% FEIRARAERS - W 20156 7 AT A E
BEEL03EBETTNRIKARE  BHES
M 60% 8 100% ©
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Financial Highlights ##%#Z

e OnSeptember 30, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company completed  » #2015F9 8308 + AR E—H2EHEBE A A

the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, and assumed certain AU Chic AccentiI FATEAE » WAL
liabilities, comprising the business as a going concern of Chic Accent for a Chic AccentKIFBEREEBNET ARG
cash consideration of EUR8.5 million, with a subsequent working capital ReREF/SOSBAEBIL HERLSEERIE
adjustment of EUR(2.1) million in cash. The acquisition provides the Group HR2INEERMITHRESFHE - IWIEKERARE
with 31 retail store locations in Italy dedicated to premium accessories, ladies’ EREAFIMGIIHTESE - BIHEEER
handbags, travel luggage and business products, and further expands the o RFR TFEREABER  WE—F
Group’s portfolio of retail store locations. BREASENTEEES

e On March 4, 2016, Samsonite announced that it has agreed to acquire the o R2016F3A4A - FIHEBEHEDIEKHHEK
premium business travel goods and accessories company Tumi Holdings, 8 = 8 PO TS IR 82 AR o SR B 2 B Tumi Holdings,
Inc. ("Tumi”). Closing is anticipated in the second half of 2016, subject to Inc. ([Tumil) c ZIEXSEEHAR 2016 F T
shareholder and regulatory approvals. Frepk - MAFRRREEHRBER - 0]

1EE -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31HLLEE

Percentage Percentage increase
increase (decrease) excl. foreign
(decrease) currency effects!”
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per share data) i ORA) TBREE 5 21
(LBEBETZY  BRBIER) ALt O B2
Net sales HEFE 2,432.5 2,350.7 3.5% 11.9%
Operating profit FES— i 308.9 299.3 3.2% 9.3%
Profit for the year FRER 217.0 205.4 5.7% 9.9%
Profit attributable to the IRIEFE A FEAE SR 197.6 186.3 6.1% 10.7%
equity holders
Adjusted Net Income®? BREFRAD 216.9 206.3 5.2% 9.5%
Adjusted EBITDA® IR EBITDAR 401.2 384.3 4.L% 12.6%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin® RIEEEBITDAREZR W 16.5% 16.4%
Basic and diluted earnings BREAREERT 0.140 0.132 6.1% 10.6%
per share (UBBRETLZ5)
(Expressed in US Dollars per share)
Adjusted basic earnings RRARGREAREFC 0.154 0.147 4.8% 8.8%
per share® (AERET25)
(Expressed in US Dollars per share)
Adjusted diluted earnings RAREREEEFC 0.154 0.146 5.5% 9.6%
per share® (AERET25)
(Expressed in US Dollars per share)
Notes PffzE

(1) Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
REEEREERFINEEDRAFERE SN EARAEFN TP HERFEHS -

(2)  Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges that impact
the Group’s US Dollar reported profit for the year. See “Management Discussion and Analysis - Adjusted Net Income” for a reconciliation from the Group's profit for the
year to Adjusted Net Income.

ERBFWAREIFRSHBFTETR - HMBYEFALEBUZTRRAENNETHEEURSE BAREEURE THMFRSEANTE - AEAERFRER
BEHEFWANEER  F2H [ EEEMEI N — EHABFHRAL

(3] Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges, which the
Group believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying trends of its business. See “Management
Discussion and Analysis - Adjusted EBITDA” for a reconciliation from the Group's profit for the year to Adjusted EBITDA.

EAEEBITDARIIFRS MR TR - EMMRETHEEMRE BEARGEURE THAFRSERNIE  AEERGEEBINELH T BECERERAELH
1HESIB Y - FRAASEFREFELHEEBITOANEER - F2H [ EEEFREIM — KHREEBITDAL -

(4)  Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.

R EBITDARER R IFRS BRI R - UEHAEEBITDARUME B EME -

(5] Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share, non-IFRS measures, are calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the year.

RARSREARBERFARF FRSUBFITETR » LSHEFRARUFRBITEIIMET IR U ERE o

b Samsonite International S.A. HFEBEEAR AT
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The Shwayder Trunk Manufacturing
Company was founded over a century ago
by Jesse Shwayderin 1910 in Denver,
Colorado, U.S.A., with the Samsonite
brand being first introduced in 1941

Shwayder Trunk Manufacturing Company
R0 EXENERZ M HHE
Jesse Shwayder BI3Z » ff1 Samsonite (¥
FEE) miE IR 1941 BTAER

Fa

4 i

"~

{ﬁ.

Increase
#n

WExcluding foreign cur L e AT g -
L *‘ Hﬂ: -i '-;‘-.-.I'

2015 Net Sales US$(m) ’I 49
015 HEFE(FEER) )
|

-r‘kii-'
.‘_-'

e, g

THE WORLD'S LARGEST
TRAVEL LUGGAGE BRAND

and the Group’s flagship, 2 IRE R WHRATHE m AR

well known for its quality, AEEWEERE  UEHSES -
durability, functionality A « ZREMRIHHERE

and innovation

POSITI

WS EN

Mid-market luggage brand
offering sophisticated and high
quality products to the seasoned
business and leisure traveler

RERBBNARBREFRAET
FNEEE M B P IR ER T A6 A A
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This year has been marked by some of the toughest trading
conditions the Company has encountered since the credit
crisis. And yet despite various headwinds around the globe

we have again managed to achieve a sixth consecutive year
of double digit constant currency net sales growth. For
the year ended December 31, 2015, our turnover reached
US$2.4 billion, up 3.5%.

This year has been marked by some of the toughest trading conditions the Company
has encountered since the credit crisis. And yet despite various headwinds around
the globe, we have again managed to achieve a sixth consecutive year of double-
digit constant currency net sales growth. For the year ended December 31, 2015,
our turnover reached US$2.4 billion, up 3.5%, after a very substantial negative
currency translation impact of US$198.2 million. The same pattern was repeated
in respect of Adjusted EBITDA, our key profitability measure: an increase of 12.6%
on a constant currency basis was whittled down to 4.4%, to US$401.2 million, after
negative currency translation effects. It is normal for different currencies to move
up and down against the US Dollar. However in 2015, expectations of interest rate
changes and a flight to safety made for a strengthening US Dollar against the
overwhelming majority of major currencies. The strong US Dollar has an impact
beyond translation: input prices from China are pushed up [notwithstanding a
limited devaluation of the RMB], although we do have the ability to adjust our own
prices over time; another effect is a shift in spending patterns: outlet stores in
U.S. gateway cities popular with tourists saw declining sales. Hong Kong became
expensive relative to other destinations, whereas Europe, Japan and South Korea
have all seen growth in visits from the increasingly numerous Chinese tourists. It is
often noted in the Company that there is a Samsonite store waiting somewhere in
the world for our customers, and this is true.

The other two significant developments of 2015 were firstly, the gear change in
Chinese growth, and secondly, the relentless advance of e-commerce. It is
undoubtedly the case that the days of 20-30% growth in China are over. However,
we are confident that a shift in our channel strategy, the growth of our non-travel
product offering and extending our coverage of the value market will support our
net sales growth in China around double digits, consistent with our overall aim
of maintaining double-digit net sales growth for the Group as a whole. Secondly,
e-commerce is rewriting the rules of the marketplace, but we are learning fast how
to reap the benefits from this channel and how to manage relationships with the
key players.

The fact that we have achieved these creditable results against a backdrop of
fundamental challenges is in my view a vindication of our overall strategy. | am sure
regular readers of our reports need no reminding, but it is worth reiterating our
strategy and to set it in the context of the market.

First of all, as Ramesh notes in his report, the prospects for the travel industry
remain healthy and ahead of global GDP growth overall. We believe that we can
become effective sector specialists by offering a range of different brands covering
the whole range of travel lifestyle products. We have seen though, that scale on its
own is not the source of success in our business, and | suspect, in many others. In
some respects, our size does allow us to achieve economies of scale in our back
office, logistics and sourcing. However, to cater effectively to our customers, we
need to adapt our product ranges to local tastes and shopping habits. Hence, we
operate a devolved model of management control that places responsibility for

AARRAEFEREBEERBIURE S
REHNERHRE - AM - BE2RZ
HIRBEAFEE » RPUIB IR
BEEF A FEUIFEECERHE T
BR -HZE215F12A31BLEFE - &
'ﬂaﬁﬂlj ¥§E§3 5%1241%7<7E °

RARIRAFELEEBEERBKIER D S RN
ERIRE - AN BERRESHERZETHAE

= RMNBE RS GEEE N FENRTE
TEBHEFHEER - HE2015F12A318IEF
& BMMEEBEELE 19828 BETLNIEFEKR
EHELEEMyERNRBREISHE24EET -
KHFEEEBITDA(RMM EZAFIGE NEHE) A LR
BIER  RETEBELERBIER12.6%  ELE
MESEETERAERELILNELN2BEET °
TREERETEAERBERBR - AAMAE2015
F NS ARESRBEBETLBAS
HEEZEBIEBES L5 - ELRBIMEKE XA
IR - APBRRBERMNREEREL AR
EARBHBBERERE)  RMERENDTRARE
BMEDNEEUERE  SHSHEBERANTZ Y
EmEY  REREEHTATRZIREEDH
HIEEWHEERETE T - A EMBNMNEE
BEEBERBRUESE - MEBUN - BAKRERY
HEABAIZERFRAKRETEIS R AR LA -

AARPEERR - B8 —MFHFEMEEHRE
B A& EESRERMERY  MEREEE -

015 FHBEMMBEERER - F— PEERD
BB BTHETHRR - 2EERH - PE
15 20-30% B RM B FLEEBRE - A - RIVEE
BIBMERMNEERBERE - MR A FEHRLE
EMBEURERABRMARABLTENEEESES
BB BE U S F R S B g0E - B
PR AN R S F RN SUERNEEEE
—H o X EFHBEEXRETSERA - BFM
FEERREBF WAL REEN R gRETE
EFHRE -

RARR  EHHEAKBBER TREEFUEES
REMFEEFA T RMIBERBOKI - EAEHK
PREMEREEM S BT A BAAE
EREESERRMINRE RENARARTS -

B MARamesh fEEMEFIRK « IREEZE AT
REBERMFUTRESREBEANEEABEER - &
fIMEE - BAOATEBR—RITRARBRAERESLR
MRBEERFHERMKAKDOITEER - BEHR
FIFT RAR R IE AT HEME — I = (R AHE
TR Z BT R B R - MEEF L E - M
FRENRRRMEARES URRIRBHIEE
BURER G - AT - REBUREEMONES - F M
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Chairman’s Statement  EE#R&E

business development fairly and squarely on the shoulders of the country manager.
In some ways, we are trying to operate a large company in a small company,
entrepreneurial kind of way. This requires a degree of trust and partnership that
has been developed over time and a style of management at the top which is deeply
engaged with what is happening in the market place. What | have found greatly
encouraging is the ability of this model to adapt to a broader stable of brands,
without losing focus on the core brand that makes up the majority of our sales.
This has not inhibited what | have referred to before as our empirical approach
that consists of accelerating successful initiatives and retreating fast from things
that don't work. To run things in this way, you need a self-confident management
team that acknowledges failures when they happen, and is always seeking out new
strategic solutions to the problems of the marketplace.

Another key element of our strategy which we have consistently followed is to make
acquisitions that are a complementary fit in terms of market positioning, product
range or distribution. In this regard, and although it comes after the end of the year, |
am pleased to report on a major development: we have reached agreement, subject
to shareholder and regulatory approval, to acquire Tumi, the premium business
travel goods and accessories brand. This is a genuinely transformative acquisition
for Samsonite. While this report is not the place to go into the economics, it is worth
noting that Tumiis a perfect complement for our business: its strengths are in areas
where we want to establish a position orimprove our position - namely, the premium
sector, and business products for men and especially for women. Conversely,
opportunities for Tumi are directly related to our strengths, in particular hard-side
luggage and penetration of markets outside the U.S. In addition, Tumi is on quite a
different scale from our other acquisitions and will materially change the size of our
business. We believe we are buying a strong, profitable and well-run business, with
considerable flair and success behind it in the American market. These are exciting
times indeed. We are fully confident of assimilating Tumi’s operations later in this
year, 2016, when the transaction is expected to close, and taking full advantage of
the many new strategic directions that will open up for our business.

Now is perhaps a good time to mention some of the foundations that are being laid
for the future, in spite of the macro headwinds to which | have already alluded. We
have covered some of the hardest miles of establishing the American Tourister
brand in Europe and expect to build on the momentum in the coming years. The
Samsonite Red casual sub-brand continues to make progress outside its home
country of South Korea, in particular in China. Our completely renovated product
line of Hartmann is now taking shape, and we will see the benefits come through,
particularly in our Asian markets. Although currently limited in scale, we are seeing
great potential in the Lipault and Gregory brands. Speck has an exciting range of
products, and we have tightened up the business operationally, with a resulting
improvement in profitability. The newly strengthened team in Latin America is
making great strides: the key markets of Chile and Mexico are performing well, and
we are confident that although Brazil has been a tough market this year, we now
have a sustainable formula for its profitable growth in the future. Another important
development is the extension of our own manufacturing capacity in Europe: "Made
in Europe” is important to many of our customers, especially in Asia, and we believe
that this will create a source of competitive advantage over the medium term as
well as provide some hedge against adverse currency movements.

As Ramesh notes in his report, we have throttled back slightly this year on marketing
spend. This was inevitable in the face of overwhelming currency forces. However,
given more normal market conditions, it is our intention to increase marketing
investment as a percentage of net sales over the medium term. Investment behind
our brands has been a key driver of our success and we intend to push even harder

HABERBRAR

Samsonite International S.A.

MEMRZRIIFELAEMAKEBYEE - #utt
BAATHEANERRARLS  BXEBERNA
EEERARLOETESEERNEE - RXEAE
BR - RAEEFANNERFMAREXNLEAR
A MERAREEERERLOH —EREEEIR
BEBHBER  URRABITSE R -NER
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in this area. | can also assure shareholders that our product ranges have never
been in better shape. Across all categories, there is no shortage of creativity
and innovation. But this is not enough on its own, which is why the investment
in marketing is so important. Another component of our strategy is to increase
our investment in the direct-to-consumer channel. | have already described the
rapid growth of e-commerce. Our two recent retail acquisitions in Europe, Rolling
Luggage and Chic Accent, are already benefiting from a more intensive mix of our
branded products, and we will continue to look for similar opportunities to extend
our channel coverage.

Whatever the challenges to the top line of the business, this has not deterred
the management from further progress on net working capital efficiency. This
reduced from 12.7% of net sales in 2014 to 11.8% for 2015, and contributed to the
improvement in operating cash flow, from US$229.9 million to US$259.0 million,
a creditable increase of 12.7%. The strong conversion of EBITDA to cash flow is
a consistent feature of our business, and will stand us in good stead, once the
Tumi acquisition is completed. During the year, capital expenditure was US$68.5
million, and after the acquisitions of Rolling Luggage, Chic Accent and the 40%
minority stake in our Russian subsidiary, as well as a distribution to shareholders
of US$88.0 million, our end of year net cash position increased by US$43.7 million to
US$116.6 million.

Your Board continues to follow a progressive dividend policy that broadly links
payments to increases in earnings. During the year, Adjusted Net Income rose
by 11.0% on a constant currency basis and excluding non-cash share-based
compensation expenses. However, primarily as a result of currency movements,
the reported earnings per share of the business, on an adjusted and diluted basis,
increased by 5.5%, from US$0.146 to US$0.154. Given that the impact of currency
should not be sustained, the Board has recommended a cash distribution to
shareholders for 2016 of US$93.0 million, an increase of 5.7% on the previous year,
and representing approximately US$0.0659 per share.

| 'would like to thank Ramesh and the management team for another year of
sterling effort, and also my Board colleagues for their support and wisdom. There
is a genuine team spirit in the Company and this was very evident in the enormous
out-of-hours effort the team has put into securing the agreed acquisition of Tumi.
As Ramesh mentions, this will be Tom Korbas's final year with the Company, and he
can look back with pride on a career that culminated in his enormously successful
leadership of the North American business. We will miss him, but we will continue
to benefit around the Board table from his incomparable knowledge of the industry.
And Lynne Berard, his successor, is proof of the depth of management expertise
we have within the Company, and I'm sure she will be an excellent appointment.
Our business has emerged stronger from 2015, and is now well placed to benefit
fully from being a leading company in a sector that is expected to enjoy sustained
worldwide growth.

-

7k fn Ve

Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman
March 16, 2016
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| am pleased to share with you another solid set of results for Samsonite. On a
constant currency basis, Samsonite’'s net sales grew by US$280.0 million,
representing an 11.9% year-on-year increase, with all of our regions achieving
good net sales growth for the year ended December 31, 2015. This marks the
sixth consecutive year that the Group has posted double-digit top line growth on
a constant currency basis. Foreign currency headwinds resulted in a negative
currency translation impact of US$198.2 million. Despite this impact, US Dollar
reported net sales increased by 3.5% to US$2.4 billion, another new record.

Samsonite’s profit attributable to equity holders increased by US$19.9 million, or
10.7%, on a constant currency basis from the previous year. As a result of adverse
foreign currency impacts, the Group’s US Dollar reported profit attributable to
equity holders increased by US$11.4 million, or 6.1%, to US$197.6 million. Reported
earnings per share increased from US$0.132 to US$0.140, an increase of 6.1%.

Adjusted EBITDA, a key measure of performance for our business, grew by
US$48.5 million, or 12.6%, on a constant currency basis, to US$432.8 million. This
was partially offset by a negative currency translation impact of US$31.6 million,
resulting in a net increase in US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA of US$16.8
million, or 4.4%, to US$401.2 million, for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Adjusted Net Income, which excludes certain non-operating and one-off costs and
gives a clearer picture of the underlying performance of the business, increased by
9.5% on a constant currency basis compared to 2014. Further excluding non-cash
share-based compensation expenses, Adjusted Net Income increased by 11.0% on
a constant currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported Adjusted Net Income
increased by US$10.7 million, or 5.2%, to US$216.9 million. Earnings per share on
an adjusted and diluted basis increased from US$0.146 to US$0.154, an increase
of 5.5%.

On a constant currency basis, Samsonite’s net sales grew by

US$280.0 million, representing an 11.9% year-on-year increase,
with all of our regions achieving good net sales growth for the
year ended December 31, 2015. This very encouraging set of
results, achieved against a backdrop of significant currency
pressures and difficult trading conditions in many of our main
markets around the world, is a testament of the effectiveness of
our strategy.
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Our vision is to transform Samsonite from being “a great
travel luggage company which also does some bags”, to being
“the leading global travel lifestyle company”.

HMANWESEEHFEA —REFNRETEHE(BARTEE—
LHMBEEERN) QR BEAR [ BE —ENERREEEM
RE3E |

The Group generated strong operating cash flow of US$259.0 million in 2015, an
increase of 12.7% compared to the US$229.9 million recorded in the previous year.
Meanwhile, net working capital efficiency continued to run ahead of our target,
cominginat 11.8% for 2015 and better than the 12.7% level achieved the year before.
During the year, we had capital expenditures of US$68.5 million, completed the
acquisitions of Rolling Luggage, Chic Accent and the 40% non-controlling interest
in our Russian subsidiary, as well as paid US$88.0 million in cash distributions to
shareholders. That left the Group with a net cash position of US$116.6 million at
December 31, 2015, up by US$43.7 million from December 31, 2014.

Asia, our largest region, continued to be the Group’s main growth driver. Excluding
foreign currency effects, the region’s net sales increased by 12.8% in 2015, with all
of our key markets posting positive constant currency net sales growth. However,
negative currency translation impacts caused Asia’s US Dollar reported net sales to
increase by 6.2% to US$947.6 million. Growth in Asia continued to be driven by the
success of the Samsonite and American Tourister brands, as well as the Gregory
brand, acquired in July 2014 and, to a lesser extent, the Lipault brand, acquired in
April 2014. Excluding net sales attributable to these two acquired brands, constant
currency organic growth in 2015 was 11.1%, with Samsonite growing by 9.6%
(including the Samsonite Red sub-brand, whose net sales increased by 23.8%) and
American Tourister by 9.0%. Looking at performance by country, China, our largest
market in Asia, continued to be the main contributor to the region’s growth in 2015.
On the back of strong growth of Samsonite and Samsonite Red in the business-to-
business and e-commerce channels, net sales in China increased by 13.0% on a
constant currency basis. Although growth in China decelerated in the second half
due to some temporary pressures related to changes in channel preferences, such
as department stores losing share to e-commerce, as well as uncertainties in the
country’s short-term economic outlook, | have no doubt that over the medium to
long term China will continue to be the locomotive for the region’s growth. Japan
was the biggest contributor to Asia’s growth after China, posting constant currency
growth of 37.7% including the contribution from Gregory. Excluding Gregory, net
sales in Japan increased by 26.7% on a constant currency basis. Australia and
India also did well, posting constant currency net sales growth of 39.4% and 12.0%,
respectively. Excluding foreign currency effects, South Korea's net sales increased
by 4.5% despite the negative impact from the MERS outbreak, while net sales in
Hong Kong (including Macau) increased by 3.1%, including the contribution from
the Gregory brand, despite lower tourist arrivals from Mainland China.
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Our performance in North America (which includes the United States and Canada)
benefited from the Speck and Gregory brands which were acquired in May 2014 and
July 2014, respectively. Net sales in the region increased by 7.4% excluding foreign
currency effects, and by 6.6% on a US Dollar reported basis to US$811.3 million in
2015. Excluding the contributions from the Speck and Gregory brands, net sales
grew by 3.4% on a constant currency basis. With both Speck and Gregory being
largely wholesale businesses, the wholesale channel posted constant currency net
sales growth of 8.7% (4.1% if we exclude contributions from Speck and Gregory)
in 2015. Performance of our bricks and mortar retail operations was impacted by
lower foreign tourist arrivals to the U.S. due to the strengthening US Dollar and
poor weather in the first quarter of 2015, resulting in constant currency same store
net sales decreasing by 6.0% in 2015. However, this was offset by an 18.3% increase
in direct-to-consumer e-commerce sales, resulting in overall growth of 2.2% in the
retail channel on a constant currency basis.

Europe is undoubtedly the star performer among all of our regions in 2015. Despite
challenging economic conditions in the region, our net sales on a constant currency
basis increased by 17.7%, and by 15.9% excluding the impact of the Lipault and
Gregory acquisitions. US Dollar reported net sales decreased by 2.4% to US$544.7
million in 2015 due to the general weakening of currencies in the region. Europe’s
strong performance was driven largely by American Tourister, whose net sales
increased by 88.3% year-on-year on a constant currency basis as a result of the
brand’s successful region-wide rollout. As a result, American Tourister comprised
11.7% of the Group’s 2015 net sales in Europe, up from 7.5% the previous year.
Looking at performance by country, our growth in Europe was led by the United
Kingdom, with constant currency net sales growth of 41.5% including the results
of the 12 Rolling Luggage stores acquired in February 2015. The Group’s business
in Italy continued to improve with constant currency net sales growth of 18.9%
over the previous year, including the results from the acquisition of 31 Chic Accent
stores in September 2015. Germany, our largest market in the region, also did well,
with net sales increasing by 17.4% on a constant currency basis. France posted
constant currency growth of 8.7% including the contribution from the Lipault brand.
Constant currency net sales in Turkey and South Africa grew by 39.7% and 29.2%,
respectively, as we continued to penetrate these emerging markets. The Group’'s
business in Russia was negatively impacted by the economic downturn in the
country and devaluation of the Russian Ruble, but still generated constant currency
net sales growth of 9.0% year-on-year. In June 2015, the Group acquired the 40%
non-controlling interest in its Russian subsidiary.
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Our business in Latin America performed well considering the negative economic
impact on the region from weak commodity prices and volatile currencies. Chile,
our biggest market in the region and accounting for 48.0% of the region’s net sales,
recorded growth of 12.9%, excluding foreign currency effects, driven by the women'’s
handbag brand Secret, as well as the Saxoline and Xtrem brands. Mexico, our
number two market with 31.9% of the region’s net sales, recorded strong constant
currency growth of 15.2%. Unfortunately these positive gains were largely offset by
a 28.2% decline in constant currency net sales in Brazil, reflecting the downturn
in the local economy. Excluding net sales attributable to Brazil, net sales in Latin
America increased by 14.9% on a constant currency basis in 2015. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales for the region increased by 8.6% overall. However, US
Dollar reported net sales for the region decreased by 7.8% to US$120.5 million due
to unfavorable foreign currency translation impacts.

This very encouraging set of results, achieved against a backdrop of significant
currency pressures and difficult trading conditions in many of our main markets
around the world, is a testament of the effectiveness of our strategy and we intend
to maintain our course in 2016.

You have heard many times in the past the vision that our Chairman, Tim Parker,
the Board, our leadership team and | share - which is to transform Samsonite from
being “a great travel luggage company which also does some bags”, to being “the
leading global travel lifestyle company”. To reiterate, there are three key drivers
that will propel Samsonite’s long-term growth to realize this vision. The first driver
is our multi-brand, multi-category and multi-channel strategy. The aim is to build
a well-balanced business around a portfolio of diverse yet complementary brands,
offering our customers a competitive mix of products in both travel and non-travel
categories that are sold through multiple distribution channels. We believe that this
strategy considerably strengthens Samsonite’s resilience and provides a platform
for sustained growth.

HABERBRAR
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With respect to brands, our strategy is to deploy multiple brands to target different
price points and product categories. Each brand is intended to play a distinct role
within the overall symphony. The Group’s flagship brand Samsonite maintained its
leadership position in the mid-market segment of the global travel luggage market.
Excluding foreign currency effects, Samsonite’s net sales grew by 5.7% in 2015,
driven by a 9.6% increase in Asia. In view of the Samsonite brand’s high base and
extensive penetration in markets worldwide, this performance has largely met
management’s expectations and the aim is to sustain steady growth of the brand
in 2016 and beyond.

In 2015, American Tourister recorded net sales of US$549.3 million, an increase
of 16.7% on a constant currency basis from the previous year. This performance
was driven by the successful expansion of the American Tourister brand in Europe,
where net sales increased by 88.3% on a constant currency basis. Strong growth of
the brand was also supported in Asia and North America where net sales increased
by 9.0% and 18.3%, respectively, all on a constant currency basis. We consider
American Touristerto be “work-in-progress”, and the Group will continue to invest
resources behind the brand in 2016, especially in Europe, to realize its potential
as a young, colorful and fashionable international brand aimed at mass market
consumers globally.

We also made progress in building up our acquired brands. On a constant currency
basis, net sales of Hartmann increased year-on-year by 30.9%, driven by the
increased traction of the brand in Asia where net sales more than tripled year-on-
year. On a constant currency basis, net sales of the High Sierra backpack brand
decreased by 1.5% in 2015 compared to 2014 due to an 8.4% decrease in North
America because of some one-off inventory reductions by certain customers and
the non-repetition of certain promotional sales that had occurred during 2014,
which was partially offset by further penetration of the brand in Asia and Europe.
Despite the temporary setback in North America, High Sierra contributed US$85.3
million in 2015 net sales and enjoys good long-term growth potential targeting
value-conscious casual and outdoor consumers. Meanwhile, the Gregory backpack
brand, which is targeted at a more affluent consumer, contributed net sales of
US$34.3 million in 2015. With the strong reputation that the Speck brand enjoys
in the market for protective cases for smartphones, tablets, laptops and other
personal electronic devices, it contributed net sales of US$117.7 million in 2015.
The Lipault brand, with its signature Parisian style and vibrant colors targeting
fashionable female consumers, has gained good traction in both Europe and Asia,
contributing net sales of US$13.8 million in 2015.

The Samsonite brand’s share of the Group's US Dollar reported net sales
decreased to 61.3% in 2015 from 65.3% in the previous year, reflecting the strength
of American Tourister sales growth and the continued diversification of the Group's
brand portfolio through both acquisitions and internal development. American
Tourister’s share increased to 22.6%, up from 21.4% in 2014, while the five acquired
brands combined accounted for 11.2% of 2015 net sales, with the remaining 4.9%
made up primarily of our smaller brands such as Saxoline, Xtrem and Secret in
Latin America. In Asia, the Kamiliant brand, which we introduced in December 2014
to target value-conscious consumers in the entry price segment, experienced an
encouraging market response as we further expanded its distribution in the region
in 2015. We plan to increase our support for the new and acquired brands in 2016
to prepare them for future growth. In particular, we see good potential in the non-
travel product categories, especially the large but highly fragmented backpack
market where our market share is still tiny.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement {TBAR KRS

On March 4, 2016, the Company announced that it has agreed to acquire Tumi
Holdings, Inc. This, for me, is like a dream come true. All of the acquisitions that
we have made over the past few years were steps taken to grow and diversify our
brands and products in pursuit of our multi-brand, multi-category and multi-
channel strategy. We believe that Tumi, with its leading position in the premium
business and luggage segment, is a perfect strategic fit and a truly transformational
acquisition for Samsonite. Firstly, at a fundamental level, Tumi's core brand
principles are the same as ours: unparalleled quality, superior functionality and
durability, design excellence, technical innovation and world-class customer
give us a strong product offering which appeals to
the frequent, more sophisticated and brand-conscious traveler, particularly the

service. Secondly, Tumi will

modern business professional, enabling us to meaningfully extend our presence
to the highly attractive premium market. Finally, Tumi’s high-end signature black
ballistic business bags and luggage, travel accessories, women's bags and outdoor
apparel will help us to expand and further diversify our product range.

Signing the agreement to acquire Tumi is only the first step. The transaction is
expected to close in the second half of 2016, subject to the receipt of approvals by
Samsonite’s and Tumi's shareholders, the receipt of required regulatory approvals
and the satisfaction of other customary closing conditions. Until the closing,
the two companies will continue to operate as separate entities. The combined
business offers tremendous opportunities for us to further diversify our product
and customer portfolios. In particular, we intend to expand Tumi’s presence in Asia
and Europe, while strengthening its business in North America, by tapping into our
expertise in global distribution, sourcing, product design and technical innovation,
especially in the area of lightweight hard-side luggage.

In terms of product categories, net sales in the travel category, the Group’'s
traditional area of strength, grew by 8.7%, excluding foreign currency effects. Our
strategy of localizing products and marketing campaigns, along with expanded
points-of-sale, including e-commerce, continued to help the Group drive sales
growth around the world. The continued success of the Samsonite Red sub-brand
in Asia and contribution from Gregory together increased our casual category
constant currency net sales by 10.8%. Driven by strong growth in Europe and Asia,
business product net sales posted strong constant currency growth of 16.3% in
2015. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the accessories category
increased by 35.0%, on a constant currency basis, largely due to an increase in net
sales of protective phone cases sold under the Speck brand. As a result, the share
of the non-travel product categories in our business advanced from 29.6% last year
to 31.7% in 2015.

We posted good growth in all our distribution channels in 2015, with e-commerce
seeing the strongest growth by far. Excluding foreign currency effects, e-commerce
net sales surged by 40.4% in 2015, driven by North America (up 32.2%), Asia (up
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59.5%) and Europe (up 32.4%). Both the Group's net sales to e-retailers, which are
included within the wholesale channel, and its direct-to-consumer e-commerce
business, which is included within the retail channel, saw strong double-digit
constant currency net sales growth. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales to
e-retailersincreased by 48.1% whereas net sales in the Group’s direct-to-consumer
e-commerce business increased by 30.8% in 2015. As a result, e-commerce’s
contribution to the Group's US Dollar reported net sales rose to 8.5% in 2015
compared to 6.6% in the previous year. With consumers around the world migrating
in ever greater numbers online, we expect e-commerce to increase in importance
and, as such, we will continue to invest to support our growth in this channel.

Overall, net sales in the wholesale channel increased year-on-year by 9.3%, while
net sales in the retail channel increased by 22.5%, excluding foreign currency
effects. The strong constant currency net sales growth in the retail channel was
driven by the addition of 162 net new company-operated stores in 2015, including 31
Rolling Luggage stores and 30 Chic Accent stores from the respective acquisitions,
as well as the continued strong growth of the Group’'s direct-to-consumer
e-commerce business. As a result, the wholesale and retail channels represented
78.3% and 21.4%, respectively, of the Group’s 2015 net sales. We will continue to
invest resources, including through potential acquisitions, to support the growth of
the Group's retail business.

The second driver of Samsonite’s long-term growth is our consistent investment
in our brands and products, from both an innovation and a marketing perspective.
Our significant investment in marketing, both in absolute dollar terms and as a
percentage of net sales, not only underpins our brands’ long-term sales growth,
it also gives the Group the flexibility to pull back and protect its profitability when
faced with short-term challenges. The Group spent US$132.1 million on marketing
in 2015, a decrease of 8.8% compared to 2014. As a percentage of sales, total
constant currency advertising spend was 5.5%, 70 basis points lower than 2014.
We took the decision to temporarily scale back marketing spend during 2015 to
help mitigate foreign currency pressures. On a constant currency basis, though,
marketing expense was more or less stable compared to 2014, enabling us to still
maintain a high level of awareness for our brands among consumers worldwide.
We intend to continue our investment in marketing in 2016 to support our growth
plans, especially for the continued expansion of American Tourister in Europe, as
well as to support our new and acquired brands to develop them into tomorrow’s
growth drivers. The Group’s investment in research and development amounted
to US$26.2 million in 2015, about the same as the US$26.1 million spent in 2014.
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement  {TBARH KRS

Last, but by no means least, the third driver of Samsonite’s long-term growth is our
people. There are no secret weapons to succeeding in business. Instead, success
is achieved by motivated and passionate people coming together and executing
as a team. | would like to take this opportunity to pay tribute to Tim Parker, our
Chairman, for his consistently inspirational and innovative leadership, as well as
to Tom Korbas, who will be retiring in March 2016 after a very successful 30-year
career, first with American Tourister, and after its acquisition by Samsonite, with our
North American operations. Fortunately for the Group, we will continue to benefit
from Tom's expertise and experience as he continues to serve as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company. | would also like to thank our CFO, Kyle Gendreau, and
General Counsel, John Livingston, for their tireless efforts in bringing Tumi home,
as well as our other senior management team members Fabio Rugarli, Leo Suh,
Frank Ma and Roberto Guzman for their contribution in their respective regions. |
extend a warm welcome to new members Lynne Berard, who will be succeeding
Tom as head of our North American business, and Subrata Dutta who will be
heading up the Asian region. Together with our employees, suppliers and business
partners around the world, this excellent team has made it possible for the Group
to achieve these positive results in 2015, despite significant currency pressures and
difficult trading conditions in many of our main markets. A big “thank-you” to all for
a job well done!

However, we cannot rest on our laurels. With almost 10,000 employees, plus
numerous suppliers and business partners worldwide, Samsonite is today no longer
a small company. Our continued success will depend on our ability to foster among
our people the “can do” spirit of a small entrepreneurial company. This will be even
more important as the Tumi brand joins our growing family of brands. The success
of the acquisition will depend on us being able to integrate Tumi’s business into our
own operations while maintaining the brand’s unique DNA. With this in mind, | am
passionately committed to maintaining Samsonite’s decentralized organizational
structure, enabling us to leverage our global scale while empowering our teams in
the various countries and regions to nimbly manage their businesses and effectively
respond to the challenges and opportunities ahead.

| see business as a long voyage, and we will inevitably encounter occasional
turbulence in the form of macroeconomic or geopolitical headwinds along the way.
However, we will not alter our course on account of such temporary disruptions
in the external environment. While the outlook for 2016 remains uncertain, with
challenging trading conditions expected in a number of our key markets including
China, and the negative currency translation impacts from the strong US Dollar
expected to continue affecting our business, our long-term view remains positive.
With global tourism estimated to grow by 3.3%!" annually from 2010 to 2030, and the
worldwide luggage market forecast to grow at an annual rate of 5.8%? between 2016
and 2020, the foundations for our future growth are solid. Indeed, the road ahead for
us has never been more exciting — and this is especially so with the addition of the
Tumi brand to our portfolio of brands. With our well-diversified business and ability
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On March 4, 2016, the Company
announced that it has agreed

to acquire Tumi Holdings, Inc.

We believe that Tumi, with its
leading position in the premium
business and luggage segment, is
a perfect strategic fit and a truly

transformational acquisition for
Samsonite.
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to cater to customers across the entire spectrum of product categories, price points ~ KIATR A Z S ARE - BERMEZTILNER

and channels globally, our platform for long-term growth and profitability is stronger A RBE2REEREEMRER - BUXEEME

than ever. With all the excellent opportunities in front of us, I'm sure together we ~ EE R kAN - RPERRHEREAFENN

will make our journey forward to build Samsonite into the "World's Leading Global ~ FAEBHAT - BEEATEE AT HEEB - AAKE

Travel Lifestyle Company” an invigorating and rewarding one. ERMEE % ELHESEBRERHREE—
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Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala TTBUARE,
Chief Executive Officer Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala
March 16, 2016 201653 R 16H
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 EsTREED

Samsonite International S.A. (the "Company”], together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the "Group”), is the world's largest travel luggage company, with
a heritage dating back more than 100 years. The Group is principally engaged
in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and
computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective
cases for personal electronic devices throughout the world, primarily under the
Samsonite®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck®
and Lipault® brand names as well as other owned and licensed brand names.
The Group's core brand, Samsonite, is one of the most well-known travel luggage
brands in the world.

The Group sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels,
through its company-operated retail stores and through e-commerce. Its principal
wholesale distribution customers are department and specialty retail stores,
mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Group sells its
products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America. As of December 31,
2015, the Group’s products were sold in over 100 countries.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
Group’s audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “"IASB”].

NET SALES

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, both in absolute terms and as
a percentage of total net sales.

Year ended December 31,
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2015vs 2014

20155 E2 2014 FELb 8

Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  [(decrease) excl. foreign
Net sales by region™: of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effectsi
yreg US$'000 HEFH US$'000 WEFE  BNOED) HUAEE 5200
ZiLBRB D HIHERR" FER B FER "R HAL BINCHD) H R
Asia ZEM 947,602 39.0% 892,258 38.0% 6.2% 12.8%
North America 1t M 811,304 33.4% 761,310 32.4% 6.6% 7.6%
Europe EUM 544,740 22.4% 557,934 23.7% (2.4)% 17.7%
Latin America H77T M 120,476 5.0% 130,606 5.6% (7.8]% 8.6%
Corporate 8% 8,355 0.2% 8,599 0.3% (2.8]% (2.8)%
Net sales $HEF4E 2,432,477 100.0% 2,350,707 100.0% 3.5% 11.9%

Notes izt
M
consumers were actually located.

FEEHEFENHAVESARREEERNER - YT —EAKXREEEBRMENER

(2
ZEEEMEEMINEADRAFEREMENXARAEFNFIERAEMS -

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by US$280.0 million,
or 11.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$81.8 million, or
3.5%, to US$2,432.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting the
impact of foreign currency translation from the strengthening US Dollar during
the year.

HABERBRAR
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The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for the years ~ T&R#FIEZE2015F12 A31HK2014F 12 A31H
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, both in absolute terms and as I FE R RIS D E S EFEEAM - LIRS E RIS
a percentage of total net sales. HEFREFAILLIIER-

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31HLLEE

2015vs 2014
20155822014 FLLER
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  (decrease] excl. foreign
B0 HEFEE FERT EE:A: FET BAL EEaz M CHD) B
W Samsonite #TFEE 1,490,470 61.3% 1,535,708 65.3% (2.91% 5.7%
American Tourister 549,269 22.6% 504,222 21.4% 8.9% 16.7%
M Speck 117,719 4.8% 91,565 39% nmBEEZZE nm BEEH
High Sierra 85,300 3.5% 89,239 3.8% (4.4)% (1.5)%
Gregory 34,338 1.6% 12,613 0.5% nmE=ZZE nm EEZHE
M Hartmann 21,340 0.9% 16,947 0.7% 25.9% 30.9%
M Lipault 13,788 0.6% 5,524 02% nmfEZZE nm X
W Other" EH A 120,253 4.9% 94,889 4.2% 26.7% 45.1%
Net sales SHE&EF5E 2,432,477 100.0% 2,350,707 100.0% 3.5% 11.9%
Notes FffzE
(1) Other includes certain other brands owned by the Group, such as Saxoline and Xtrem, as well as third party brands sold through Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent retail
stores.

H{hB$E Saxoline B Xtrem SAREEE THMBE R - LURFEBRolling Luggage & Chic Accent BEEHEMNE=F R °

(2) Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
REEEBEEMINEENIRAFERE SN EERAEFNTYERAERE -

nm Not meaningful due to acquisitions of Lipault on April 1, 2014, Speck on May 28, 2014 and Gregory on July 23, 2014.

fEZE ER20145 4 A 1 B Lipault ~ 7420145 5 A 28 BB Speck RN 2014 7 B 23 B Gregory » HRITEZ R o
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Net Sales By Brands
BRmEE D IHE #5
W Samsonite FTEE Gregory
W Hartmann
W Lipault
W Other Efth

American Tourister
W Speck
23%
High Sierra

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$88.2 million, or 5.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
previous year. US Dollar reported net sales of the Samsonite brand decreased by
US$45.2 million, or 2.9%, due to the strengthening of the US Dollar. Samsonite
comprised 61.3% of the net sales of the Group during 2015 compared to 65.3% in
2014 reflecting the strength of American Tourister sales growth and the continued
diversification of the Group's brand portfolio with contributions from acquired
brands. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the American Tourister
brand increased by US$84.1 million, or 16.7%, for the year ended December 31,
2015 compared to the previous year. US Dollar reported net sales of the American
Tourister brand increased by US$45.0 million, or 8.9%. Europe accounted for
US$21.9 million, or 48.6%, and Asia accounted for US$12.7 million, or 28.1%, of
the US$45.0 million increase in American Tourister brand sales. The increase in
American Tourister net sales was attributable to an expanded product offering
and further penetration of existing markets, which were supported by the Group's
targeted advertising activities.

The Group has acquired five brands since January 1, 2012, namely High Sierra (July
2012), Hartmann (August 2012, Lipault (April 2014), Speck (May 2014) and Gregory
(July 2014). These acquired brands accounted for 11.2% of US Dollar reported net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2015. Net sales of the Speck brand, which
was acquired on May 28, 2014, amounted to US$117.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015. On a constant currency basis, net sales of the High Sierra
brand decreased by 1.5% for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2014 due to an 8.4% decrease in North America, due to
inventory reduction efforts by certain customers, lower sales to department stores
and the non-repetition of certain promotional sales that had occurred during 2014,
marginally offset by further penetration of the brand in Asia and Europe. Net sales
of the Gregory brand, which was acquired on July 23, 2014, amounted to US$34.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2015. On a constant currency basis, net
sales of the Hartmann brand increased by 30.9% for the year ended December 31,
2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014, driven by increased traction
of the brand in Asia where net sales more than tripled year-on-year. Net sales
of the Lipault brand, which was acquired on April 1, 2014, amounted to US$13.8
million. Excluding amounts attributable to the 2014 acquisitions, net sales, on a
constant currency basis, increased by US$218.9 million, or 9.8%, and US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$25.6 million, or 1.1%.

21%

WHRENZE  THERBEZE2015F12 A 31
HIEFENEEFERAFERS S 2EEETLK
5.7% ° PASETT R ¥RE)FT A AR SHE FHR L 45.2
BEETH2.9% * LTIERETTREPTE - 72015
F o HABELREBIEEFRH61.3% » 201458
565.3% * M American Tourister $§E 38 S8R &
FRMAFBENRE S NEENREESHE
L LR o WBREE X2 + American Tourister
MEEZE2015F 12 A3 ALFEMNHEE FER
EFERBLIABEITHK6.7% ° AETTHIH
American Tourister @S FRIE R 45.0HEETT
588.9% ° American Tourister fhiE 3% S K 45.0
AEEL BMEEFR 21 9EEETL48.6% M
BN ES 12 7B EZETH28.1% ° American
Tourister BISHE FRIBR BER AN EBERNEME
RIRIRZERE™S - Wi EAHBENESES
EEB R NS -

B2012F1 A1BUR - AEBZKERARERE -
D RIA High Sierra(20124 7 B) ~ Hartmann(2012
F8A) - Lipault(2014F 4 B) ~ Speck(201445 A)
K Gregory(2014F 7R) - #ZE2015F 1283181k
FE - RSB RIGEIAE TR RO S FEED
11.2% ° 201445 A 28 BFTUREE 89 Speck Th IR &
Z2015F 12 AN BIEFENHEFHERITTIEE
ETT o RETEEE®E - High Sierra fiEEE 2015
F12A31 BIEFEMHEFERHE2014F12 A
STHIEFEMD 1.5% « AR EMNBE F58
RAETEFREKET BEARHEE NBRUARE
R2014FHITHE THENEER TMEH LM &K
8.4% FTE » SO Wk MRt — 2B M REBUM BT
HEH - 201497 A 23 BFTUEERI Gregory M hE#E:
FE2015F 12 A3 BIEFERMEEFREAIBEE
JC ° 5 Hartmann SRIEFESS NN ANZE EFH - SHHE
SFERF EAHMAMEHEE - REEEEEE -
ZmEEZE 2015612 A31 BIEFEMEEFERE
Z20145 12 A31 BIEEEIEIN30.9% R 2014 4
A 1BEES Lipault REHHE FEAI138EE
FETT o MR 2014 F B FIEMN BN SR - HEFE
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PRODUCT
ELORIES |

The Group sells products in four principal product categories: travel, business, ANEBEEENERKENEEZZERER « K-
casual and accessories. The travel category is the Group’s largest category and 7 (KB RE 4 - IREBR AEAEBRAERE
has been its traditional strength. The following table sets forth a breakdown B BESE#®E - TXREIIEHE 20154124318
of net sales by product category for the years ended December 31, 2015 and  &2014F 12 A31HIEFEIRERERE D MHE
December 31, 2014, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales.  FRERAM BEERMGEEFEABEH LK -

Year ended December 31,

HBZE12A31AILEFEE

2015vs 2014
20155822014 S ELBR
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  (decrease) excl. foreign
Net sales by brand: of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effectsta
y o US$°000 SHEFH Us$'000 SHEFH 1#2nCRL) BREE 5 2 &1
BmiEEI D HEFEE TR "R TR BRI AL EMORD) EA
M Travel fkiE 1,660,852 68.3% 1,654,402 70.4% 0.4% 8.7%
I Business!" @& 275,999 11.3% 256,228 10.9% 7.7% 16.3%
M Casual /KA 263,096 10.8% 252,069 10.7% 4.4% 10.8%
Accessories®? Fi i@ 183,899 7.6% 147,222 6.3% 24.9% 35.0%
Other EAth 48,631 2.0% 40,786 1.7% 19.2% 37.2%
Net sales $HE&EF58 2,432,477 100.0% 2,350,707 100.0% 3.5% 11.9%

Notes fzF
(1) Includes tablet and laptop cases.
BEFREMRFREMBER -
(2) Includes protective phone cases.
BEFRRER -
(3)  Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

REEEREEFRIINEEDRAFER S ENRERAEFNPIERAENE -
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Net Sales By Product Category 2015
= O 2%
REMEREISHIEE
" Travel FikiE 1 Accessories F4F
| Business %% Other EHfth

W Casual kA&

1%
1%
68%

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category
increased by US$144.3 million, or 8.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales in
the travel product category increased by US$6.5 million, or 0.4%. Country-specific
product designs and locally relevant marketing strategies continued to be the
key factors contributing to the Group’s success in the travel category. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales in the business product category increased by
US$41.8 million, or 16.3%. US Dollar reported net sales in the business product
category increased by US$19.8 million, or 7.7%, primarily due to growth in Europe
and Asia. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the casual product
category increased by US$27.2 million, or 10.8%. US Dollar reported net sales in
the casual product category increased by US$11.0 million, or 4.4%. This increase
was primarily attributable to the success of the Samsonite Red sub-brand and
the contribution from the Gregory brand, which was acquired on July 23, 2014.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the accessories category increased
by US$51.5 million, or 35.0%. US Dollar reported net sales in the accessories
category increased by US$36.7 million, or 24.9%, largely due to an increase of
US$25.2 million in net sales of protective phone cases sold under the Speck brand.

Excluding Speck and on a constant currency basis, net sales in the accessories
category increased by US$26.3 million, or 26.4%.

Country-specific product designs and locally relevant
marketing strategies continued to be the key factors
contributing to the Group's success.

BRAANERRTURDBEEBRRNE
AREBHEKRINEZHEE D -

= SRR BRI AR

2014
6% 2%

M%
M%
70%

Non-travel Products JEjiR3EEE
Net Sales US$(m) $HEEFRE(BEET)

+,|9 50/m
. 0

WExcluding foreign currency effects. fBREE 7872

WMERE R E - REERENEZE 2015612 A31
HEFERHEEFEREE2014F12A31MHLEF
IR 1443BEXITTES.7% ° AETTEH RN s
EmER G FBIE M AEFETR04% - K
BARBERJFARDE EHIREHN S SR DA
E$Elﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ¥ SR EEHE S o MBRE

RYE BABEMRERNNEEFHEERI8EEE
TLEK16.3% ° AT R IRAI RIS E s AR R SH 5 58
BRI98EBEETKT.7% @ TEZEUMN R Mg
REH - MBRELEE  KEERBENOHESFE
BE272HBETTE10.8% ° UETHMAIKBE
RIEREE FEER 11 0BSEETHLLY - BE
Ty F BN Samsonite Red FRFEEREKINIA RS
R 2014F 7 A 23 AFTIREER) Gregory 2RI E BIFT
B MBRIE X2 - BRI S E TG NG1.5
BHEBETH35.0% o LWETHROEGFERHEF
AN IN36.7 BEEITTK 24.9% + EZ MM Speck fhE
ETEFRRERNHE FRRIGM25 2B EETHN
B o WPk Speck RIZEE KIS E%E - BLiFEE R A0
EFREIE NN 26 3B EFEITEK26.4% ©
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Pl
* A

Y .
The Group sells products through two primary distribution channels: wholesale AEE@EBMEEEHHREHEESR  HBERT
and retail. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by distribution &  FEREINEHZE 2015412 A31 B K 2014912 A
channel for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, both in 31 BIEFEER S HEES S OHE FEAM - B
absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales. HERMLEE FREFEA DI

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31HLLEE

2015 vs 2014
2015 F 22014 F LB
Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  (decrease) excl. foreign
FOTR . of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effects
Net sales by distribution channel: US$000 EEEEREE US$000  BMEEE  EMOED) MBE e
B ERIEEI D HHEFE - FER HAL FER ARt E BINCHD) E R
B Wholesale #£3 1,903,687 78.3% 1,866,789 79.4% 2.0% 9.3%
Retail & 520,435 21.4% 474,768 20.2% 9.6% 22.5%
Other E A 8,355 0.3% 9,150 0.4% (8.7)% (8.7)%
Net sales $HEF8 2,432,477 100.0% 2,350,707 100.0% 3.5% 11.9%
Notes =k
(1) “Other” primarily consists of licensing income.
[Eft | TEQERREEA -

(2) Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

ZEEEEERFINEADRAFEREEERARAEFN TP IERAEMS -
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Net Sales By Distribution Channels 2015

1%

BN EREEDHHEE
M Wholesale #t3%
| Retail &
Other EAth

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased
by US$174.0 million, or 9.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales in the wholesale
channelincreased by US$36.9 million, or 2.0%. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales in the retail channel increased by US$106.8 million, or 22.5%, and US
Dollar reported net sales in the retail channel increased by US$45.7 million, or
9.6%. This increase was driven by the addition of 162 net new company-operated
stores during 2015, including 31 Rolling Luggage stores and 30 Chic Accent stores
from the respective acquisitions during 2015, as well as the continued strong
growth of the Group’s direct-to-consumer e-commerce business. On a same
store, constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel decreased by 0.7%
year-on-year. This was driven in part by a 6.5% decline in Asia as a result of fewer
visitors from Mainland China to Hong Kong (including Macaul, the Middle East
Respiratory Syndrome ("MERS”) outbreak in South Korea and generally weak
consumer sentiment in some other Asian countries. In addition, there was a 6.0%
decline in North America primarily due to the impact of the strong US Dollar on
foreign travelers to gateway tourist markets. These factors were partially offset by
growth of 8.3% and 2.6% in Europe and Latin America, respectively. The Group’s
same store analysis includes existing company-operated retail stores which have
been open for at least 12 months before the end of the relevant financial period.
The 22.5% constant currency net sales growth in the retail channel reflects the
Group's strategy of investing resources, including through acquisitions such as
Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent, to support the growth of its retail business.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, approximately US$205.8 million, or
8.5%, of the Group’s US Dollar reported net sales were derived from e-commerce
(comprising the Group's direct-to-consumer e-commerce business, which is
included within the retail channel, and net sales to e-retailers, which are included
within the wholesale channel]. This represents an increase of 32.5% compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014, when e-commerce comprised approximately
US$155.3 million, or 6.6%, of the Group’s net sales. Excluding foreign currency
effects, net sales to e-retailers increased by US$41.4 million, or 48.1%, for the
year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.
US Dollar reported net sales to e-retailers increased by US$34.8 million, or 40.4%.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the Group's direct-to-consumer
e-commerce business increased by US$21.3 million, or 30.8%, for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar
reported net sales in the direct-to-consumer e-commerce business increased by
US$15.7 million, or 22.6%.

1%

MBREE R 2 - BZE2015F 12 A3 HIEFERIH#
BHREHEFHEBRBE2014F12A31BIEFE

BREI1740E8ETLR9.3% ° LAETLHABFHLE
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522.5% @ MAETHRBNETEREHE FRHANY
R4 TEEEITLHKI. 6% ° WRIIZ K 2015 FF18
I62fEH B &S (BER2015F 5 IR 31 [
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(’E?ﬁii?ﬁ)ﬂﬁqﬂwimﬁﬁgf}i’“ PR IR P R AT
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’'s net sales in Asia increased by
US$113.9 million, or 12.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales for the region
increased by US$55.3 million, or 6.2%. Excluding net sales attributable to the
Gregory and Lipault brands in Asia, which were acquired during 2014, net sales
increased by US$97.9 million, or 11.1%, on a constant currency basis for the year
ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.

On a constant currency basis, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased
by US$46.3 million, or 9.6%, from the previous year, driven by the success of
the business-to-business and e-commerce channels in China, as well as the
Samsonite Red sub-brand, whose net sales increased by US$13.8 million, or
23.8%, on a constant currency basis. Excluding the Samsonite Red sub-brand, net
sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$32.5 million, or 7.7%, on a constant
currency basis. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the American
Tourister brand in the Asia region increased by US$34.6 million, or 9.0%, for the
year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.
Net sales of the High Sierra brand amounted to US$13.8 million in Asia during the
year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of 28.4% from the previous year on a
constant currency basis. The Group introduced the Hartmann brand in Asia during
2014, and this contributed US$5.4 million of the net sales growth during the year
ended December 31, 2015. Net sales of the Gregory brand in Asia amounted to
US$18.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2015 as the Group developed
products designed specifically for the tastes and preferences of consumers within
the region. The Group introduced Kamiliant, a value-conscious entry level brand,
in Asia during the second half of 2014, which contributed US$2.8 million of net
sales during the year ended December 31, 2015.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category
increased by US$66.5 million, or 10.4%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased
by US$24.8 million, or 3.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the previous year. Net sales in the casual product category increased by US$20.1
million, or 18.0%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales

HABERBRAR
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increased by US$13.0 million, or 11.7%, driven largely by the success of the
Samsonite Red sub-brand and the acquisition of the Gregorybrand in 2014, as well
as by growth in sales of the High Sierra brand. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales in the business product category increased by US$18.2 million, or 16.7%,
and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$10.9 million, or 10.1%, for the
year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the previous year. Net sales in the
accessories product category increased by US$2.1 million, or 8.4%, on a constant
currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$0.6 million, or
2.5%, compared to the previous year.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$89.1 million, or 11.8%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$41.0
million, or 5.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the previous
year, bolstered by strong growth in business-to-business sales. Net sales in the
retail channel increased by US$24.8 million, or 17.7%, on a constant currency
basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported net sales in the retail channel increased
by US$14.4 million, or 10.3%, driven by the addition of 39 net new stores opened
during 2015 and strong growth in the Group’s direct-to-consumer e-commerce
net sales, partially offset by a decrease in same store net sales. Direct-to-
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Net sales growth in Asia for the year ended December 31,
2015 continued to be driven by the success of the Samsonite
and American Tourister brands as well as the acquisition of

the Gregory brand in July 2014.

BZE2015F12831HILEE DHNENEEFHEEREESH
FE N American Tourister BIEBIKII AR A 2014 F 7 B U EE
Gregory & FHE)

consumer e-commerce sales in the region increased year-on-year by 48.5%,
on a constant currency basis, as the Group focused on expanding its presence
online. On a same store, constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel
decreased by 6.5% due to fewer visitors from Mainland China shopping in Hong
Kong (including Macau), the MERS outbreak in South Korea and generally weak
retail sentiment in certain other countries within the region.

Along with additional product offerings, the success of the Group’s business in
Asia has been bolstered by its continued focus on country-specific products and
marketing strategies to drive increased awareness of and demand for the Group’s
products. On a constant currency basis, net sales growth in Asia for the year ended
December 31, 2015 continued to be driven by the success of the Samsonite and
American Tourister brands as well as the acquisition of the Gregory brand in July
2014. 0On a constant currency basis, net sales increased in all countries in the Asian
region for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the previous year, except
for Malaysia and Indonesia, which decreased by 11.3% and 1.0%, respectively, due to
general economic conditions. Japan experienced strong constant currency growth
of 37.7% year-on-year driven by increased sales of the Samsonite brand and the
acquisition of the Gregory brand in July 2014. Excluding net sales attributable to
the Gregory brand, net sales in Japan increased by 26.7% on a constant currency
basis. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in China increased by 13.0%,
driven by sales of the Samsonite brand and the Samsonite Red sub-brand,
although growth in China decelerated in the second half due to some temporary
pressures related to changes in channel preferences, such as department stores
losing share to e-commerce, as well as uncertainties in the country’s short-term
economic outlook. Net sales in South Korea continued to grow, with an increase
of 4.5% on a constant currency basis, despite the negative impact from the MERS
outbreak. On a constant currency basis, net sales in India increased by 12.0% for
the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the previous year, driven by the

[
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BEEE  BZE2015F 12 A3 BIEFE - BNEAIEH
EFEIEREET I AE M American Tourister fnhg
HIRCIH A K 8 2014 55 7 A WBE Gregory R hEFTAEE) ©
RETEBEE  HE2015F12A31ALLFE - &
NEFRBRREE FEIREFEN - HHERAE R
ENfERSHE FREEBEBCERRM D AR 11.3% &
1.0%BRS o B ZASEAT 75 BE b 8 5 SR8 I R 72 2014
F7 AU Gregory ffEFTTEE) « $X138E F &
BREHER37.7% Wbk Gregory IR HEFHEE -
HAHE FHERETEEEREILR26.7% - REREHE
BEHDERENRITSRE (PINEERRAMEDE
BAEBREEFHEBE)ERIBOREES - EPE
WEBCERIRTHE  ERFBERTHENER
BRTE  MRELTE  PEESFHEITAE
fhh2 K Samsonite Red FRIEMHEEEE ML K
13.0% - REMERSIERTERAEVE  MBENIHEE
FREMEESGIER  RETEEEERRLLY
% American Tourister T E) - 1REE EHE
% BHE2015F 12 A3 AEFENEHEFHEEE

Net Sales US$(m) SHEFEE(ABEXTT)
12 8 M 2015 $947.6

+ .O%"

WExcluding foreign currency effects. fiBREE 5.8/ -

Adjusted EBITDA US$(m)
K EBITDA(BBETT)

/I fI 30 0 2015 $200.6
+ O%
"Excluding foreign currency effects. fBREE 7872 o

China Net Sales US$(m)
FEEEFRHE(EESET)

+,|3 OO/[”
. 0

"Excluding foreign currency effects. fBREE 7872 o



American Tourister brand. On a constant currency basis, net sales in Hong Kong
(including Macau) increased by 3.1% including the contribution from the Gregory
brand. Excluding net sales attributable to the Gregory brand, net sales in Hong
Kong (including Macau) decreased by 1.5% on a constant currency basis due to
lower tourist arrivals from Mainland China. Australia had strong constant currency
net sales growth of 39.4%, driven by the Samsonite and American Tourister
brands. The Group also entered the retail channel in Australia with the acquisition
of Rolling Luggage during 2015. The Group continued to penetrate the emerging
markets within the region with notable year-on-year constant currency net sales
growth in the Philippines and Thailand of 31.9% and 8.6%, respectively.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Asian region by
geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales.

2A3NBILEE

MOVE

WiTH YOULR DREEANS

FHNN12.0% © 5t K% Gregory IR BRI S FHE -
REEEEEE  BE(BERM)EE FEEM
3.1% ° #FR Gregory IR FEIEIHE F5 - BRFHES
B AR RIS - BB (BERM)IHEFEREE
EWEEAER A 1.5% o AT N American Tourister
MIEFTAEE) - SRIMNA)SHE F RIS 39.4% MRS E
EEMILR - REBEINE B 2015 F U8 Rolling
Luggage EERMTERE - REBEFZFERNF
5 - FEEE RFENETE BB EE S AIREF
HR31.9% K% 8.6% + RKIFIRIE

TREFFNEE2015F 12831 B KX 20145F 12 A31H
LEF Eirubig i B 8]0 K e M i (2 S5 F SRR A -
LA YHE RG2S FRAREE D YR -

2015 vs 2014
20154 E2 2014 F b8

Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  (decrease) excl. foreign
Net sales by geographic location' ssow | BesE ussom | WERE  #n(as) WRE SR
ity B &5 RSHEFE" ES HAL EST BAL AR M CAD) B S
China HE 252,722 26.7% 227,454 25.5% 11.1% 13.0%
South Korea F#2 184,141 19.4% 189,502 21.2% (2.8]% 4.5%
India ENEE 135,066 14.3% 126,653 14.2% 6.6% 12.0%
Japan A& 93,668 9.9% 77,855 8.7% 20.3% 37.7%
Hong Kong®? &2 77,224 8.1% 74,899 8.4% 3.1% 3.1%
Australia BN 56,203 5.9% 48,613 5.5% 15.6% 39.4%
Other HAfth 148,578 15.7% 147,282 16.5% 0.9% 6.6%
Net sales SHEF8 947,602 100.0% 892,258 100.0% 6.2% 12.8%
Notes FffzE

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.
REEEEFENHIVESMARRHEERNER - X T -ERLREBEEERMENER -
(2) Includes Macau.

BIERP -

(3] Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

EEEEREERFINEADRAFEREERARAEFN TP IERIEMS -
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NOR [

AMERICA™

Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in North America increased
by US$56.6 million, or 7.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales for the North American
region increased by US$50.0 million, or 6.6%. Excluding net sales attributable to the
Speck and Gregory brands, which were acquired during 2014, net sales increased by
US$22.5 million, or 3.4%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported net
sales increased by US$15.9 million, or 2.4%.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$17.1 million, or 3.4%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$11.4
million, or 2.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior
year. Net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$12.6 million, or
18.3%, on a constant currency basis, while US Dollar reported net sales increased
by US$12.0 million, or 17.5%, driven by point-of-sale expansion. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales of the High Sierra brand decreased by US$6.2 million, or
8.4%, and US Dollar reported net sales decreased by US$6.5 million, or 8.9%, due to
inventory reduction efforts by certain customers, lower sales to department stores
and the non-repetition of certain promotional sales that had occurred during 2014.
US Dollar reported net sales of the Hartmann brand amounted to US$14.4 million, a
constant currency decrease of 5.6%, as the Group continued its efforts to redefine the
product assortment and increase brand awareness. The Speck and Gregory brands
contributed US$117.7 million and US$13.3 million, respectively, in US Dollar reported
net sales for the year.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category increased
by US$26.7 million, or 5.2%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$21.1
million, or 4.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. Net sales in the casual product category increased by US$0.4
million, or 0.4%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported net sales
were relatively consistent year-on-year. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales in the business product category increased by US$3.4 million, or 3.9%, and US
Dollar reported net sales increased by US$3.0 million, or 3.5%, year-on-year, due to
expanded product offerings and an additional US$1.0 million in net sales of Speck

HABERBRAR

Samsonite International S.A.

MBREN 2
EEtEMNGHEE
FEBR56.6BEETLHKT L% °
M [ S
2014 FFTUREE Y Speck [ Gregory SR FEAL BSHE 5

AREBREZE2015F12 A31 B ILEF
SRR E2014F 128318 1F
LAZETT 2 3RAEE
TFRBILINS0.0 B EEITH6.6% © MR

B SHEFRRIL 22 5 A BRI 3.4% - TAETT
2 HE FRREE B ELABL NS IBBET
H2.4% ©

WERER ZE - mAFML - 822015612 A 31
AIFEFFEREEEFHEER17TIEEELS

3.4% * ﬁﬁM%TEEE*&E’]iﬁ SREBRIE AN 11 4B BT
52.3% o IR IHERBFTTSE) - American Tourister

nuﬂﬂfﬁﬁxﬁ%ﬁhlﬁm?ﬁz%ﬁiﬂzﬁﬁ 6BEEITH
18.3% » M IASETTFRERAIHEFRERIEIN2.0B &%
JLE17.5% - BRETEPREET - BEARIHEE
BETBRARBR2014FHEITHNE THEHNREEET
1B - HUMBREE X522 - High Sierra E2SHE F58
W62 EEBETLHE.LY » MIAETTERERAEE F5E
AR 6.5 BEFIT8.9% ° Hartmann FakRIASETT
HRRAEEFEALLABEET  RETEEEER

D5.6%  WASEBREESEMELE - KIGINAE
HAE o FA + Speck K Gregory &5 Bl ALAZETT

RN E FEAR 1177 88E TR I133EEET °

WERE R 2 HZE 2015912 A31 BIEFEREEE
ERINE FEREHE 201412 A3 BILEEIER
267 EBFEILHE.2% © MIAFITTERIRASHE FEBRIIE

M2 1 EBETLHL1% - KEEMRER & FHEEL
BEFEREEELR0LBEETH0.4%  MAEITTH
HEEE FREANRFAEE N - MBRERLTE -
EREREE FEIER 4T EETHI 9%  MUE
TLERTRAHE F AR TSR3 0B B ELHK3 5%



Net Sales US$(m) SHEFEE(BE=TT)

+7 Loy
. 0

" Excluding foreign currency effects. fiBREE 5 $/ £ o

2015

+/. %"

protective laptop and tablet cases. Net sales in the accessories category increased by
US$25.6 million, or 38.6%, on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported net
sales increased by US$25.3 million, or 38.2%, primarily due to an additional US$25.2
million in net sales of Speck protective phone cases from the previous year.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$53.3 million, or 8.7%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$48.0
million, or 7.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. Excluding contributions from the acquisitions completed in 2014
and foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by 4.1%.
Net sales in the retail channel increased by US$3.4 million, or 2.2%, on a constant
currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$2.0 million, or
1.3%, year-on-year. Net sales growth in the retail channel was driven by sales made
through the Group’s e-commerce website, which increased by 18.3% on a constant
currency basis year-on-year, as well as by the addition of 16 net new stores opened
during 2015. On a same store, constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel
decreased by 6.0% due to the negative impact that the strengthening US Dollar had
on foreign tourist arrivals to gateway markets in the United States, as well as the
impact of the inclement winter weather during the first quarter of 2015.

The overall increase in net sales in North America was due to the Group’s continued
focus on marketing and selling regionally developed products, as well as the
acquisitions made during 2014. The focus on regional product development enabled
the Group to bring to market products that are designed to appeal to the tastes and
preferences of North American consumers, resulting in strong consumer demand.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Canada increased by 19.3% where
the Group’s wholesale business continued to thrive with increased sales of the
Samsonite brand.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the North American
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December
31, 2014, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BILEE

Adjusted EBITDA US$(m) 582 EBITDA(E B X£7T)
$124.2

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. fiBRE 5§/ o

TR EREMRES K Speck HFIREI K TFIRE
PSR ER TG REEINEE FRE 1.0 A &R TTATE » et
HRHE FRRE T EEEELR 25 6EEETK
38.6% * MIAETERBAHE FREAPER253BFHE
J08%38.2% + £ B HMNEF Speck B FHARER TR
FIMEEFRE 252 B8 FTTH -

WHRELFE  HE2015F12A31BILEE#E
REHEE FHEREE2014F 12 A31 BIEEEE M
53.3HBET8.7% * MIAET AR EFEER
N80 B EFITET7.9% ° MR 2014 F e HIUR
BEAMNEMRERRE - 2 REHEFREILN
41% BERBEHEFRHREETEEEERRILE
BRI 2.2% + AT R R A 85 & F 58 AR 18
R20BEBEELNK1.3% TERENHEFEERTY
SEBAEENEFEEEGSEERETEBE
EIRFILR18.3%FE) - LAK 2015 F AFIE N 16
IR - IREREHE T BB EE - BRETR
PUINB R R ERE BRI TISIER AT E -
ME20M5EFE—FELFTRIESLHTE  WTE
RBIHEFFERD6.0% °

EEMEE FRERERRNAEEFETTEH
MHEEANMENERARR 2014 FETHRBE
T o FENR AR EEMSANEBRLAETIS LT
AILEMBBERRRENNER - SHBEEELR
DB - IYAERIEHERERMEE - A&
BN IMEARNIEEBEFED R - SHIRERLS
& MEREEFRERFIER193%

TREFIEZ20159F12 A31H K2014F12 A31H

LFEFE IR B S5 el N @ S F AR
LARBEHE Mo (b 1@ S SRR B D EL S IBR -

2015vs 2014

2015 E2 2014 FLLEL

Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  [(decrease) excl. foreign
. . of net sales of net sales (decrease) currency effectsi
Net sales by geographic location™: US§000  GEMUEE  US$000 SRR mM(ED) WS EE B0
iy B 80 HSHEFE TR "R ESH Bt Aotk I CHD) B 5 H?
United States B 769,505 94.8% 720,737 94.7% 6.8% 6.8%
Canada lIE&X 41,799 5.2% 40,573 5.3% 3.0% 19.3%
Net sales $HEF8E 811,304 100.0% 761,310 100.0% 6.6% 7.4%

Notes FffzE

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.

FEEFEFENRHAVEIARREEERNER - AT -—ERKINEBEERAENER

(2) Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the prior year to current year local currency results.

REEEREERFINEADRAFERE SN EARAEFN TP HERFEMRS -
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EUROPE

Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Europe increased
by US$98.5 million, or 17.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales for the
region decreased by US$13.2 million, or 2.4%, due to the negative impact of
the strengthening US Dollar. Excluding net sales attributable to the Lipault and
Gregory brands, which were acquired during 2014, net sales increased by US$87.6
million, or 15.9%, on a constant currency basis.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased
by US$22.9 million, or 4.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales of the Samsonite
brand decreased by US$63.0 million, or 12.7%. Net sales of the American Tourister
brand increased by US$37.0 million, or 88.3%, on a constant currency basis, and
US Dollar reported net sales increased by US$21.9 million, or 52.2%, compared
to the prior year. American Tourister comprised 11.7% of the net sales in the
European region during 2015 compared to 7.5% during 2014 as the Group focused
on driving growth of the American Tourister brand and increasing its presence in
Europe. Net sales of the Lipault brand amounted to US$10.9 million during 2015

Net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by
US$37.0 million, or 88.3%, on a constant currency basis,
as the Group focused on driving growth of the brand and
increasing its presence in Europe.

HRAEEZR
AREMSDE - ZmiEHEE
5% 88.3% °

TR R PABUM (Y 32 FR 0 E
EMEII0EEET

5EEA$E§ﬂAmerican Tourister
FREREEERE
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Net Sales US$(m) $HEFF(BE=TT)

_|_1 7 70/[”
. 0

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. HiBREE 5% 5/4 -

Adjusted EBITDA US$(m)
KA EBITDA(EBX7T)

+16 90/[”
. 0

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. #iBREE X8/ o
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compared to US$5.4 million from the date of its acquisition on April 1, 2014 through
the end of 2014. Net sales of the Gregory brand amounted to US$2.6 million during
2015 compared to US$0.1 million from the date of its acquisition on July 23, 2014
through the end of 2014.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category
increased by US$47.5 million, or 10.9%, and US Dollar reported net sales decreased
by US$32.7 million, or 7.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in
the casual product category increased by US$4.2 million, or 26.6%, year-on-year,
mainly attributable to the contributions from the Gregory and High Sierra brands.
Successful new business product introductions under the Samsonite brand drove
net sales in the business product category to increase by US$19.6 million, or
39.0%, on a constant currency basis, while US Dollar reported net sales increased
by US$7.1 million, or 14.1%.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by
US$27.6 million, or 6.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
previous year, and US Dollar reported net sales decreased by US$41.6 million, or
10.1%, year-on-year. Net sales in the retail channel increased by US$71.5 million,
or 48.9%, on a constant currency basis, and US Dollar reported net sales increased
by US$29.0 million, or 19.8%, over the same period. The increase was driven by the
addition of 79 net new stores opened during 2015, including 21 Rolling Luggage
stores and 30 Chic Accent stores. On a same store, constant currency basis, net
sales in the retail channel increased by 8.3%. Direct-to-consumer e-commerce
sales in the region increased year-on-year by 24.3% on a constant currency basis.

Germany, the Group's leading market in Europe representing 14.7% of total US
Dollar reported net sales in the region, achieved 17.4% constant currency sales
growth during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. The
United Kingdom posted strong constant currency net sales growth of 41.5% over
the previous year, including the results from the acquisition of Rolling Luggage in
February 2015. The Group’s business in Italy continued to improve with constant
currency net sales growth of 18.9% over the previous year, including the results
from the acquisition of Chic Accent on September 30, 2015. Net sales in France

HAALLBEZET - R2015%F  Gregory miERI$H
EFEA26BEETL MB2014F7 A 238
ZmEEBRE204FRENBEEFHA/0IEEH
E
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EN47 5 EBETH10.9% A= TT B IR 8
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HEf o RATEE MBI TR I LSS E RS
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19.6 BEZEITE39.0% » MIAZETTERIRA $H & F R
EM7IBEEETH14.1% ©
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increased by 8.7% on a constant currency basis, including the contribution from
the Lipault brand. Excluding net sales attributable to the Lipault brand, net sales
in France increased by 4.4% on a constant currency basis. The Group continued
to penetrate the emerging markets of Turkey and South Africa with year-on-year
constant currency net sales growth of 39.7% and 29.2%, respectively. The Group's
business in Russia was negatively impacted by the economic downturn in the
country and the devaluation of the Russian Ruble, but still generated constant
currency net sales growth of 9.0% year-on-year. On June 26, 2015, the Group
acquired the 40% non-controlling interest in its Russian subsidiary.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the European region
by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,

BHZ12A3MHILEE

B  RETEELE
(BFE Lipault mEHWERL) ©

EBISHE FREIERA8.7%
WMBR Lipault fb b8 FEAG

REHE T FENEEFRRETEBEEER
La% o AEERBELFETIHEREE  RREHE
MR FREETEEHEFEERSFIA39.7% &
29.2% ° BE RN EE AR EEBZ BZELBETR
kERFTEMNRENAEYE  HHETERHEE

SEEEIRFIER9.0% - R2015F 6 A26H » NEE
A B L5k 2R ET B BB X A 40% IR AAE RS -

TREHNEHZ2015F 12 A31H K& 2014F 12 A31H

IEF R AL & &0 B BUM b [ 35 & F RREA AR
IABSHE R0 %R H & F AR A D LI -

2015 vs 2014
20156 E2 2014 FLLE

Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage Percentage increase  (decrease) excl. foreign

Zi A EE D HEE ,ﬂﬁ“] FET HALk EST Bk HAL () S ttm
Germany &[] 80,252 14.7% 81,847 14.7% (1.9)% 17.6%
France A 68,393 12.6% 75,473 13.5% (9.4)% 8.7%
Belgium® b FIBF @ 64,411 11.8% 65,239 11.7% (1.3)% 18.6%
Italy ZAF 60,614 11.1% 60,799 10.9% (0.3)% 18.9%
United Kingdom 2 59,774 11.0% 45,684 8.2% 30.8% 41.5%
Spain FIESF 41,055 7.5% 44,812 8.0% (8.4)% 9.6%
Russia fZ&HT 27,085 5.0% 40,037 7.2% (32.4)% 9.0%
Other Efth 143,156 26.3% 144,043 25.8% (0.6)% 18.9%
Net sales $HE 3R 544,740 100.0% 557,934 100.0% (2.4)% 17.7%

Notes Fff=E

1
consumers were actually located.
AEBHEFEORGAVESHRREEERNER » IR —EAKMHEEERIENER o

(2)
of direct shipments to distributors, customers and agents in other countries.

The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

Net sales in Belgium were US$18.8 million and US$21.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Remaining sales consisted

BZE2015F 12831 BR2014F 12831 BILFE » EHRBNHEFEIFR188EBELIR2ITEBET - RTHHEBREEREFTHUARN I - TFRA

b
(3)
ZEEEWEERFNEEDRAFER S ERXERAEFHFHIERFERE -

Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Latin America
increased by US$11.3 million, or 8.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales for
the region decreased by US$10.1 million, or 7.8%, as the Group was negatively
impacted by the strengthening of the US Dollar

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased
by US$1.9 million, or 3.1%, and US Dollar reported net sales decreased by
US$8.7 million, or 14.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. Net sales of the American Tourister brand
were relatively flat on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported net sales
decreased by 17.3% year-on-year. Sales of women’'s handbags under the Secret
brand name enjoyed continued success, with constant currency growth of 14.4%
and US Dollar reported net sales of US$13.4 million in 2015. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales of the local brands Saxoline and Xtrem increased by

12.9% and 21.1%, respectively.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category
increased by US$3.6 million, or 6.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the prior year. US Dollar reported net sales decreased by US$6.8
million, or 11.3%. Net sales in the casual product category increased by US$2.6
million, or 7.8%, on a constant currency basis. US Dollar reported net sales
decreased by US$2.3 million, or 7.0%. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales in the business product category increased by 5.8% and US Dollar reported
net sales decreased by US$1.3 million, or 10.3%.

Net Sales US$(m) $HEFEZE(HEXTT)

+8 b
. 0

+8. 9

1 Excluding foreign currency effects. fiBRE 5 878
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1 Excluding foreign currency effects. fiBRE 5 84 o



Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased
by US$4.1 million, or 4.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported net sales decreased by
US$10.4 million, or 11.4%, year-on-year. Net sales in the retail channelincreased
by US$7.2 million, or 18.5%, on a constant currency basis as the Group opened
28 net new company-operated retail stores during 2015. US Dollar reported net
sales increased by 0.8%. On a same store, constant currency basis, net sales
in the retail channel increased by 2.6%. The Group continues to invest in retail
expansion in Latin America to gain market share and drive future profitability.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Chile improved by 12.9% year-
on-year. US Dollar reported net sales for Chile decreased by US$1.0 million,

r 1.8%, as US Dollar reported results were negatively impacted by foreign
exchange rates. The constant currency net sales growth in Chile was primarily
due to sales of the women’s handbag brand Secret, as well as the Saxoline and
Xtrem brands. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Mexico increased
by 15.2% for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year,
driven by the Samsonite, American Tourister and Xtrem brands. Net sales in
Brazil decreased by 28.2% on a constant currency basis and US Dollar reported
net sales decreased by 47.1% due to the economic downturn in the country that
has impacted consumer spending. The Group continues to invest in Brazil, where
the Group’s presence has historically been under-represented, to drive future
net sales growth and gain market share. Excluding Brazil, net sales in Latin
America increased by 14.9% on a constant currency basis and decreased by 1.1%
on a US Dollar reported basis for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2014.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Latin American
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional
net sales.

Net sales by geographic location!":

iU B E D IHEFRE US=‘F$§US_S

Chile &£ 58,898

Mexico 278 5f 39,830

Brazil? B ® 18,925

Other® Hfh 12,953

Net sales $HE2%H 130,606
Notes PfizF

WERELFE  BEHZE2014F12A31BIEEER
Lt EE2015F 12 B31 AL FEH B REHEF
BEMNANABETRLL% ° UETTHBRNEEF
BANRER D104 BEERITE11.4% - BRAER
R2015FAFEM2BERENHTER - WTE

REHEFEREATEEEEENT 2BEETLK
18.5% ° LAZE T ER TR A SHE F FEIL N 0.8% © 1ZAE R

JEHEE B R ?ﬁ/ﬁéﬁﬁ%é%ﬁi‘§2 6% °
AEBMBENN T EMETSEREER - LUIENMS
MR RS ARKBFIEES -

MBRELTE  BNOHEEFHIRFERI29% -
HEERNETHRNEEREXZEEFE - UETH
HABEFEEFERL1.0BEETH1.8%  BF|
METERHEFBERIZHARNZIFELE
Secret ~ Saxoline & Xtrem ShIERISHEREFTEL - T
ZBE ~ American Tourister & Xtrem T2 T8 - #f
MIERZE  BZE2015F 12 A31 B IEFEEAF
HEFHEEEAFRR15.2% - REFTEERE - B
FASHEF R A 28.2% » MIAETCHRMHEFHE
B 471%  TERREAKSERRITEHER
SATE - R AREBRTREANTISHERE
REBEBNZBIETIRE - UEBIRRIHE F58
HRMIENTISHTE - MGEE - BEE 2014512
ASTBHIEFEMRL - #E2015F 12 A3 BILFE
T EMOHEE FRIRETEEEREIER14.9%
MR AETTERREER A 1.1% ©

TRETIEZE2015F12 531 H KR 20145124318
IEFE IR A B &5 eR T SR R 3 5 F AR
A ABHERERIEEFEARA NI

Percentage Percentage increase
Percentage increase (decrease) excl. foreign
of net sales (decrease) currency effectsu
SHEFH 2GR 4) Mﬁﬁﬁﬂ’iﬂ’y
i Baot BEMORD) B A
45.1% (1.8)% 12.9%
30.5% (3.5)% 15.2%
14.5% (47.1)% (28.2)%
9.9% 9.3% 22.9%
100.0% (7.8)% 8.6%

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the country in which its end

consumers were actually located.
FEEHEFENHFVEIFRREEERNER » IR -ERKIREEEBRITNER -
(2) The net sales figure for Brazil includes net sales to third party distributors in Brazil.

BENEEFRBEEENRCANE=T2HBFHNEE -

(3] The net sales figure for the “Other” geographic location includes sales in Argentina, Colombia, Panama, Peru and through the Group’s distribution center in Uruguay, but

does not include sales in Brazil to third party distributors.

[Hfs | —MiENHEEFRABEEERARE - FRUED  BEERUEFLNHERFIEEEBSRHENDHPOEHWHEE - ETEERBEYE=S 2 HBELN

HE

(4) Results stated on a constant currency basis are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the previous year to current year local currency results.

REEEBELERIINEEDNAFERER SR RERABEFNTIERFERE -
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The Group remains committed to enhancing brand and product

awareness and driving additional net sales growth through
focused marketing activities.

AEEGEEFBIEHEHETHRAMEMNERANZE R HEE
ERMHEE FEIER ©

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

Cost of sales increased by US$46.6 million, or 4.2%, to US$1,153.5 million
(representing 47.4% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2015 from
US$1,106.9 million (representing 47.1% of net sales) for the year ended December
31,2014,

Gross profit increased by US$35.1 million, or 2.8%, to US$1,279.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015 from US$1,243.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Gross profit margin decreased to 52.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2015 from 52.9% for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales in 2015 was attributable
to several factors. The strengthening of the US Dollar has negatively impacted
the cost of the Group’'s product purchases in US Dollars that were then sold
in local currency. In addition, gross profit margins have decreased due to the
expansion of the American Tourister brand in Europe and business-to-business
sales accounting for a greater proportion of the channel mix in Asia, both of which
typically yield lower margins. These factors were marginally offset by reductions in
commodity prices during the second half of 2015.

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Distribution expenses increased by US$39.5 million, or 6.3%, to US$665.8 million
(representing 27.4% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2015 from
US$626.3 million (representing 26.6% of net sales) for the year ended December
31, 2014. This increase was primarily due to the increase in sales volume in 2015.
Distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales increased slightly year-on-
year primarily due to increased costs from the Group's retail expansion strategy,
investment in the infrastructure of the Group’s business in Latin America,
investment in the geographical expansion of the American Tourister brand and the
integration of acquisitions.

MARKETING EXPENSES

The Group spent US$132.1 million (representing 5.4% of net sales] on marketing
2015 compared to US$144.7 million
(representing 6.2% of net sales] for the year ended December 31, 2014, a decrease

during the year ended December 37,

of US$12.7 million, or 8.8%. On a constant currency basis, marketing expenses
were relatively in line with the previous year. The Group scaled back marketing
spend during 2015 to help mitigate foreign currency pressures. Marketing
expenses, as a percentage of net sales, was also impacted by increased sales of
acquired brands and strong organic sales growth. The Group continued to employ
targeted and focused advertising and promotional campaigns. The Group believes
the success of its advertising campaigns is evident in its net sales growth, and
remains committed to enhancing brand and product awareness and driving
additional net sales growth through focused marketing activities.

HABERBRAR

[ Samsonite International S.A.
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses increased by US$3.3 million, or 2.2%, to
US$154.5 million (representing 6.4% of net sales) for the year ended December
31,2015 from US$151.1 million (representing 6.4% of net sales] for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Although general and administrative expenses increased
slightly in absolute terms, these expenses remained constant as a percentage of
net sales as the Group maintained tight control of its fixed cost base and leveraged
it against strong sales growth. Share-based compensation expense, a non-cash
expense included in general and administrative expenses, amounted to US$15.2
million, an increase of US$4.2 million from the previous year due to the additional
share options granted in 2015. Excluding share-based compensation expense,
general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of net sales, decreased by
30 basis points compared to the previous year.

OTHER EXPENSES

The Group incurred other expenses of US$17.8 million and US$22.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Other
expenses for 2015 included acquisition-related costs of US$8.9 million, which
were primarily comprised of costs associated with due diligence and integration
activities, severance, and professional and legal fees associated with both the
Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent acquisitions that were completed in 2015, as
well as other contemplated acquisitions. Other expenses for 2014 included
acquisition-related costs of US$13.5 million, which were primarily comprised
of costs associated with due diligence and integration activities, severance, and
professional and legal fees for the acquisitions of Lipault, Speck Products and
Gregory that were completed during 2014.

OPERATING PROFIT

On a constant currency basis, the Group’s operating profit increased by US$27.9
million, or 9.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. Excluding acquisition-related costs, the Group's operating
profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased by US$23.5 million, or
7.5%, on a constant currency basis, year-on-year. Further excluding share-based
compensation expense, which increased by US$4.3 million year-on-year, operating
profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased by US$27.8 million, or 8.6%,
on a constant currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported operating profit
of US$308.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased by US$9.6
million, or 3.2%, from US$299.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 due

to the factors noted above.

—RRATHBX
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NET FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs increased by US$0.9 million, or 5.4%, to US$17.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015 from US$16.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2014. This increase was primarily attributable to a US$1.5 million increase
in the expense recognized for the change in fair value of put options related to
agreements with certain holders of non-controlling interests, marginally offset by
a US$0.5 million decrease in interest expense due to lower debt levels during 2015.
Foreign exchange losses were relatively flat year-on-year.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

On a constant currency basis, profit before income tax increased by US$24.1
million, or 8.5%, to US$306.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 from
US$282.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported profit
before income tax increased by US$8.7 million, or 3.1%, to US$291.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015 from US$282.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 due to the factors noted above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

On a constant currency basis, income tax expense increased by US$3.7 million,
or 4.9%, to US$80.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 from US$77.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported income tax
expense decreased by US$3.0 million, or 3.9%, to US$74.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015 from US$77.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The Group’s consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 25.4% and 27.3%
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The
effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average income tax rate from those
jurisdictions in which the Group is subject to tax, adjusted for permanent book/tax
differences, tax incentives, changes in tax reserves and changes in unrecognized
deferred tax assets. The decrease in the Group's effective tax rate was primarily
due to changes in profit mix among high and low tax jurisdictions and changes in
certain tax reserves.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

On a constant currency basis, profit for the year increased by US$20.4 million,
or 9.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. Excluding acquisition-related costs, the Group’s profit for the
year, on a constant currency basis, increased by US$16.0 million, or 7.3%, year-
on-year. Further excluding share-based compensation expense, which increased
by US$4.3 million, profit for the year increased by US$20.3 million, or 8.8%, on a
constant currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported profit for the year of
US$217.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased by US$11.7
million, or 5.7%, from US$205.4 million for the previous year. Profit for the year was
adversely impacted by the strengthening of the US Dollar, increased costs from the
Group’s retail store expansion, slightly lower gross profit margin, the investment
in the geographical expansion of the American Tourister brand in Europe and the
investment in the Group’s business in Latin America. These adverse impacts were
marginally offset by the Group reducing its advertising expenditures.
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On a constant currency basis, profit attributable to the equity holders increased
by US$19.9 million, or 10.7%, compared to the prior year. Excluding acquisition-
related costs, the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders, on a constant
currency basis, increased by US$15.5 million, or 7.8%, year-on-year. Further
excluding share-based compensation expense, which increased by US$4.3 million
on a constant currency basis year-on-year, profit attributable to equity holders
increased by US$19.8 million, or 9.4%, on a constant currency basis. US Dollar

reported profit attributable to the equity holders was US$197.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015, an increase of US$11.4 million, or 6.1%, from US$186.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

On a constant currency basis, Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure,
increased by US$19.6 million, or 9.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Further excluding the share-
based compensation expense noted above, Adjusted Net Income increased by
US$23.9 million, or 11.0%, on a constant currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar
reported Adjusted Net Income increased by US$10.7 million, or 5.2%, to US$216.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 from US$206.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014. Adjusted Net Income was impacted by the factors noted
above. See the reconciliation of profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income below
for a detailed discussion of the Group’s results excluding certain non-recurring
costs and charges and other non-cash charges that impacted US Dollar reported
profit for the year.

Basic earnings per share ("Basic EPS”) and diluted earnings per share ("Diluted
EPS”) increased by 6.1% to US$0.140 for the year ended December 31, 2015 from
US$0.132 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The weighted average number of
shares utilized in the Basic EPS calculation increased by 1.4 million shares from
December 31, 2014 as a result of shares issued upon exercise of share options by
certain participants in the Group’s Share Award Scheme. The weighted average
number of shares utilized in the Basic EPS calculation increased by 625 thousand
shares from December 31, 2013 as a result of shares issued upon exercise of
share options by certain participants in the Group’s Share Award Scheme. The
weighted average number of shares outstanding utilized in the Diluted EPS
calculation increased by 2.8 million shares from December 31, 2014 as certain
outstanding share options became dilutive during 2015. The weighted average
number of shares outstanding utilized in the Diluted EPS calculation increased by
2.5 million shares from December 31, 2013 as certain outstanding share options
became dilutive during 2014.

HABERBRAR

Samsonite International S.A.
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Adjusted Basic EPS and adjusted Diluted EPS increased to US$0.154 and US$0.154,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2015 from US$0.147 and US$0.146,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2014.

ADJUSTED EBITDA

On a constant currency basis, Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, increased
by US$48.5 million, or 12.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA increased
by US$16.8 million, or 4.4%, to US$401.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2015 from US$384.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. US Dollar
reported Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.5% from 16.4%. The Group
continued to maintain tight control of its fixed cost base while experiencing strong
sales growth in its core business.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group's profit for the year
to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

KRAERSREARF REARGREFRFSHIA
HZE2014F12A31BIEFEM0.147ETR0.146
ERXDRIEINEHZE2015F12A31BIEFED
0.154F LK% 0.154FTL ©

#EFAE EBITDA

RETEBEE HE2015F12A31BLEFEN
CHEEBITDA(—BIEIFRS Bt 2 TR )RHE
E2014F12A3VBIEFELINLS5EEETK
12.6% o AT BRI EBITDAHE E 2014 F
12A31AIEFEM3IBLIFEERILILMNI68FESE
L 4.L% EEE2015F 12 A31 BIEFEER401.2
BEEL c UETHBMLCFHEEBITDAFEERA
16.4% FFZ16.5% o NEEEERRE G EEERK
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TREFNEZE2015F12 831 H KX 2014F 12 A31H
1EFF[E AN EE B A P g A1) BRAT SRR EBITDA RIBR -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (A FET2%1)

Profit for the year FRER

Plus (Minus): INGRL -
Income tax expense FrSHEX
Finance costs BIiSE A
Finance income 753N
Depreciation e
Amortization 5|

EBITDA EBITDA

Plus: hn:
Share-based compensation expense LARR 19 2 A HY 7 B B =2
Other adjustments!” HitnFRzn

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA growth
Adjusted EBITDA margin

AR EBITDA
KA EBITDA R
AR EBITDAF M=

217,017 205,354
74,043 77,018
18,679 17,383

(868) (478)
48,985 42,588
10,590 9,180

368,446 351,045
15,215 11,041
17,526 22,259

401,187 384,345

4.6% 13.8%
16.5% 16.4%

Note Pzt

(1) Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement, which includes acquisition-related costs of US$8.9 million and

US$13.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

HiARIZORGERERTH [Hpx ] EhaFEEZE2015F 12831 AR 2014512831 BILFENWBERERSE - 251R8IBBETRI1B5BEET °

The Group continued to maintain tight control of its fixed cost

base while experiencing strong sales growth in its core business.

AEEEERERHEERAAS - B RORBHHEHREE
B -

Adjusted EBITDA US$(m)
KB EBITDA(BEETT)

119 by TR
. 0

Excluding foreign currency effects. #BREE 7872 o
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The following tables present reconciliations from profit (loss) for the year to
Adjusted EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended December 31, 2015 and

December 31, 2014:

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

(AFETL25])

Profit (loss) for the year

Plus (Minus):
Income tax expense
Finance costs
Finance income
Depreciation
Amortization

EBITDA

Plus (Minus):

Share-based compensation
expense

Other adjustments!”
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA growth

Adjusted EBITDA growth,
constant currency basis

Adjusted EBITDA

FRER

O™ -
FriS%iBZ (%)
B E A
BRI A
nE

EBITDA

O™ -
LU0 2451

e[

Hihazn

T EBITDA

KR EBITDAER

#EREEEBITDAER

REEEWERE

AR EBITDAR) M=

TREHEE2015F12A31HKX2014F12A31H
It FEEi R EERT TR (EE) BEAE
EBITDA¥IER :

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZE2015512A3NALEE

North Latin
America Europe America Corporate
dESM BUM W TEM ¥
83,752 33,078 34,479 (3,980) 69,688 217,017
29,382 21,680 16,982 2,743 3,256 74,043
2,167 1,327 1,115 4,816 9,254 18,679
(488) (2) (444) 66 = (868)
15,084 11,553 17,608 2,345 2,395 48,985
5,233 1,347 1,720 2,256 34 10,590
135,130 68,983 71,460 8,246 84,627 368,446
1,116 2,704 1,313 41 10,041 15,215
64,314 52,466 19,607 2,640 (121,501) 17,526
200,560 124,153 92,380 10,927 (26,833) 401,187
5.8% 6.7% (3.00% (0.1)% (3.2)% 4.6%
11.3% 7.7% 16.9% 8.9% (3.2)% 12.6%
21.2% 15.3% 17.0% 9.1% nmBEZE 16.5%

Notes FffzE

(1) Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement which includes acquisition-related costs. Regional results include

intra-group royalty income/expense.

Hit AR T EAEGERERTHN A% ] B aFRBaERA - hEXEaEEBRBHERBA/BIX

nm Not meaningful. EE °
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Year ended December 31, 2014
BZE2014F12A3ALFE

North Latin
[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) America Europe America Corporate
(UFET251) k=M &M R T =M il 3
Profit for the year FRER 80,706 29,797 45,477 4,349 45,025 205,354
Plus (Minus): e -
Income tax expense s (E%R)

(benefit) 24,232 20,177 22,049 (926) 11,486 77,018
Finance costs B%ER 3,446 751 1,776 (13) 11,423 17,383
Finance income A ON (354) (6) (107 (9) (2) (478)
Depreciation e 14,333 8,731 15,678 2,071 1,775 42,588
Amortization s 4,302 1,389 1,525 1,930 34 9,180

EBITDA EBITDA 126,665 60,839 86,398 7,402 69,741 351,045
Plus (Minus): e -
Share-based DA 43 A Y

compensation MR

expense 719 2,285 2,012 263 5,762 11,041
Other adjustments!” Hibgzen 62,217 53,186 6,805 3,275 (103,224) 22,259

Adjusted EBITDA KR EBITDA 189,601 116,310 95,215 10,940 (27,721) 384,345
Adjusted EBITDA margin A% EBITDA F)E= 21.2% 15.3% 17.1% 8.4% nmEEZ% 16.4%

Notes FffzF

(1) Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement which includes acquisition-related costs. Regional results include

intra-group royalty income/expense.

Hit AR T ERRGERBE RPN [HMHX ] HhaFRBRERE - hEXEEEEEARNERRA/BX

nm  Not meaningful. = o

The Group has presented Adjusted EBITDA because it believes that, when viewed
with its results of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS and with the
reconciliation to profit for the year, Adjusted EBITDA provides additional information
that is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational
performance and of the trends impacting its business. Adjusted EBITDA is an
important metric the Group uses to evaluate its operating performance and cash
generation.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure and as calculated herein may
not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies and
should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year in the
Group’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an
analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute
for, an analysis of the Group's results of operations as reported under IFRS.

ADJUSTED NET INCOME

On a constant currency basis, Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure,
increased by US$19.6 million, or 9.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Further excluding share-based
compensation expense, Adjusted Net Income increased by US$23.9 million, or
11.0%, on a constant currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported Adjusted
Net Income increased by US$10.7 million, or 5.2%, to US$216.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015 from US$206.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2014. The Group experienced strong Adjusted Net Income growth year-on-year,
despite the adverse impact from the strengthening of the US Dollar, increased

REEZF|CFHEEBITDARRAAEHME - EBR
HgE2E (RIRIFRS R M B s FMETTHIAR)
- RFHEEBITDAKRHEEZER  BARER
HTMEK2RALRZEALEHENBS - KHE
EBITDARASE MR AL ERE MLRIER SR —
EEEEERE -

A st & FHEEBITDA B —HIEIFRS 8175
STETA  SRMAIEEM A RATERAEUGEN
AEIAETER  BTRERA A HAEH
BERERPFRNREANEROFTFEIA - LHE
EBITDAtER—ES T LEBERBRY - TESEAE
TR EAEBIRE IFRSFIZ RSB EEND
T o

REREFWA

RETEEEEE  BE2015F12A318ILEE
S AEFRA(—EIEIFRSH BT ETR)REH
E2014F12A31BIEFEEMI9.6EEFETLK
9.5% © i — FMBR ARG XA RFBF S - REE
EEEE  CRAEFRARFIEN239FEETNK
11.0% ° AETTHRBMETHEFIMABEZ 2014 F
12A31AILEFEMN2063FEETEMNI07THESE
L5 2% EHE 201512 A3 BILFEMN 21698
BEL - BEXINELRY  AEEBERTEES
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costs from the Group’s retail store expansion, lower gross profit margin, the
investment in the geographical expansion of the American Tourister brand in
Europe and the investment in the Group’s business in Latin America.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit for the year to
Adjusted Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AL F =T 2%)

FaF
SRR AR R T
RIEFHE ABEGEF
oG

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit attributable to the equity holders
Plus (Minus):
Change in fair value of put options

Amortization of intangible assets BREEEE

Acquisition-related costs W ARRE R A

Tax adjustments HiEAE
Adjusted Net Income! RREFW A

REHENDIABEED

AR EFF « EFETBE » BAmerican Tourister fhhg
REUNE SRR FTERNIRE - LWRARAREER T
EMEBFIENRENAEETZE  RAEBLARTF
WA SIS R SIRFILR -

TREIIBE 2015912 31 AR 2014512 A31 A
L EAER B i B ST SR AR

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE

217,017 205,354
(19,378) (19,098)
197,639 186,256
5,772 4,245
10,590 9,180
8,877 13,541
(5,968) (6,971)
216,910 206,251

Note Pzt
(1) Represents Adjusted Net Income attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
EADRRERE ARGEREFRA -

The Group has presented Adjusted Net Income because it believes this measure
helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties a better
understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance. By presenting
Adjusted Net Income, the Group eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring
costs, charges and credit and certain other non-cash charges that impact US
Dollar reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-IFRS financial measure, and as calculated herein
may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies
and should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year in the
Group’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted Net Income has limitations as
an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute
for, an analysis of the Group’s results of operations as reported under IFRS.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The primary objective of the Group's capital management policies is to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for the Company’'s
shareholders, and to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses,
working capital needs and the payment of obligations. The Group’s primary sources
of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities, invested cash, available
lines of credit and, subject to shareholder approval, the Company’s ability to issue
additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and estimated cash
flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to meet the operating
and capital requirements of the Group for at least the next twelve months.
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Cash provided by operating activities increased by US$29.1 million, or 12.7%, to
US$259.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to US$229.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2014. This increase is primarily
attributable to increased profits and more efficiently managed working capital,
which were partially offset by an increase in taxes paid.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, net cash used in investing activities was
US$104.1 million compared to US$267.1 million in the previous year. This decrease
was primarily due to the smaller investments required in the purchases of Rolling
Luggage in February 2015 and Chic Accent in September 2015 compared to the
acquisitions of Speck Products, Lipault and Gregory in 2014.

Net cash flows used in financing activities was US$110.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to US$41.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2014. Cash flows used in financing activities are largely attributable to the US$88.0
million distribution to shareholders and the purchase of the non-controlling
interest in the Group’s Russian subsidiary.

INDEBTEDNESS

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Group’s loans and
borrowings as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AT 3t 251)

Revolving Facility BREE

Other lines of credit HitfEE5

Finance lease obligations REHERE
Total loans and borrowings ERRERBEEE

Less deferred financing costs IR LS R AR

Total loans and borrowings less
deferred financing costs

ERRERBIRIELERE A

BZE2015F 12 A3BILFE  £LEBIRENR 2
EAN29 1 BEETLH12.7%E 25908 EFTT MEL
E2014F 12 ANALEFERA22998EETT It
HIRFZRMEFEIMAREEECEBEFUE
FRBU SR04 B 15 B TE G N AT 8 o

BHE2015F12ANBILEE . REFDIARSF
BRI0LIBEET MEFRIA2671EEET It
IR EZ B 2015F 2 AUAE Rolling Luggage &7
20154F 9 AURHE Chic Accent FTEHIIR A #2014 F
Uit BE Speck Products * Lipault & Gregory &2 Fr %

HE2015F12A31ALEFE BEEHMARER
EFEAN02EER MEZ2014F12A318
IFFERALNTEEEL  REAGFDMARERE
FEANDIESS.0EBET TR RIKIEAEEH
RETM B A RIMIEIE AR S o

ffE

TREHALBEN2015F 12 A31H K 2014F 12 A
3 HOERMERNRERE -

December 31, 2015
2015128 31H

December 31, 2014
20145128318

48,174 60,000
15,921 7,536

87 32
64,182 67,568
(1,401) (2,419)
62,781 65,149

The Group had US$180.8 million in cash and cash equivalents as of December 31,
2015, compared to US$140.4 million as of December 31, 2014.

The Group maintains a revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Facility”) in the
amount of US$500.0 million. The facility can be increased by an additional US$300.0
million, subject to lender approval. The Revolving Facility has an initial term of five
years from its effective date of June 17, 2014, with a one year extension available
at the request of the Group and at the option of the lenders. The interest rate on
borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR or (b) the
prime rate of the lender and (i) a margin to be determined based on the Group's
leverage ratio. Based on the Group's leverage ratio, the Revolving Facility carries
a commitment fee ranging from 0.2% to 0.325% per annum on any unutilized
amounts, as well as an agency fee if another lender joins the Revolving Facility. The
Revolving Facility is secured by certain of the Group's assets in the United States
and Europe, as well as the Group’s intellectual property. The Revolving Facility
also contains financial covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios,
and operating covenants that, among other things, limit the Group’s ability to incur
additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain mergers,
acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Group was in compliance
with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2015,
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MR2015F12A31H - AEER SRR CEEYA
180.8 @EET - MMN2014F 12831 BRIA1404H
BT -

REBERBREERE ([EREE]EFER500.0
BEEI - A AIEIMEIN300.0 BEEETT - HEAE
BERAIE - BIREEB2014F 6 A17TENER
BEIRET S FHARF  WARASBEERRE
RABREBER—F - BREETHERNEAUT
BIEMEF (i) (&) mBRITEEFRE K (D) BERA
WEEEFER i) BRAEENERLERETHE
= REAEEMNERLE  BRESHTAARS
BRSERIEFEN T0.2% 2 0.325% HEHEE - i
B—EZERAMARBREEREKDRRIES - BR
EEUAREEMARERRBINOE TEEARAE
EOMBERER - BREENTLESENSENTL
ERIERLEBANMERE  UREELH &
PRERSIAEBELEIMES  HEHEETVR
ERRSEETOHE WHE - B8R - BEHERER
BN - HE2015F 128310 AEE—HE



US$449.3 million was available to be borrowed on the Revolving Facility as a result
of US$48.2 million of outstanding borrowings and the utilization of US$2.5 million
of the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors. As of
December 31, 2014, US$437.5 million was available to be borrowed as a result of
US$60.0 million of outstanding borrowings and the utilization of US$2.5 million of
the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries of the Group maintain credit lines with various
third party lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines
provide working capital for the day-to-day business operations of the subsidiaries,
including overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance and factoring facilities.
The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate
amount outstanding under the local facilities was US$15.9 million and US$7.5
million as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Group's loans and
borrowings (excluding the impact of netting agreements) as of December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014:

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (SLFET2%)

BERIN—FA

On demand or within one year

After one year but within two years —FHEEMER
After two years but within five years MERBEREFR
More than five years REUE

B o R2015F 12 A31 8 + BRKREERH
fER4s. 2 ABRTRMRERTETERANKER
ERRMBAE2BEXTRE  RERERY TE
HOSRER4L93AEET - R20145F 124318 -
BN AREENEROOEEETAMRBETETE
BANKREEEARMBA2BBETHE AT
EHASEARLTEABET °

AEEETHREMNBARBFESEEMTEHENS
BE=ZFERAFLEERE - HEEHMEEBAK
BARIBREBGEERBEELS  BEEX R
TER - ESRMEURERRKEE - LEREE
BMABY AEFAFEHRE - R2015F 128318 R
20145F 12 A31 B - EHEE THIREELES A
BIBEEETRISAEET

TREHN 2015612431 BR2014F 12 A3 AR
KERERMERMFFREEEHRNTE)NGH
ZIERR -

December 31, 2015
2015128318

December 31, 2014
20145128318

64,125 67,550
18 15
39 3
64,182 67,568

HEDGING

The Group’s non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in US Dollars which are
designated as cash flow hedges. Cash outflows associated with these derivatives
as of December 31, 2015 are expected to be US$88.5 million within one year.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Group's historical capital expenditures for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

¥
REBHIEZEBWB AR EHT L EIREETBIUE
THRENTESENERGY  WEANeEETT
WEREH M - R2015F 12 A3 1 BEEETAET
BEEHAMBRESREESRN—FRNAES8BEEETT

HitFBER
BRI

BEEAR

TEREHIAEBEHE 201512 A31 B KR 20144F12
A3ALFERBREEARY -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (SLF =T 2%1)

Land T 26 681
Buildings BF 2,659 11,455
Machinery, equipment, leasehold HER - BB HEYEEER
improvements and other Hith 65,792 57,500
Total capital expenditures EREREE 68,477 69,636
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Capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2015 included costs for
beginning the construction of a new warehouse in China, new or remodeled retail
locations and investments in the Group's infrastructure.

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditures budget for 2016 is approximately US$84.0 million.
The Group plans to complete the warehouse in China, begin a plant expansion
in Hungary, refurbish existing retail stores, open new retail stores and invest in
machinery and equipment.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Group’s contractual

obligations for which cash flows are fixed and determinable as of December 31, 2015:

BE2015F12A3MBILFE  EAMXBIERMNA
RAEEZ-MHAENEZRTRE  MEXEET
BEHIARRANEBEZAENRENRA -

FHEIEARRX

REBMO6FERRLZBENASLIABET - &
EE TR ERRPENTAE - KT FIERE
—HEE  BFREATEE  HRSHTEE UK
BB R

’ém"] ?EE\{}

IR 2015512 A31 BASEMP LRRER
EREENAEENANEENTRTEIEA

Between 1 Between 2
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Total Within 1 year EL VAL and 5 years Over 5 years
(UFET25) Bt 15 R 15225 2FB5F HIB5EF
Loans and borrowings EBREEE 64,182 64,125 18 39 =
Minimum operating RELLHENR
lease payments 351,117 94,453 89,374 102,717 64,573
Total st 415,299 158,578 89,392 102,756 64,573

As of December 31, 2015, the Group did not have any material off-balance sheet
arrangements or contingencies except as included in the table summarizing its
contractual obligations above.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
reflect the Group’s current views with respect to future events and performance.
These statements may discuss, among other things, the Group’s net sales,
operating profit, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA margin,
cash flow, liquidity and capital resources, impairments, growth, strategies, plans,
achievements, distributions, organizational structure, future store openings,
market opportunities and general market and industry conditions. The Group
generally identifies forward-looking statements by words such as “expect”,
“seek”, “project”,
“will”, "would” and “could” or similar words or statements. Forward-looking

“believe”, “plan”, “intend”, “estimate”, “anticipate”, "may”,
statements are based on beliefs and assumptions made by management using
currently available information. These statements are only predictions and are not
guarantees of future performance, actions or events. Forward-looking statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties. If one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or if management’s underlying beliefs and assumptions prove to
be incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by a
forward-looking statement. These risks and uncertainties include those set forth
under “Risk Management and Internal Control” within the Corporate Governance
Report. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they
are made. The Group expressly disclaims any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events

or otherwise, except as required by applicable securities laws and regulations.
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
The Company recognizes that sound corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of the Company and to its
ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance manual, which is based
on the principles, provisions and practices set out in the Corporate Governance
Code [as in effect from time to time, the “"CG Code”] contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited [the “Listing Rules”).

The Company complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015, except for the
deviation from code provision F.1.3 discussed below regarding the Company’s
Joint Company Secretaries.

Code provision F.1.3 provides that the company secretary should report to the
Chairman and CEO.

Mr. John Livingston, the Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company, reports to the Company's Chief Financial Officer
("CFO”). The Company believes this is appropriate because Mr. Livingston is
based at the same location as the CFO and works closely with him on a day-to-
day basis. In addition, Mr. Livingston works directly with the Company’s Chairman,
its CEO and with the chairpersons of the various Board committees with respect
to corporate governance and other Board-related matters. Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy,
the Company’s other joint company secretary based in Hong Kong, reports to Mr.
Livingston. The Company believes this is appropriate because her primary role as
joint company secretary is to assist Mr. Livingston in ensuring that the Company
complies with its obligations under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”) for securities
transactions by directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Group on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required standard set out in
the Trading Policy during the year ended December 31, 2015. Directors” and Chief
Executives’ interests in the Company’s shares as of December 31, 2015 are set out
at pages 111 to 112 of this Annual Report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for (i) overseeing the corporate
governance and financial reporting of the Company, (i) ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems, [iii) overseeing the Company’'s policies and procedures
on compliance and corporate governance, and (iv] the training and continuous
professional development of its directors and senior management. To assist it in
fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three board committees: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee (details
of which are set out at pages 62 to 65 of this Annual Report).

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the Board
functions effectively and acts in the best interests of the Company. The CEO is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the Company.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must be
approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation, approval
and adoption of the Company’s annual operating budget and capital expenditure
budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO, CFO, Joint Company Secretary or certain
other members of the Company’s senior management team; and approving and
recommending significant transactions.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD, NUMBER OF BOARD
MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS" ATTENDANCE

The Board consists of nine directors, including two Executive Directors ("EDs”),
two Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs"), and five Independent Non-Executive
Directors ("INEDs"). The biographical details of each director and their respective
responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 78 to 88 of this Annual Report. None of the
members of the Board is related to one another.
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There were nine meetings of the Board held during the year ended December 31, 2015.
The following is the attendance record of the directors at Board and committee meetings,
as well as at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders held during the year:

Board of
Directors

B=g

Category
E=all

Audit
Committee
EREEE

BE205F12A3NBILFE  EFSHETAR
B MIRFANEZTHFEESLEZESS

= R

R RBERGNH

Attendance HERE

Nomination
Committee
REEES

Annual General
Meeting
RFRBFAE

Remuneration
Committee

FHEES

Timothy Charles Parker NED and Chairman 9/9 - 11 - 1/1
FHITEBRER

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala ~ ED and CEO 9/9 - - - 1/
HATESFRITBER

Kyle Francis Gendreau ED and CFO 9/9 - - - 1/1
HITESE R SRS

Tom Korbas NED 9/9 - - - 1/
FEITES

Paul Kenneth Etchells INED 9/9 5/ 11 Lfh 1/1
B FHITES

Keith Hamill" INED 9/9 5/5 - - 11
BYEHITES

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko INED 9/9 4[5 11 4fh 11

= R B FHITES

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy) INED 9/9 - - 4/4 11
BYEHITES

Ying Yeh INED 9/9 5/ 11 Lfh 11

B B FHITES

Note FffzE

M

Mr. Keith Hamill was appointed to the Remuneration Committee on March 16, 2016.

Keith Hamill £ R 2016 £ 3 B 16 BEZEEMAFHESS -

Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation of his or her
independence, and the Company considers each of the INEDs to be independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings.
Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow
directors to include items in the agenda, and final agendas together with board
papers are sent to directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting,
and as soon as practicable before other Board meetings, so that the Board can
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Each director also has
separate and independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest in a transaction,
that director is required to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at the meeting for approving the transaction.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment,
election and removal of directors, which is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation and is led by the Nomination Committee, which will make
recommendations on new director appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs is engaged on a service contract for a term of 3 years,
subject to re-election. Each of the EDs is also party to a service contract, with their
appointment subject to re-election. Further details of the appointment, election
and removal of directors are set out in the "Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 78 to 88 of this Annual Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy that provides that the Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of the Board's performance and to support the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives. Under the policy, all Board appointments will be based on
merit, in the context of the knowledge, skills and experience that the Board as a
whole requires to be effective.

INDUCTION AND ONGOING DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and awareness of a director’s responsibilities and obligations. All
directors participate in continuous professional development in order to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each member of the Board received
training on corporate governance, regulatory developments or other relevant
topics during the year ended December 31, 2015, and directors are continually
updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website and are available
to shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees generally follow
the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee and has adopted written terms
of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The Audit
Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (INED], Mr. Keith Hamill (INED), Mr. Miguel Kai
Kwun Ko (INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the
Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise in discharging the responsibilities of
the Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements
as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever required.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and risk management and internal control
systems, to monitor the integrity of the Company’'s financial statements and
financial reporting, and to oversee the audit process.

There were five meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2015. The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Audit Committee during 2015:

* Reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2015, and received
periodic updates on the status of internal audit activities from the Company’s
Vice President of Internal Audit;

* Approved the non-audit services that could be provided by the external auditors
during the year ended December 31, 2015;

* Reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2014

° Reviewed the annual financial statements, annual results announcement
and annual report for the year ended December 31, 2014 and recommended
approval of such documents to the Board;

° Reviewed the independence of the Company's external auditors and
recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ended

December 31, 2015;

* Reviewed the interim financial statements, interim results announcement and
interim report of the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2015, and
recommended approval of such documents to the Board;
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* Reviewed and approved the plan for and scope of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015
and the fee proposal for such audit;

° Reviewed arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties;

* Met twice with the Company’s external auditors without the presence of the
EDs or management; and

*  Met with the Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit without the presence
of the EDs or management.

In addition, during the first three months of 2016 the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year ended December 31,
2015; reviewed the annual financial statements, annual results announcement and
annual report for the year ended December 31, 2015 and recommended approval
of such documents to the Board; and reviewed the independence of the Company’s
external auditors and recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors
for the year ending December 31, 2016.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Timothy Charles
Parker [Chairman of the Nomination Committee] (NEDJ, Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
(INED), Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko (INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board with respect
to any changes to the composition of the Board, and to assess the independence of
the INEDs. When identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee shall
(where applicable and appropriate) use open advertising or the services of external
advisers and consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds on merit and
against objective criteria.
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There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2015. The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during 2015:

* Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
e Reviewed the time and contribution required from directors;

e Assessed the independence of the INEDs and concluded that each of the
INEDs satisfied the independence requirements applicable to INEDs; and

e Considered the retirement and re-nomination of directors to stand for re-
election to the Board at the Company’s 2015 annual general meeting of
shareholders.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Miguel Kai
Kwun Ko (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul Kenneth
Etchells (INED), Mr. Keith Hamill (INEDJ, Mr. Bruce Hardy Mclain (Hardy) (INED)
and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’'s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, as well as to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all EDs and certain members of
senior management.

There were four meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2015. The following is a summary of the work performed by
the Remuneration Committee during 2015:

e Approved the grant of share options to senior managers and the EDs, and
recommended to the Board the approval of the grant of share options to other
employees of the Group, on January 7, 2015;
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Approved the additional special grant of share options to an ED and to
five additional members of the Group’s senior management team, and
recommended to the Board the approval of such additional special grant on
January 7, 2015;

Reviewed and approved the compensation of each member of the Company’s
senior management, including the EDs, for 2015;

Reviewed the remuneration of directors for 2015;

Approved the participation of a newly appointed member of the Company’s senior
management in the Company’'s Management Severance Plan, which establishes
guidelines that may be modified by the Remuneration Committee in its discretion
with respect to severance payable to certain members of senior management,
including the EDs, if their employment with the Group is terminated by the Group
without cause or by the senior manager for good reason;

Approved the terms of a consulting agreement to be entered into with an ED
following his retirement as the Group’s President, North America on March 31,

2016; and

e Reviewed proposed revisions to the Group’s annual management incentive plan
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Company, as
well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors.

The remuneration of directors is recommended to the Company’s shareholders by
the Board, which receives recommendations from the Remuneration Committee.
The remuneration of directors must be approved by special resolutions at the
annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company. All of the NEDs and
INEDs received directors’ fees. EDs did not receive any directors’ fees.

Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the EDs and senior
management receive cash compensation in the form of salaries as well as annual
bonuses that are subject to annual performance targets. The EDs and senior
management also receive periodic grants of share options, which serve as the
long-term incentive component of the Group’s compensation strategy.

Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses,
share-based compensation expense and other benefits) was approximately
US$10.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The aggregate amount
of emoluments for the five highest paid individuals of the Group, including certain
EDs, was approximately US$12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. No
amounts have been paid to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
for the year ended December 31, 2015. No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments to which they were entitled for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The following information summarizes the emoluments, by band, of the members of
the Company’s senior management team during the year ended December 31, 2015:

HK$5,000,000 - HK$10,000,000 (US$645,000 - US$1,290,000): 2
HK$10,000,001 - HK$15,000,000 (US$1,290,001 - US$1,935,000): 3
HK$15,000,001 - HK$20,000,000 (US$1,935,001 - US$2,580,000): 3
Over HK$20,000,000 (Over US$2,580,001): 1

Such emoluments are shown inclusive of the share-based compensation expense
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2015 for all grants made to date
for these individuals.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 122 of
this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December
31,2015 provided by KPMG LLP and its foreign member firms, the external auditors
of the Company, were as follows:

SN A% TR 52 A% BU B 5 B

B R ERED B E SRR B B SRR M) R R E AE R
T ARFIRE 122 BB R EE R -

BE2015F12A31HIEFE - FEAARBSININEZ
MEDKPMG LLP R g5 B R BIPT IR TR
BERBOHERNT

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LT3 2%!)

Annual audit and interim review services FEFEZRPHEMRE 3,565
Due diligence and other acquisition related ERFEER AW EEEARRENFEZRE
non-audit services!” 1,354
Permitted tax services PRI AR TS 544
Other non-audit related services Hib kBB RE 137
Total et 5,600
Note FffzF

(1) Primarily comprised of fees associated with financial due diligence performed in conjunction with the acquisition of Tumi Holdings, Inc. as announced on March 4, 2016.

FEGEERR 2016 F 3 A 4 BE#HUREE Tumi Holdings, Inc. MEBITH KRB ESHENER -

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

e Overseeing the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company with a view of ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company; and

* Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with the
support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Company’s financial reporting, including annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements, other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, reports to regulators and information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

FRGEVMBRRNESTER
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk managementand internal control systems. The Board
has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility for reviewing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. The Company’'s management,
under the oversight of the Board, is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.

Principal Risks

The Company recognizes that effective management of risk is essential to executing
the Company’s strategies, achieving sustainable shareholder value, protecting the
Group’s brands and ensuring good corporate governance. Accordingly, rather than
being a separate and standalone process, risk management is integrated into the
Company’s business processes including strategy development, business planning,
capital allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-to-day operations.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent
of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives.
The Company aims to only take reasonable risks that (a) fit its strategy, (b] can be
understood and managed, and (c] do not expose the Company to:

* Material financial loss impacting the ability to execute the Company’s business
strategy or materially compromising the Company’s financial viability;

e Material interruption to the Company’s business;
e Breaches of applicable laws and regulations; or

e Damage to the Company’s reputation and brands.

As part of the Audit Committee’s review of the Group’s risk management systems,
the Audit Committee considers the principal risks facing the Group and the nature
and extent of such risks. The Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit facilitates
an annual enterprise risk assessment process in conjunction with the senior
management teamin each of the Company’s regions as well as senior management
of the Company’s corporate functions. This process reviews the significant risks
facing the Company’s operations and records the relevant activities that are in
place to mitigate such risks.

The risks set out below represent the principal risks and uncertainties that
may adversely impact the Company’s performance and the execution of its
strategies. Other factors could also adversely affect the Company’s performance.
Accordingly, the risks described below should not be considered to be a
comprehensive list of all potential risks and uncertainties. The principal risks
are not listed in order of significance.

The key steps the Company takes in an effort to mitigate these principal risks are
described below. It is not possible for the Company to implement measures to
address all of the risks it may face, and there can be no assurance that the steps
the Group has taken will adequately and effectively mitigate the risks it faces.

HABERBRAR
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Risk &k

Deterioration in economic conditions
globally or in the Company’s major
regional markets.

SRR AT BT HAHR

Adverse impacts on the travel industry,
especially air travel, resulting from
events such as terrorist attacks or
outbreaks of contagious disease.

[ 2o 88 B2 o IR B s 5 S T B
P (FRI R ZE SR ERTFIE -

Rising costs for finished goods, raw
materials and components sourced
from third-party suppliers.

@E=HHERRBORKR - R
R AS EF e

Impact /&

Reductions in discretionary consumer
spending could have a material adverse
impact on the Group’s net sales,
profitability and cash flow.

AIXECHES HFD - EHAREEE
%52 C BREEARREREEREKRT
1EA o

B

Sales of travel luggage, which make

up a majority of the Group’s sales, are
significantly dependent on travel as a
driver of consumer demand. Significant
adverse impacts on the travel industry
could have an adverse effect on the
Company’s sales, profitability and cash
flow.

MR T AR I SR (G AR M SRR —
RED) T D RFERCEHEENEE TR - Hik
PENBE AT E RS H AR QT AH

B8 BAREARATREER TR E -

Could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to maintain product margins if
the Company is unable to raise its prices
or find suitable, more cost-effective
suppliers.

AR B ARERSERIIKEEEAEAIN
B SEMHER - BInTREE R AR A TER
EmFABRNENERTREZE

Mitigation JRI{E Lk AV 5 e

The Company’s multi-brand, multi-
category strategy results in flexibility

in the wide range of price points at
which the Company’s products are sold,
which helps make the business more
resilient. The geographic diversity of
the Company’s global business helps to
mitigate the impact of local economic
challenges.

EARRBNZ mIE - ZEmRERIRE
T AATAWERTUTEEMLHE -
SEBEARTMREN - RATRIR
EHIINE SRR - BBIRER AR
BEEERTE -

Historically, disruptions to the travel
industry have been temporary and
have not had material long-term
adverse impacts on the Company’s
business. The Company’s strategy to
grow its sales of non-travel products,
including business and casual bags
and accessories, helps mitigate its
vulnerability to disruptions in the travel
industry. The Company’s geographic
diversity also mitigates the impact of
more localized travel disruptions.

BEMBEXEMZHTERIIBERE - I
BURDAEBEREARP I
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The Company seeks to maintain and
expand a geographically diverse
supplier base. Price increases are
implemented where possible to help
maintain product margins. Products
are engineered to ensure maximum
value for consumers by eliminating
unnecessarily costly features.

The Company utilizes in-house
manufacturing of hard-side luggage
where doing so is cost effective.

AR BB NS LRR G E SRR
BB - EATHERT » A2AK
REERUESERTIER - ERER
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Risk &k

Risk of third-party suppliers failing
to comply with the Company’s social
compliance policy.

B=HHERREETARAHEER
BURAERS o

Risk of inability to source, on a timely
basis, in sufficient quantities and at a
competitive cost, finished goods, or raw
materials or component parts needed
for manufacture by the Group of certain
key hard-side luggage products.

AREEREGLARZHF DRIRA - SRIBEH
FENHARIAEEREETER
Egﬁﬁ%ﬁg%}iﬁ%wﬁiw&ﬁi#ﬂ@
E I

Impact /&

Ceasing production from a supplier that
violates the Company’s social compliance
policy could disrupt supply and result

in reduced sales and increased costs.
Violations could also cause significant
damage to the Company’s reputation and
brand image.

RIEERA R A EEEBERNHERN
TEMRSSHETE - SREERERD
REALA - EREEBETAIESRE
BEARAZEBRMETLR

Inability of suppliers to deliver, in a timely
and cost-effective manner, products

that meet the Group’s quality standards
could result in damage to customer
relationships, reduced market share,

lost sales, lower profitability and reduced
cash flow.

In addition, the Group is dependent on a
sole source supplier for the supply of the
Curv material used to form the outer shell
of several of its best-selling, hard-side
product lines. Any disruption in the supply
of Curv material could adversely impact
production of such products, which could
result in lost sales and market share.

HERARER B RAARSBEAFEL
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Mitigation JRI{E Lk AV 5 e

The Group seeks to ensure that all

new and existing third-party suppliers
abide by its social compliance policy.
Supply contracts require compliance,
and the Group’s social compliance audit
personnel visit suppliers on a regular
basis and audit their compliance.
Failure to remedy violations of the
policy may result in termination of the
relationship with the supplier.

AEBEHDRRIBEFMARRENE
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Where possible, the Company
maintains alternative sources of supply.
Prospective and current vendors are
reviewed for quality, cost-effectiveness
and adequacy of capacity. Inventory
needs and purchase order requirements
are monitored to ensure appropriate
inventory levels are maintained.

The Group has an exclusive supply
arrangement with the manufacturer of
Curv material, and seeks to maintain
an adequate supply of Curv material to
meet inventory needs.

The Group maintains business
interruption insurance in almost all of
its key markets to protect itself against
significant revenue or profitability
losses.

EATERT  AATSHFERME
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Risk &k

Impact &

Mitigation JRI{E Lk AV 5 e

Fluctuations in the value of the US
Dollar against the functional currencies
of the Group’s businesses.

%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@&ﬁi&

The Company is dependent upon certain
information technology systems.

Risk of failure to protect confidential
information of the Group’s customers,
or of a breach in the security of the
Group’s or third-party service providers’
networks, websites, e-commerce
shops or other information technology
systems.

RABMRFES T EABHRERS ©

REREAEBEEFREER  RAE
Bk =5 RIS BRI AV AR - 483k
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Samsonite International S.A.

The Company’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in US Dollars.
The net sales of the Group’s operating
subsidiaries are generated in their

local functional currency, while a large
proportion of each subsidiary’s cost of
sales (in the form of inventory purchases)
are incurred in US Dollars. Fluctuations
in the value of the US Dollar against

the currencies in which its businesses
generate revenues could adversely affect
the Company’s US Dollar reported net
sales, gross margin, profitability and cash
flow.

ARRVERSMBRRIIUAETHEE o &<
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Technical problems with the Group’s
information technology systems

could negatively impact the timely
preparation of management accounts
and forecasts, which could adversely
affect the Company’s ability to manage
its business effectively or to accurately
and timely report its financial results.

In addition, technical problems could
result in delays in delivering products to
customers, which could adversely affect
the Company’s sales and reputation.

Any compromise of the security of the
Group’s or its service providers’ systems,
or a failure to protect customers’
confidential information in accordance
with applicable privacy laws, could result
in damage to the Company’s reputation
and expose the Group to business
disruption or potential legal liability,
which could substantially harm its
business and results of operations.
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The Group periodically uses forward
exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to currency risk on product
purchases denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional
currency of its subsidiaries.

Interest on borrowings is denominated

in the local currency of the borrowings.
Borrowings are generally denominated
in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations.

The Company provides constant-
currency comparisons of period-
over-period financial results in order

to provide investors a view to the
underlying performance of the business
without distortions caused by currency
fluctuations.
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The Group has implemented fully
redundant, high availability hosted
solutions for its core Enterprise
Resource Planning ("ERP") systems.

The Group has a security function, has
obtained Payment Card Industry (“PCI")
certification for its U.S. retail systems,
and has undertaken global penetration
testing on the Group’s systems and
major e-commerce shops.
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Risk &k

Impact /&

Mitigation JE{E R A e

Potential disruptions affecting the
Group’s company-owned manufacturing
facilities, distribution centers or third
party logistics providers.

FEREEEREERN  BUAP LR
B=RMRHERNEETE -

Legal proceedings or regulatory
matters could adversely impact the
Group’s results of operations and
financial condition.

EERNRE S TR EEY
AR RIS T RIS E -

Disruptions to the operations of the
Company’s manufacturing facilities,
distribution centers or third party logistics
providers, from natural disasters, adverse
weather conditions, work stoppages,
accidents or other events beyond the
Company’s control could result in
inventory shortages, delayed, incomplete,
inaccurate or lost deliveries, or damaged
goods, which could adversely affect

the Company’s reputation, net sales,
profitability and cash flow.
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The Group is subject, from time to time,
to various legal claims arising out of its
business operations. Additionally, the
Group may from time to time be subject to
changes in applicable laws or regulations
in the jurisdictions where the Group
conducts business operations. Such
matters could have an adverse impact

on the Company’s results of operations,
or could expose the Group to negative
publicity, reputational damage, harm to
customer relationships, or diversion of
management resources.

AEETHESEEEBLEEMELENS
ROARRE - IO AEEARETEZR
RAEERE XTI REEELER
EGIRRGI2 S - EEEE RS HAR
AINEEEEEN T E  JSAEH
AZOHEBE BEZE FFRARZE
HEBRERKES -

The Company maintains property
insurance on all company-owned
facilities and carries business
interruption insurance on the majority
of its business operations. Certain
company-owned distribution facilities
employ physical protections such as
fire alarms and sprinkler systems,
which are evaluated and upgraded
periodically based on the advice of
outside consultants.

The Company has developed, or is in the
process of developing, disaster recovery
and business continuity plans for its key
company-owned manufacturing and
distribution facilities.
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The Company’s business works with the
Company’s in-house legal department
and outside legal advisors, where
appropriate, to identify significant legal
or regulatory risks and to develop
strategies (contractual, compliance or
otherwise) to help manage such risks.
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Internal Control

The Board places great importance on internal control and is responsible for
ensuring that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls.

The Company’s internal audit department reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal control system. The internal and external audit plans are discussed
and agreed each year with the Audit Committee.

The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Board has delegated to
the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the Company’s internal controls
and reporting the committee’s findings to the Board. In conducting such review, the
Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has (i) reviewed the Company’s internal
audit activities during the year and discussed such activities and the results thereof
with the Company's Vice President of Internal Audit, (i) reviewed and discussed the
scope and results of the annual audit with the Company’s external auditors, and
(iii) reviewed with management the results of the Company’s internal management
representation process that was performed in connection with the preparation of
the annual financial statements. Based on its review, the Board is not aware of any
material defects in the effectiveness of internal controls.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications
with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps a constant dialog with the
investment community through company visits, conference calls, information
sessions and participation in major investor conferences to communicate the
Company’s business strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, the current version of the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation, the Company’s stock exchange filings, video webcasts,
press releases and other information and updates on the Company’s operations
and financial performance are available for public access on the Company’s
website, www.samsonite.com, and some of them are also available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company’s Annual
General Meeting ["AGM"] and other general meetings to communicate their views
and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level of accountability
and also to stay informed of the Company’s strategies, developments and goals.

The 2016 AGM will be held on June 2, 2016. The notice of AGM will be sent to the
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 13.10 of the Articles of Incorporation, any one or more
shareholder(s) who together hold not less than 5% of the issued and paid-up
shares of the Company that carry the right to vote at general meetings may convene
a general meeting by depositing a written request signed by such shareholders
and addressed to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in
Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

Such request must specify the objectives of the meeting. If the Board does not within
two calendar days from the date of deposit of the request proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 28 calendar days, the shareholders signing
the request (or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all shareholders signing the request) may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board. No general meeting convened by request of the shareholders may be
held later than three months after the date of deposit of the request.

Procedure for Shareholders to Make Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing by sending such enquiries
to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the
addresses of which are set out below. The Joint Company Secretary will forward
enquiries to the Chairman of the Board for consideration.

In addition, shareholders in attendance at any general meeting of the Company’s
shareholders may make enquiries at such meeting to the Chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the various Board committees, or to other directors in attendance
at such meeting.
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Procedure for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 13.11 of the Articles of Incorporation, upon a written request by
(i) one or more shareholder(s) representing not less than 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who at the date of such request have a right to vote at
the meeting to which the request relates, or (i) not less than 50 shareholders
holding shares in the Company on which there has been paid up an average sum,
per shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, the Company shall, at the expense of
the shareholders making the request (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may be
properly moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to receive notice of any general meeting a statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with in the meeting.

Pursuant to Article 13.12 of the Articles of Incorporation, such request must be
signed by all the shareholders making the request (or two or more copies between
them containing the signatures of all the shareholders making the request)
and deposited at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the
Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

Such request must be deposited (i) not less than six weeks before the meeting
in question in the case of a request proposing that a resolution be adopted at the
meeting, and (i) not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
request that does not propose that a resolution be adopted at the meeting.

In addition, one or more shareholder(s] who together hold at least 10% of the
Company’s issued and paid-up shares may request that one or more additional
items be put on the agenda of any general meeting. Such request must be sent to
the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg, the address of which is set
out below, by registered mail not less than five days before the meeting.

Except pursuant to the procedures described above, a shareholder may not make
a motion at a general meeting.

Procedure for Election to the Office of Director
upon Shareholder Proposal

A shareholder who intends to propose a candidate for election to the office of
director of the Company shall provide the Company’s Joint Company Secretary
with a written notice reflecting its intention to propose a person for election to
the office of director of the Company.

The notice shall be delivered by the shareholder at the registered office of the
Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses
of which are set out below, during a period commencing no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the convening notice of the meeting scheduled for such
election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.
Such notice must be delivered by a shareholder (not being the person to be
proposed) who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. In addition, the
candidate proposed for election shall deliver to the Company’s Joint Company
Secretary a signed written notice reflecting his willingness to be elected as a
director of the Company.
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In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company,
the appointment of the director will be made by way of a general shareholders’
meeting of the Company and by ordinary resolution adopted at a simple majority
of the votes cast.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to one of
the following addresses marked for the attention of the Joint Company Secretary:

Registered Office in Luxembourg:
13-15 Avenue de la Liberté,
L-1931 Luxembourg

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong:
25/F, Tower 2, The Gateway, Harbour City,
25 Canton Road,Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERESREEE

GENERAL

The Board currently consists of nine directors, comprising two Executive Directors,
two Non-Executive Directors and five Independent Non-Executive Directors.

In accordance with Code provision A.4.2 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under Article 8.1
of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the directors shall be elected by
the shareholders at a general meeting, and the term of office of a director shall be
three years, upon the expiry of which each shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2015, Messrs. Tainwala, Hamill
and Ko retired by rotation, and having been eligible, offered themselves for re-
election as directors at the 2015 AGM. Each was re-elected to three-year terms at
the AGM by majority vote.

The terms of Messrs. Parker, McLain and Etchells will expire at the 2016 AGM of
the Company. The terms of Messrs. Gendreau and Korbas, and Ms. Yeh, will expire
at the 2017 AGM of the Company. The terms of Messrs. Tainwala, Hamill and Ko
will expire at the 2018 AGM of the Company.

HABERBRAR

—REH
FEERBENLESAR - BERMERTEE -
MEFNTEERALBYHNTEE -

AR (AR A 8% 14 FEL ST RIMGSCEE A4 2{REVAR
o BEEZ(RRZSREEASRRENESR)A
ELB=FHERE R - REARFEMRIE
RARDFES N EEANRRAGHBIRES -
BEENEHMEA=F RNIEHNENRABERER
BE -

Eitt - WEZE 2015412 A31 BLEEE - Tainwala %kt
& HamillstE RS ARERT - WE BN 2015
FRRBFAGESEAES - FHESEARKRE
BERGURZHUZESR  ETAPHAE=F -

Parker %4+ Mclain %24 K& Etchells e A MY E AR #G
2016 FARTRRBFAE LJER Gendreau st
4~ Korbas o4 R EZ MR 2017 F AR A
f& BB E X2 EEiR o Tainwala e 4~ Hamill 54
R NEHER 2018 FARRREBFRAE
[



DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and conduct
of the Company’'s business. The following table sets out certain information
concerning the directors:

Position

S

EZe VA RENEERETARFNE
e TREFIBEWESNETER

Date of Appointment

Principal Responsibilities!"

B ZERH FEREFD
Timothy Charles Parker 60 Non-Executive Director ~ March 2011 Leading the Board and ensuring the
and Chairman 201143 8 Board functions effectively and acts
I TEERIE in the best interest of the Company
REEET  URRESSERER
BRARFAHZENRITE
Ramesh Dungarmal 56 Executive Director and As Executive Director: Overall strategic planning and
Tainwala Chief Executive Officer March 2011 management of the Group’s
HITESEHTHRAR As Chief Executive Officer:  operations
October 2014 REBEBNERRRRBREE
REITES 1 2011F3A8
RITBURHE 1 20145108
Kyle Francis Gendreau 46 Executive Director and March 2011 Management of the Group’s finance
Chief Financial Officer 2011E3 8 and treasury matters
BTESRUBEE ERAEENTBRAEEE
Tom Korbas 64 Non-Executive Director ~ June 2014
FEITES 201456 R
Paul Kenneth Etchells 65 Independent Non- May 2011
Executive Director 2011458
BYFHITES
Keith Hamill 63 Independent Non- March 2011
Executive Director 201143 8
BYFHITES
Miguel Kai Kwun Ko 63 Independent Non- May 2011
=T Executive Director 2011458
BAFHITES
Bruce Hardy McLain 63 Independent Non- March 2011
(Hardy) Executive Director 20113 A
BYFHTES
Ying Yeh 67 Independent Non- May 2011
e Executive Director 2011458
BYFHTES
Note FffsE

(1) As is usual for a company of this size, the Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational responsibilities but rather, with the benefit of their

particular experiences, provide strategic guidance and leadership to the Board.
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Directors and Senior Management EZERSHEEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, aged 56, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company since May 2011 and as an executive director of the consolidated
group since February 2011. He has served as the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer since October 1, 2014. In his role as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tainwala
is responsible for the Company’s overall strategic planning and for managing
the Group’s operations. Prior to his appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Tainwala served as the Company’'s Chief Operating Officer from March 2014
through September 2014. Before his appointment as Chief Operating Officer, he
served as the Company’s President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East. Mr. Tainwala has
been the General Manager of the Group’s Middle Eastern operation since January
2007 and has been the Chief Operating Officer of the Group’s Indian operation
since June 2000. Prior to joining the Company in November 1995, Mr. Tainwala
was an entrepreneur in the plastic processing and consumer goods industries,
including with Tainwala Chemicals & Plastics (India) Limited with which he was
associated from 1985 to 2008. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Donear Industries Limited (1990 to 2013) and Basant Agro Tech (India) Limited
(2005 to 2013), both listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited. Mr. Tainwala holds a Master’s degree in Management
Studies from the Birla Institute of Technology and Science, Pilani, India (1982).

Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 46, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in March 2011 and as an executive director of the
consolidated group since January 2009. He has served as Chief Financial Officer
since January 2009. Mr. Gendreau is responsible for managing all aspects of the
Group’s finance and treasury matters. Mr. Gendreau joined the Company in June
2007 as Vice President of Corporate Finance and as Assistant Treasurer. Prior to
joining the Company, he held various positions including vice president of finance
and chief financial officer at Zoots Corporation, a venture capital-backed start-up
company (2000 to 2007), assistant vice president of finance and director of SEC
reporting at Specialty Catalog Corporation, a listed catalog retailer (1997 to 2000)
and a manager at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996). Mr. Gendreau holds
a BS in Business Administration from Stonehill College, Easton, Massachusetts,
USA (1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant in Massachusetts.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 60, has served as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors since the Company was incorporated in March 2011. As Chairman, he is
responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and acts in the best interests of the Company. Mr. Parker was the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer from January 2009 until September 30, 2014. He served
as non-executive chairman of the consolidated group from November 2008 until
January 2009, as executive chairman of the consolidated group from January 2009
through September 2014, and as non-executive chairman since October 1, 2014.
Mr. Parker has a long history of managing large businesses. Prior to joining the
Company, he was chief executive of: The Automobile Association (2004 to 2007), the
car-repair firm Kwik-Fit (2002 to 2004), Clarks, the shoemaker (1997 to 2002) and
Kenwood Appliances (1989 to 1995). Mr. Parker is currently a director of Archive
Investments and is a member of the U.K. Advisors Board of CVC Capital Partners.
Since November 2014, Mr. Parker has been Chairman of the National Trust, a U.K.
charitable organization. Mr. Parker was appointed Chairman of Post Office Limited
effective October 1, 2015. He has previously held non-executive directorships with
Alliance Boots, Compass and Legal and General. Mr. Parker has also previously
advised ministers and senior civil servants on nationalized industry policy in his
capacity as an economist at the British Treasury (1977 to 1979). Mr. Parker holds a
MA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the University of Oxford, Oxford, the
United Kingdom (1977) and a Master’s in Business Studies from London Graduate
School of Business Studies, London, the United Kingdom (1981).

Mr. Tom Korbas, aged 64, was re-designated as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company with effect from April 1, 2016. He was elected as an Executive
Director of the Company in June 2014. From April 2014 until his retirement on
March 31, 2016, Mr. Korbas served as the Company’s President, North America
and was responsible for the overall management and development of the Group’s
business in the United States and Canada. Mr. Korbas continues to serve as a
consultant to the Company’s business in North America. He served as President,
Americas from 2004 until April 2014. Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1997. His
previous positions with the Company include: Vice President/General Manager of
the Company's U.S. wholesale business (2000 to 2004), Vice President of Sales
and Operations (1998 to 2000} and Senior Vice President of Soft-Side and Casual
Bags (1997 to 1998). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Korbas was vice president of
operations (1986 to 1997), director of manufacturing operations, and engineering
manager for American Tourister. Mr. Korbas holds a BS in Industrial Engineering
from Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1973) and an MBA
from Babson College, Wellesley, Massachusetts, USA (1976).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 65, has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director since May 2011. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Swire Properties Limited, a leading developer, owner and operator of mixed
use, principally commercial properties in Hong Kong and the PRC, and of
China Foods Limited, a company engaged in food and beverage processing and
distribution, both of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He also serves as a non-executive director and chairman of
Twenty20 Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands which, through
its subsidiary companies, is engaged in the manufacture and sale of eyewear
products. Mr. Etchells has served as an advisor to Cassia Investments Limited,
a private equity firm, since November 2012. Mr. Etchells has also held various
positions at The Coca-Cola Company (1998 to 2010), including deputy president of
Coca-Cola Pacific (2007 to 2010) and president of Coca-Cola China (2002 to 2007).
Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company, Mr. Etchells held various positions at the
Swire Group (1976 to 1998), including managing director of Swire Beverages (1995
to 1998), general manager of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1989 to 1995)
and finance manager of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1981 to 1989). Mr.
Etchells holds a BA in Political Studies from the University of Leeds, Leeds, the
United Kingdom (1971) and a MA in Asia Pacific Studies from the University of
Leeds (2013). He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 63, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since June 2014, before which he served as a Non-Executive Director
from May 2011 until June 2014. He has served as a non-executive director of the
consolidated group from October 2009 until May 2011. Mr. Hamill is currently the
chairman of Horsforth Holdings Ltd., a privately held investment holding company
for a number of leisure businesses, and an independent non-executive director
of easyJet plc (since 2009), which is listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr.
Hamill's prior experience includes being chairman of inter-dealer broker Tullett
Prebon plc (2006 to 2013), stockbroker Collins Stewart plc (2000 to 2006) and
software developer Alterian plc (2000 to 2011), and an independent non-executive
director of the distribution group Electrocopments plc (1999 to 2008) and of Max
Property Group plc (2010 to 2014), all of which are or were listed on the London
Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive director of NASDAQ-
listed publisher and printer Cadmus Communications Inc. (2002 to 2007). Mr.
Hamill has also chaired the board of a number of UK privately owned companies
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which included Endell Group Holdings Limited (parent company of Travelodge
Hotels Limited) (2003 to 2012), insurance broker Heath Lambert Limited (2009 to
2011), HGL Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011) and construction business Avant Homes
Limited (2013 to 2014). He was chief financial officer of hotel group Forte plc (1993
to 1996), retailer WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000) and United Distillers International
Limited (1990 to 1993}, and director of financial control at Guinness plc (1988 to
1991). Mr. Hamill was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986 to 1988). He
was also chairman of the board of the University of Nottingham, United Kingdom.
Mr. Hamill holds a BA in Politics (1974) and an Honorary Doctorate in Law from the
University of Nottingham and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
England and Wales.

Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, aged 63, has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director since May 2011. Mr. Ko has held various senior executive positions in
major international companies. He is currently the executive director and group
chief executive officer of Ascendas-Singbridge Pte Ltd., and Vice Chairman/Non-
Executive Director of Ascendas Real Estate Investment Trust (Ascendas Funds
Management (S) Limited). Before this, Mr. Ko was chairman and president of
Starwood Hotels & Resorts, Asia Pacific. Mr. Ko currently holds a non-executive
directorship in Changi Airport Group since 2009. Prior to joining Starwood Hotels
& Resorts, Mr. Ko held the position of deputy chairman and chief executive
officer at CDL Hotels International (2000}, various positions including president
at Pepsi-Cola International for Asia Pacific (1992 to 1999) and various positions
at ITT Sheraton Corporation (1979 to 1992). He has also previously held various
executive and non-executive directorships with Millennium and Copthorne plc
UK; Amarin Plaza Company Ltd., Thailand; CDL Hotels Ltd./City e-Solutions Hong
Kong; Serm Suk (Pepsi-Cola) Bottler Ltd., Thailand; Royal Orchid Hotel (Thailand)
Public Company Ltd.; Civil Aviation Authority, Singapore; Delta Topco Limited (a
privately held holding company for Formula One PLC); Merlin Entertainments
Group PLC; and Surbana International Consultants Pte Ltd. Mr. Ko holds a BA in
Economics from the University of Massachusetts (1975) and a MBA from Suffolk
University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1978]. He also qualified as a Certified
Public Accountant in New Hampshire in 1982, though does not currently practice.
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Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 63, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since June 2014, before which he served as
a Non-Executive Director from May 2011 until June 2014. He served as a non-
executive director of the consolidated group from October 2007 until May 2011. Mr.
McLain is a co-founder, and serves on the board, of CVC (formerly a subsidiary of
Citigroup known as Citicorp Venture Capital], from which he retired as managing
partner in December 2012. Mr. McLain joined Citicorp Venture Capital in 1988,
and in 1993 participated along with fellow managers in the acquisition of Citicorp
Venture Capital from Citigroup and the founding of CVC. Since founding CVC
Capital Partners he has been involved in and held directorships with a number
of companies including the Dorna Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala VMC QYJ
(1998 to 2005), Punch Taverns Plc (formerly known as Punch Group Limited)
(1999 to 2002), Spirit Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Spirit Amber
Holdings) (2003 to 2006), and Kappa Holding BV (1998 to 2000). He is currently a
non-executive director of Everbright Ltd., Terressentia Corp., Formula One, the
Haymon Sports LLC and the Lecta Group. Prior to joining Citicorp Development
Capital, Mr. McLain worked for Citicorp’s investment management (1986 to 1987)
and mezzanine finance (1987 to 1988 groups. Mr. McLain holds a BA in Public
Policy and Psychology from Duke University, Durham, North Carolina, USA, where
he graduated in 1976, and an MBA in Finance and Marketing from UCLA, Los
Angeles, California, USA (1981). He serves on the Board of Visitors for both the
Sanford School of Public Policy at Duke University and the UCLA Anderson School
of Management.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 67, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director
since May 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive experience as an executive and a non-
executive director of major international corporations. She was the chairman
of Nalco Greater China Region until June 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s
largest sustainability service companies. Ms. Yeh currently holds non-executive
directorships at ABB Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the stock
exchanges in Stockholm (NASDAQ OMX Stockholm) and the New York Stock
Exchange [NYSE)) and InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a company listed on the
main board of the London Stock Exchange). She was previously a non-executive
director of AB Volvo (a company listed on the OMX Nordic Exchange, Stockholm).
Prior to joining Nalco, Ms. Yeh worked in various Asian divisions of Eastman Kodak
(1997 to 2009) and also held various positions with the United States Government,
Foreign Service (1982 to 1997). Ms. Yeh holds a BA in Literature and International
Relations from National Taiwan University, Taiwan [1967).
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Changes in Information of Directors

A'summary of changes in information concerning certain Directors of the Company
that have occurred subsequent to the publication of the Company’s 2015 interim
report pursuant to Rule 13.51(BJ(1] of the Listing Rules is as follows:

°  Mr.Hamill retired as Chairman of Bagir Group Ltd. effective September 30, 2015.

e Mr. Etchells was appointed as Chairman and Non-Executive Director of
Twenty20 Limited effective November 1, 2015.

° Mr. Ko was appointed as Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director of
Ascendas Real Estate Investment Trust (Ascendas Funds Management (S)
Limited) effective January 1, 2016.

e Mr. Korbas will retire as the Company’s President, North America, effective
March 31, 2016 and will be re-designated as a non-executive director effective
April 1, 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group’s senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management
of its business. The following table sets out certain information concerning its
senior management:

EEENEH
RIBCETRRADE13.51BI1) 1§ ARRETES
VBRI NA AT 2015 P Bk E TR e et
mr

e Hamill%£ 4R E Bagir Group Ltd. HIEE -
B 201549 A30 BB -

e FEtchells £ A EZF A Twenty20 Limited ¥ EJE
FIEITES - 2015611 A1 BBER -

s EBAAEZARBREHEREETES
(Ascendas Funds Management (S]) Limited) #J &l
FERIEITES - B20165F1 A1 HRER -

o KorbasEWETARTLENREE @ B
20163 A31 BRBA » WEEFERIERIT
BE E2016F4B1ARER -

SREEE

AEENSREEEAEEEBNARER - TX
FIEHERRERENETER

Name Age Position

HE Fie B

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala 56 Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
HITEERITEER

Kyle Francis Gendreau 46 Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
HITESRUBRE

Lynne Berard 44 President, North America
EEMNBEE

Subrata Dutta 52 President, Asia Pacific and Middle East
DARPREER

Frank Ma 53 E 53 President, Greater China
RHPERER

Leo Boo Suk Suh (Leo) 47 President, South Korea
ARt EAE

Fabio Rugarli 51 President, Europe
BUNERE

Juan Roberto Guzméan Martinez (Roberto) 50 President, Latin America
NTEMNEBEH

Andrew David Wells 55 Chief Information Officer
BfBE

John Bayard Livingston 48 Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

BIRE - BLEBREREE QA RWE
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Ms. Lynne Berard serves as the Company’'s President, North America, and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Company’'s
business in the United States and Canada. Ms. Berard was promoted to her
current role with effect from April 1, 2016. Before her promotion, she served as
General Manager and Vice President, Sales and Marketing, for U.S. Wholesale
beginning in 2008, and as Vice President, Marketing (2002 to 2008) and Senior
Director, Marketing (2000 to 2002). Prior to 2000, Ms. Berard served in several
sales and marketing roles with the Group's U.S. business. She began her careerin
1993 with American Tourister, Inc., which was acquired by the Group in 1993. Ms.
Berard holds a BS in Business Management from Providence College, Providence,
Rhode Island, USA (1993).

Mr. Subrata Dutta serves as the Company’s President, Asia Pacific and Middle
East, and is responsible for the overall management and development of the
Company’s business in Asia. Mr. Dutta re-joined the Company in his current
role on April 5, 2016. From 2013 until 2016, he served as Chief Executive Officer
of Fabindia Overseas Private Limited, an India-based company in the apparel,
home furnishings, furniture, personal care and health foods business. Mr. Dutta
previously served as Managing Director (2008 to 2012) and Chief Operating Officer
(2007 to 2008) of Samsonite South Asia and Middle East, where he managed the
Group's business in India, the Middle East, the SAARC countries and East Africa.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Dutta worked as Business Head of Himalaya
Herbal Healthcare (2005 to 2007), Vice President Sales and Marketing of Wimco
Limited - Swedish Match Group (2002 to 2005], and in a variety of other sales
and marketing management roles for companies including Elbee Limited (2001
to 2002), Pepsi Foods Limited (2000 to 2001) and Lakme Limited, Lakme Lever
Limited and Hindustan Lever Limited (1990 to 2000). Mr. Dutta holds a BTech
with honors in Electrical Engineering from the Indian Institute of Technology,
Kharagpur, India (1986) and a PGDM from the Indian Institute of Management,
Bangalore, India (1990).
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Mr. Boo Suk Suh (Leo) serves as the Company's President, South Korea, and
is responsible for the overall management and development of the Company’s
business in South Korea. Mr. Suh joined the Group in 2005. He has served in
this role since January 1, 2016. His previous positions with the Company include
President, Asia Pacific and Middle East (2014 to 2015, Executive Vice President,
Asia (2013 to 2014) and General Manager, Korea (2005 to 2013). Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Suh served in sales and marketing roles with a number of global
luxury brands” South Korean operations, including Prada, Bally and Chanel. Mr.
Suh holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Yonsei University,
Seoul, South Korea. He also attended the Advanced Distribution Management
Program course at Yonsei Graduate School of Economics and the Global Leader
Course at Korea Graduate School of Education in Seoul, South Korea. Mr. Suh also
studied at the University of California, San Diego.

Mr. Frank Ma serves as the Company’'s President, Greater China, and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Group’s business
in mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the Philippines. He was
promoted to his current role in January 2015. Mr. Ma was the Vice President of
Samsonite Greater China from 2007 until January 2015. His previous positions
with the Company include General Manager of Samsonite China (1999 to 2007)
and Operations Manager of Samsonite China (1998). Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Ma held responsibilities in plant operations and process design with CP
Group, Cargill Corp. & Shandong Chemical Design Institute. He holds a Master's
of Engineering from Tianjin University, China (1988) and an MBA from Canberra
University, Australia (2004).

Mr. Fabio Rugarli serves as the Company’s President, Europe, and is responsible
for the overall management and development of the Group’s business in Europe.
Mr. Rugarli joined the Company in 1989. His previous positions with the Company
include General Manager for Samsonite Italy (2002 to 2009) and Marketing and
Sales Director for the luggage division in Italy (1996 to 2001). Mr. Rugarli holds a
degree in Business Administration from the University Bocconi, Milan, Italy (1988).

Mr. Juan Roberto Guzman Martinez (Roberto) serves as the Company’s President,
Latin America, and is responsible for the overall management and development
of the Company’s business in Latin America. Mr. Guzman joined the Company in
July 2007 when the Group formed Samsonite Chile S.A. as a joint venture with Mr.
Guzman, following the acquisition by the Group of the Saxoline group of companies
from Mr. Guzman's family. He was promoted to his current role in May 2014. From
2007 until his promotion in May 2014, Mr. Guzman served as General Manager of
Samsonite Chile S.A., and he continues to be responsible for the management
of the Group’s business in Chile. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guzman
served in various roles for the Saxoline group including General Manager (1998
to 2007), Deputy General Manager (1996 to 1998) and Finance and Administration
Manager (1989 to 1996). From 1988 to 1989 he worked as Operations Manager
for Salomon Brothers Chile. Mr. Guzman holds a degree in business engineering
from Pontificia Universidad Catélica de Chile, Santiago, Chile. He also attended the
Senior Executive Program at the London Business School.
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Mr. Andrew David Wells is the Company’s Chief Information Officer and is
responsible for developing, structuring and implementing the Group’s global
information technology strategy and outsourced IT shared services. Mr. Wells
joined the Group in March 2009. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wells was
global chief information officer and senior vice president at Shire plc, a FTSE
100 pharmaceutical company (2000 to 2008), supply chain director for Bristol
Myers Squibb Central & Eastern Europe Division (1996 to 1999) and manager of
Information Services International at Mars (1986 to 1996). Mr. Wells holds a M
Eng (Masters of Engineering) from Cambridge University, Cambridge, the United
Kingdom (1994).

Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston is responsible for all of the
Company’s legal matters worldwide and provides counsel to senior management
and the Directors on matters of corporate governance. Mr. Livingston joined the
Group in July 2006 and was Vice President and General Counsel for the Group's
Americas division until September 2009 when he became Vice President and
General Counsel of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Livingston was in-
house counsel (2002 to 2006) at Reebok International Ltd. and was an associate in
the corporate department of Ropes & Gray (1995 to 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a
BA in Political Science from Colgate University, Hamilton, New York, USA (1989),
and a J.D. from Boston College Law School, Newton, Massachusetts, USA (1994).

COMPANY SECRETARIES AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin lvy are the Company’'s Joint
Company Secretaries while Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala and Ms. Chow are
the Company’s authorized representatives (pursuant to the Listing Rules].

During 2015, the Joint Company Secretaries complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules regarding professional training.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGERS

None of the directors or senior managers is related to any other director or
senior manager.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2015

BUSINESS REVIEW

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”], together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the "Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and
casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective cases for personal electronic
devices throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American
Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck® and Lipault® brand names

and other owned and licensed brand names.

At the time of the Company’s listing in 2011, the Group's business was primarily

centered on the Samsonite brand, focused largely on travel luggage, and
distributed principally through the wholesale channel. Over the last several years,
the Group has strategically diversified its business in order to reduce its reliance
on any single brand, market, channel of distribution, or product category, and in
line with the goal of not just building a bigger business, but a stronger one as

ell. Today, the Group has a more balanced business, built around a portfolio of
diverse yet complementary brands and offering its customers a competitive mix of
products sold through multiple distribution channels. The Company believes this
diversification considerably strengthens its resilience and provides a platform for
sustained growth.

The Group sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels,
through its company-operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The principal
wholesale distribution customers of the Group are department and specialty retail
stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Group
sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.

Strategy

Details of the Company’s strategy for the year ended December 31, 2015 are set
out in the Strategy section on page 3 of this Annual Report.

Financial Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Details of the Group’s financial results of operations and financial condition as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 are set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") section on pages 22 to 57 of this Annual
Report. Reconciliations for non-IFRS measures are also presented within the
MD&A section.
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Financial Highlights

All key Group metrics showed moderate growth for the year ended December 31,
2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.

e Net sales increased to a record level of US$2,432.5 million, reflecting an
11.9% increase on a constant currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar
reported net sales increased by 3.5%. Excluding amounts attributable to the
acquisitions made in 2014, net sales, on a constant currency basis, increased
by US$218.9 million, or 9.8%, and US Dollar reported net sales increased by
US$25.6 million, or 1.1%.

e QOperating profit increased by US$27.9 million, or 9.3%, on a constant currency
basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported operating profit increased by US$9.6
million, or 3.2%, to US$308.9 million.

e Profit for the year increased by US$20.4 million, or 9.9%, on a constant
currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported profit for the year increased
by US$11.7 million, or 5.7%, to US$217.0 million.

e Profitattributable to the equity holders increased by US$19.9 million, or 10.7%,
on a constant currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar reported profit
attributable to the equity holders increased by US$11.4 million, or 6.1%, to
US$197.6 million.

e Adjusted Net Income increased by US$19.6 million, or 9.5%, on a constant
currency basis year-on-year. US Dollar reported Adjusted Net Income
increased by US$10.7 million, or 5.2%, to US$216.9 million.

e Adjusted EBITDA increased by US$48.5 million, or 12.6%, on a constant
currency basis from the previous year. US Dollar reported Adjusted EBITDA
increased by US$16.8 million, or 4.4%, to US$401.2 million.

e Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.5% from 16.4%.

e The Group generated US$259.0 million of cash from operating activities.

Significant investment in advertising and promotion

The Group continued to make significantinvestmentsin marketing, whichamounted
to approximately 5.4% of net sales during 2015, reflecting its commitment to
advertise and promote its brands and products to support sales growth worldwide.

Introduction of new and innovative products to the market

The Group continued to focus on innovation and ensuring that its products reflect
local consumer tastes in each region. Innovation and a regional focus on product
development are key drivers of sales growth and are the means to deliver quality
and value to the Group’s customers.
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Acquisitions

On February 16, 2015, certain of the Company’'s wholly-owned subsidiaries
completed the acquisition of the business and substantially all of the assets of
Rolling Luggage for a cash consideration of GBP15.8 million, with a subsequent
working capital adjustment of GBP(0.3) million and a subsequent purchase price
adjustment of GBP(0.5) million for leases that were not successfully transferred,
for a total purchase price of GBP15.0 million. The acquisition provides the Group
with a significant retail footprint in some of the world’s leading airports, and further
expands the Group's portfolio of retail store locations.

On June 26, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the 40%
non-controlling interest in its Russian subsidiary for US$15.7 million in cash, with
a final working capital adjustment of US$0.3 million settled in July 2015, increasing
its ownership from 60% to 100%.

On September 30, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company completed
the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, and assumed certain liabilities,
comprising the business as a going concern of Chic Accent for a cash consideration
of EUR8.5 million, with a subsequent working capital adjustment of EUR(2.1) million
in cash. The acquisition provides the Group with 31 retail store locations in Italy
dedicated to premium accessories, ladies” handbags, travel luggage and business
products, and further expands the Group's portfolio of retail store locations.

Future Prospects

The Group’s growth strategy will continue as planned for 2016, with a focus on the
following:

e Continue to develop the Company into a well-diversified multi-brand, multi-
category and multi-channel luggage, bag and accessories business.

e Tactfully deploy multiple brands to operate at wider price points and broader
consumer demographics in each category.

* Increase the proportion of sales from the Group’s retail channel by growing
e-commerce sales and through targeted expansion of its retail presence.

e Continue to invest in the Group’s core brands with sustained R&D spending
to produce exciting and innovative new products as well as new materials,
supported by effective marketing spend to drive awareness among consumers.

* Execute on market opportunities for newly acquired brands to further diversify
the Group’s product offering into non-travel categories.

The Group aims to deliver top-line growth, maintain gross margins, increase
Adjusted EBITDA margins and enhance shareholder value.
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Industry!

The global luggage market is forecast to experience a compound annual growth
rate ("CAGR") of approximately 5.8% from 2016 to 2020, primarily driven by the
luggage market in the Asian region, which is estimated to grow at a 6.9% CAGR
between 2016 and 2020. Growth in China and India is being driven by the increasing
demand for luggage as a result of increased spending on travel and tourism arising
from the general increase in disposable income.

Both the North American and European luggage markets are at a more mature
stage of development and are both forecast to grow at a 4.5% CAGR from 2016
to 2020. The U.S. contributed 94.8% of net sales in the North American region in
2015 and contribution from the U.S. is expected to provide a stable growth rate for
the North American region from 2016 to 2020. For the European region, Germany,
Italy, France, the United Kingdom and Spain are expected to be key contributors
in the European luggage market. Many cities in these countries are style capitals
for fashion connoisseurs. Luggage products, especially from luxury brands, are
considered fashion accessories. Purchasing of these luxury luggage brands is
expected to have a favorable impact on the European luggage market from 2016
to 2020.

The Latin American luggage market is expected to grow between 2016 and 2020
mainly due to the increased penetration by global vendors and the increasing
demand for luggage, propelled by the expansion of travel and expenditure on
tourism. Growth is also expected to come from favorable disposable income in
countries such as Chile, which saw a 3.6% CAGR increase in its annual disposable
income from 2011 to 2015.

The global luggage market can be categorized across three primary product
segments, namely the travel bag segment, the casual bag segment and the
business bag segment.

e The travel bag segment comprises travel products, such as suitcases and
carry-ons, and is further categorized by the material from which the products
are constructed, with the three main categories being hard-side, soft-side and
hybrid luggage.

e Casual bags are primarily for daily use, and include different types of
backpacks, female and male shoulder bags and wheeled duffel bags. Casual
bags are generally not sold as part of a luggage collection. Their color, size,
style and material vary.

° Business bags are primarily for business use. Special characteristics of
a business bag include convenience for carrying a laptop and documents,
and these bags often come in the form of rolling mobile office, briefcase or
computer bags.

Considering the market breakdown by product segment, the largest segment in
2015 was the travel bag segment, which was estimated at approximately US$13.9
billion of retail sales value and accounting for approximately 43.9% of the total
global luggage market. The casual bag segment was estimated to be US$12.7
billion of retail sales value in 2015, representing approximately 40.2% of the total

Note
(1) Source: Global Luggage Market 2016-2020, Technavio, 2015.
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global luggage market. The business bag segment was estimated to be US$5.0
15.9% of the
total global luggage market. The travel bag segment is forecast to increase at a

billion of retail sales value in 2015 and represented approximately

CAGR of approximately 6.9% over the next five years, driven by increased spending
in travel and tourism and continued structural growth in emerging markets. The
casual bag segment is expected to grow at a CAGR of approximately 4.0% over the
next five years, driven by a growing customer base with higher disposable income.
The business bag segment is forecast to grow at a CAGR of approximately 7.1%
over the next five years as increased globalization has led to a rise in the number
of people traveling on business.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of the Company’s purchases that were attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers was less than 30% during the year ended December 31, 2015.

The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was less than 30% during the year ended December 31, 2015.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.

Major Locations and Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, percentage ownership and
significant non-controlling interests as of December 31, 2015 are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

Intellectual Property

The Group is the registered owner of the Samsonite, American Tourister,
Hartmann, High Sierra, Gregory, Lipault, Speck and Rolling Luggage trademarks
as well as other local brands. The Group’s Samsonite and American Tourister
trademark registrations in its principal geographic markets are of material
importance to its business. The trademark registrations in the United States
and elsewhere will remain in existence for as long as the Group continues to
use and renew the trademarks on a timely basis. The substantial majority of the
Company’s intellectual property is held by its subsidiary, Samsonite IP Holdings
S.a r.l. The Group registers its trademarks in countries where products are sold
or manufactured for its primary brands (Samsonite, American Tourister], sub-
brands (such as Samsonite Red, Black Label, Xtrem) as well as key product line
and feature names (such as Cosmolite and Silhouette).

The Group seeks patent protection where appropriate for inventions embodied
in its products and design protection for a number of its unique designs. New
potentially patentable ideas from its research and development teams are
subjected to patentability and non-infringement analyses before a decision is
made to pursue a patent. Emphasis on innovation is a significant component of
the Group’s competitive strategy in applicable portions of its business, particularly
with respect to hard-side and hybrid luggage products, wheel technology and
mobile device cases. Patents and pending patent applications cover features,
designs and processes in various of the Group’s product lines.
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The Group’s anti-counterfeiting activities include training customs officials to
identify counterfeit goods, monitoring factories in China where many counterfeits
originate, and monitoring online marketplaces. The Group utilizes trademark
monitoring services and relies on its sales force in the various markets to identify
potentially infringing products. From time to time, third parties have sought to
imitate the Group’s patented products or trade off the reputation of its brands.
The Group also aggressively takes action to enforce its intellectual property
rights against third-party infringers by sending “cease and desist” letters, filing
opposition and cancellation proceedings, and, if necessary, bringing suits against
the infringing party. The Group identifies infringers through its business teams
in the various regions who are in the marketplace evaluating third-party activity;
through trademark watch services; through professionalinvestigators; and through
customs officials who work with the Group to detain potentially infringing product
at border locations. The Group respects valid third party intellectual property
rights, but will vigorously defend itself against any inappropriate third party claims.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, no infringement of the Group’s patents
or trademarks, and no allegations of infringement claimed against the Group, had
a material adverse effect on the business or reputation of the Group.

Competition

Competition in the luggage industry tends to vary across different parts of the
world and is highly fragmented. The Group has significant regional competitors in
each of its markets (Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America). However, the
Group is one of the few companies that operates on a global scale.

Throughout its regional markets, the Group competes based on brand name
recognition, reputation for product quality, product differentiation, new product
innovation, customer service, high quality consumer advertising campaigns and
quality to price comparisons. The Group is well established in the distribution
channels critical to luggage distribution. The Group also invests in marketing
campaigns in order to enhance consumer awareness of the Company’s brands
and drive sales growth.

The manufacture of soft-side luggage is labor intensive but not capital intensive;
therefore, barriers to entry by competitors in this market are relatively low. This is
reflected by the many small competitors present in the soft-side luggage market.
In addition, the Group competes with various large retailers, some of whom are its
customers, who have the ability to purchase private label soft-side luggage directly
from low-cost manufacturers.

The manufacture of hard-side and hybrid luggage is more capital intensive and
there are relatively fewer finished goods vendors. Nonetheless, the Group has
several significant competitors worldwide in the hard-side luggage market.
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Legal and Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Compliance

The Group operates in the consumer products wholesale and retail business, a
business generally characterized by lighter regulations than more manufacturing-
intensive businesses. The Group is required to secure licenses and permits to
operate its owned manufacturing facilities in Belgium, Hungary and India, and its
office in Ningbo, China. The Group’s in-house legal department provides oversight
and coordination of compliance with the rules, regulations and laws to which it is
subject, both at the corporate level as well as at the regional level.

The Company believes that all members of the Group have obtained and currently
maintain all necessary permits and licenses which are material to the Group’s
production and sales activities, and that the Group is in compliance in all material
respects with the rules, regulations and laws to which its business is subject.
The Group did not experience any material labor disputes during the year ended
December 31, 2015 and the Group believes it is in compliance in all material
respects with the labor laws of the jurisdictions in which it operates.

Competition Regulations

The Group, like all large companies, is subject to various competition laws
and rules, including laws and rules on merger control, restrictive agreements
and abuse of dominance or monopolization. The Group works to ensure that it
complies fully with these laws and regulations. If the Group was to be deemed to
have a dominant position in a particular market segment, and was deemed to have
abused that dominant position, it could be subject to regulatory action. In addition,
if the Group was to pursue certain acquisitions of businesses it may be subject
to competition regulations depending on the degree to which the business is a
competitor in the markets in which the Group operates.

Anti-Corruption

As a global company the Group is subject to anti-corruption laws in many of the
countries in which it operates, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act,
the UK Bribery Act and other applicable laws. In general, these laws prohibit
requesting, accepting, giving or offering anything of value to or from anyone to
reward improper performance of an official duty or to obtain an unfair business
advantage.

The Company has adopted a Global Anti-Corruption Policy that requires all of the
Company’s directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives to comply
with all applicable anti-corruption laws. The policy, which has been distributed
to personnel worldwide, provides guidance on how to ensure compliance under
various scenarios that may be encountered. In addition, training on compliance
with anti-corruption laws has been completed by appropriate personnel.
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The Company’'s legal department provides guidance on compliance with the
Global Anti-Corruption Policy and applicable laws, and the Company's internal
audit department, as part of its routine internal audit activities, helps to assess
compliance with the policy. In addition, management in each of the Company’s
regions certifies compliance with the policy as part of the Company’s internal
management representation process that is completed twice annually in
connection with the preparation of the interim and annual financial statements.
The Company is not aware of any violations of applicable anti-corruption laws,
nor is it aware that it has been subject to any investigation by any governmental
authority of any alleged or suspected violation of such laws.

Environmental Protection

The Group's operations throughout the world are subject to national, state
and local environmental laws and regulations. These environmental laws and
regulations govern the generation, storage, transportation and emission of various
substances. The Group works to ensure that its existing operations comply with
these laws and regulations. The Company believes that the Group is in compliance
in all material respects with the environmental laws and regulations to which its
business is subject.

From time to time the Group has incurred, or accrued for, cleanup or settlement
costs for environmental cleanup matters associated, or alleged to have been
associated, with its historic operations. To date, these expenses have not had
a material effect upon the Group’s cash flow or financial position. Unknown,
undiscovered or unanticipated situations or events may require the Group to
increase the amount it has accrued for any environmental matters.

Regulation of Materials
REACH

The Group’'soperationsin Europeare subjecttothe hazardous materials regulations
known as REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of
Chemical substances), the European Union regulation on chemicals and their
safe use. The Group is required to gather information on the chemical substances
used both in its own production and in imported goods, and to communicate to the
Group’s customers if hazardous substances on the list of Substances of Very High
Concern ("SVHC") are used in its products, which the Group has done in the past
for its use of certain phthalates on the SVHC list in some of its soft-side products.
The Group has been working proactively with its suppliers to phase out its use of
these phthalates and to meet the EU ban of these substances. If the Group uses
more than one ton of a substance on the list of SVHC, and if this substance has not
been registered for the particular use it is making of such substance, the Group is
required to notify the European Chemicals Agency ("TECHA”). The Group does not
believe it is currently required to notify the ECHA of any substance it uses.
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Proposition 65

Proposition 65 is a California hazardous material regulation that provides a list of
chemicals that, if included in products, must either be included in safe amounts, or
the products must be labeled, disclosing to the consumer that the product contains
a substance determined by the State of California to be potentially harmful. Similar
to REACH, this list of chemicals includes phthalates, and is enforced through civil
litigation in the State of California.

Economic Conditions

Details of potential economic conditions that could impact the Group's results of
operations and financial condition are disclosed within the Risk Management and
Internal Control section of the Corporate Governance Report on pages 68 to 74 of
this Annual Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has adopted a social compliance policy that it requires its third party
suppliers to adhere to. The Group employs personnel in China who monitor its
third-party suppliers for any practices that would violate its social compliance
policies, such as child labor, forced labor or other human rights violations. Any
evidence of practices that would violate its social compliance policies that are not
remedied by the third party may result in the termination of the Group’s working
relationship with that party.

Risk Factors

Details of the Group's principal risks and uncertainties that may adversely impact
the Company’s performance and the execution of its strategies are disclosed within
the Risk Management and Internal Control section of the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 68 to 74 of this Annual Report.

Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is
limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on
credit risk. There is no concentration of credit risk geographically or with any
single customer.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
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In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their
credit characteristics, including aging profile and existence of previous financial
difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’'s wholesale
customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and
monitored by the Group and future sales are made on an approval basis. Further
information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2015 is
set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Guarantees

The Group's policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of subsidiaries.
No other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Group's primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities,
invested cash, and available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder approval,
its ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and
estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to
meet its operating and capital requirements for at least the next twelve months.
See note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for the maturity profile of
outstanding borrowings as of December 31, 2015.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts a portion of its business in currencies other than the US Dollar,
the functional currency of the Company and the currency in which the consolidated
financial statements are reported. Accordingly, the Group’'s operating results
could be adversely affected by foreign currency exchange rate volatility relative
to the US Dollar. The Group's foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their
functional currencies. The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts
to hedge its exposure to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a
currency other than the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The
forward exchange contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.
Although the Group continues to evaluate strategies to mitigate risks related to
the fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the Group will likely recognize gains
or losses from international transactions. Changes in foreign currency exchange
rates could adversely affect the Group’s operating results.

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of its
subsidiaries. Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the
borrowing entity. Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match
the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

A sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to currency risk is set out in note
21(d)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on
variable rate debt instruments. Although the Group does not currently have any
interest rate hedging instruments, it may from time to time enter into interest
rate swap contracts to manage interest rate risk. See note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk as of December
31, 2015.

Tax Rates and Liabilities

A number of international legislative and regulatory bodies have proposed
draft legislation and begun investigations on the tax practices of multinational
companies. One of these efforts has been led by The Organization for Economic
Co-operation and Development (the "OECD"), an international association of 34
countries including the United States, which has finalized recommendations
to revise many corporate taxes, transfer pricing, and tax treaty provisions in
member countries. In addition, the European Union and its European Commission
has begun to review and opine on the appropriateness of certain agreements
between various member countries and companies in light of the European Union
competition rules against unjustified state aid. While the Company maintains that
it is in compliance with corporate tax, transfer pricing, and tax treaty provisions,
it is possible that these efforts may in the future impact its income tax liabilities.

Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities held by the Group’s
defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic
net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan
assets in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's
investment strategy is to generate investment returns on pension plan assets in
order to satisfy its defined benefit pension plan obligations. The Group engages
professional pension plan asset managers to assist in this process.

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed
to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date
without considering future compensation levels) exceeds the fair value of the assets
of the Group’s pension plans, which is primarily the result of underperforming
equity markets and low interest rates during prior years. Future market conditions
and interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact future assets and liabilities
of the Group’s pension plans and future minimum required funding levels. See
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for the Group’s exposure to other
market risk as of December 31, 2015.
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Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average inventory, cost
of sales and average inventory days for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014:

EEESE®R

BEESH

TREFFNEZE2015F 12831 B KX 2014F 12 A31H
IHFEEAEEFHEE - HEXARFHEFEAH
R E -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31HILEE

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (L FET25!)

Average inventory!™ FFEE
Cost of sales SHERA
Average inventory turnover days? FHFEEERHY

340,675 315,326
1,153,513 1,106,881
108 104

Notes P&t
(1) Average inventory equals the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period.

FHEERENMSER BB RBRNTEFENTIIH -

(2)  Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied by the number of days in

the period.
BERBNTOFEEE A BESNZHEN P OFERUZNBNHEESS - BRUZBENAH -

The Group’s average inventory increased in 2015 (US$349.1 million as of December
31, 2015 compared to US$332.3 million as of December 31, 2014) compared to
2014 (US$332.3 million as of December 31, 2014 compared to US$298.4 million
as of December 31, 2013) to support increased customer demand and new
product introductions, as well as a result of the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent
acquisitions during 2015 and the acquisition of Speck Products, Gregory and
Lipault during 2014.

Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group's average trade and other
receivables, net sales and turnover days of trade and other receivables for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

2015 AKEFHEFEE(R2015F 12831845
3491 EEZEIT  MKR2014% 12 A31HAIA332.35F
EEIT)E2014F(R2014F 12 A31AA33238E
FEJL MR2013F 12 A31BAIA2984B&EFET)
o BRI REPESEMEEEFES -
LA R 2015 E B Rolling Luggage & Chic Accent it
FEETE R 2014 FFH) Speck Products * Gregory &
Lipault Y BB SR IRPIER -

P BRI H b PR W FROR

TREHEZE2015F12A31HX2014F 128318
IEFEAERFEHRUKIRR R EAMEREIE - HE
R EE DA N FEUSUAR 30 N B At FE UGB B A B2 -

Year ended December 31,

HBZE12A31BILEE

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (LT3 2%!)

Average trade and other receivables'" 345 FE W BR TR e ELAth FE U Rk 1B ) 287,168 268,607
Net sales HEFR 2,432,477 2,350,707
Turnover days of trade and other receivables'?  FEUBRFN R EAtbfE R FRIBEEE A &2 43 42

Notes FffzF

(1) Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period.

PR AR AL W EAR S FMEE R ) R R R R E SRR RN F19H

(2)  Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net sales for that period and

multiplied by the number of days in the period.

5 RE R RO PR AR I HL At FE W RUR B EE B BB S N R 0 T BRI R Rt W EURMR A ZH SR BRUZHENAE -
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The Group's average trade and other receivables increased in 2015 (US$283.5
million as of December 31, 2015 compared to US$290.8 million as of December 31,
2014) compared to 2014 (US$290.8 million as of December 31, 2014 compared to
US$246.4 million as of December 31, 2013) in line with the increase in net sales and
the acquisitions of Speck Products, Gregory and Lipault completed during 2014.

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2015 are on average due within 60 days from
the date of billing.

Trade and Other Payables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade and other
payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other payables for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

2015 F 7N 5= B F 15 e U5 BR 3R K H b FE U 3R (R
20156 12 A31HA2835BEFEIL * MM 2014F 12
A31BAIA2908E&EEIT)E2014F (720145 12
A31H®2908B&% I - MH2013F 12431 HEI
B246 L EBETT)GI - BEEFEER KN 2014
E 5K H) Speck Products » Gregory ¥ Lipault 488
FIEH -

720159 12 A 31 HOBUWRFR T RN RE A H
#EET60 BN EIEA -

P& R R B EL At FE Y RRIR

TREHNEZE 2015512 A31H K 2014F 12 A31H
IEFEAEEFYREARERREMEMNRIE - HE
FRANIA B FE ST BR TR I At FE (S RUER S A B E

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BILEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AT Xt 251)

Average trade and other payables!
SHEMAE

Cost of sales

Turnover days of trade and other payables?

FHRMRR R A EARED

FE R R AN R BEE R #?

428,793 401,342
1,153,513 1,106,881
136 132

Notes FffzF

(1) Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period.

FAGREAS BRN R H A FE A FORAR S FMSTE H R B 4 R AR PR 9 BR N R HL A FE (YRR RO P9 o

(2)  Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied

by the number of days in the period.

R R AR R A At FE N RUREE A BHES R RN TN R R RN TR ZHEHEER S - BRUZHENAS -

The Group's average trade and other payables increased in 2015 (US$442.1 million
as of December 31, 2015 compared to US$415.4 million as of December 31,
2014) compared to 2014 (US$415.4 million as of December 31, 2014 compared to
US$387.2 million as of December 31, 2013) primarily due to increased inventory
purchases period over period and the timing of such purchases, as well as a result
of the Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent acquisitions during 2015 and the Speck
Products, Gregory and Lipault acquisitions during 2014.

Trade payables as of December 31, 2015 are on average due within 105 days from
the invoice date.

2015 G 7N 5 B T 9 8 A5 BR 3R I At JE A5 53R0E (R
201512 A31 B A442. 1 BEEIT - MR 20144
12A31BAIALI5SAAEET)K2014F (52014
F12A31BALSLEEET - MKR2013F12A
31ABIA387.2HEEIT)IGIN - TEHREBRNEE
FEEMEREERRE - AKRBM2015F 8 Rolling
Luggage & Chic Accent Yt iE =18 % 2014 5 #) Speck
Products * Gregory X Lipault YR8 B TEFTEK °

MR2015%F 12 A3 1 BN EMNERFHAEREZAE
#5105 HRRIES -
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Gearing Ratio

The following table sets forth the Group’s loans and borrowings (excluding
deferred financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as of December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014:

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (SLF =T 2%!)

Loans and borrowings (excluding deferred
financing costs)

Total equity AR
Gearing ratio® B RN

ERR AR (MERELERERA)

ERLE=
TREIIAEBER2015F12 A31HKE2014F 12 A
JNEERRERMBRETCHERD) « ESEEN
IBIRELER -

December 31, 2015
2015128 31H

December 31, 2014
2014 12A31H

64,182 67,568
1,399,386 1,307,440
4.6% 5.2%

Note FfizE
(1) Calculated as total loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity.

EERR AR (MIREERE R A ) BR AR AR -

DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company will evaluate its distribution policy and distributions made (by way
of the Company’s ad hoc distributable reserve, dividends or otherwise) in any
particular year in light of its financial position, the prevailing economic climate
and expectations about the future macroeconomic environment and business
performance. The Company intends to increase distributions to shareholders in
line with its growth in earnings. The determination to make distributions will be
made upon the recommendation of the Board and the approval of the Company’s
shareholders and will be based upon the Group’s earnings, cash flow, financial
condition, capital and other reserve requirements and any other conditions which
the Board deems relevant. The payment of distributions may also be limited by
legal restrictions and by financing agreements that the Group may enter into in
the future.

The Board recommends that a cash distribution in the amount of US$93.0
million, or approximately US$0.0659 per share based upon the number of shares
outstanding as of the date hereof (the "Distribution”) be made to the Company’s
shareholders from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The per share amount of the
Distribution is subject to change in the event that any new shares are issued
pursuant to the exercise of outstanding share options before the record date for
the Distribution. A further announcement will be made on the record date of the
Distribution in the event that the final amount per share changes. The payment
shall be made in US Dollars, except that payment to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members in Hong Kong shall be paid in Hong Kong
Dollars. The relevant exchange rate shall be the opening buying rate of Hong
Kong Dollars to US Dollars as announced by the Hong Kong Association of Banks
(www.hkab.org.hk] on the day of the approval of the Distribution.
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The Distribution will be subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from May 31, 2016
to June 2, 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. The record date to determine which shareholders will be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM will be June 2, 2016. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on May 30, 2016.

Subject to the shareholders approving the recommended Distribution at the
forthcoming AGM, such Distribution will be payable on July 13,2016 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on June 17, 2016. To determine
eligibility for the Distribution, the register of members will be closed from June
15, 2016 to June 17, 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to receive the Distribution,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on June 14, 2016.

The Distribution will not be subject to withholding tax under Luxembourg laws.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment for the year ended

December 31, 2015 is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves during the year ended December
31,2015 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 126
and 127 of this Annual Report and in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December 31,
amounted to approximately US$2.1

2015, reserves available for distribution to shareholders
billion as shown in the statutory financial
statements of Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION

As of December 31, 2015, the Group had approximately 9,800 employees worldwide,
compared to approximately 8,900 employees as of December 31, 2014. The
increase in headcount was largely driven by the addition of new retail stores and
shop-in-shop expansion in Asia as well as acquisitions. The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant market
practice, employee performance and the financial performance of the Group.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the Company’s
Share Award Scheme to remain in effect until September 13, 2022. The purpose
of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to
incentivize them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for
the future development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. Awards under the Share
Award Scheme may take the form of either share options or restricted share
units ("RSUs"), which may be granted at the discretion of the Board to directors,
employees or such other persons as the Board may determine.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the Board
in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the higher of:

a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

b] the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

c) the nominal value of the shares.

As of February 29, 2016 (the "Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate
number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme is 89,100,758 shares, representing approximately 6.3% of
the issued share capital of the Company at that date. An individual participant may
be granted awards pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in respect of a maximum
of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any 12-month period. Any grant of
awards to an individual participant in excess of this limit is subject to independent
shareholder’s approval.

On January 7, 2015, the Company granted share options exercisable for 16,006,812
ordinary shares to certain directors, key management personnel and other
employees of the Group with an exercise price of HK$23.31 per share. Such options
are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting
on each anniversary date of the grant. Such options have a 10-year term.
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On January 7, 2015, the Company made an additional special grant of share options
exercisable for 10,040,399 ordinary shares to an Executive Director and to five
additional members of the Group’s senior management team. The exercise price
of the options granted was HK$23.31. 60% of such options will vest on January 7,
2018 and 40% will vest on January 7, 2020. Such options have a 10-year term.

On August 31, 2015, the Company granted share options exercisable for 114,158
ordinary shares to an employee of a subsidiary of the Company. The exercise price
of the options granted was HK$24.15. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting
over a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of
the grant. Such options have a 10-year term.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options are
entitled to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price
per share equal to the exercise price of the options. The fair value of services
received in return for share options granted is based on the fair value of share
options granted measured using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value
calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made
and the limitations of the model utilized.

The grant-date fair value of the share options granted is generally recognized as
an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity when such options represent
equity-settled awards, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount
recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which
the vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the vesting conditions at

the vesting date.
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15R20184F 1 A7THRE © 40% A5 20201 A7
HEE - ZEHERIENFHRI0F -

R201568A31 8 + RARIMARRNBAR—%
(B BB AT1T{E LARRES 114,158 B @A HO BB AR A -
FTist H BB RRAE YT (B 5 24 15787T - R SHIRER
R AFEINIRLL IS E - B 25% MEERERE L
HOSEEFRRE - ZSBRIENFHAI10F -
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SRERETEENTRABBERBEARRMET
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The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the 16,006,812 share options made on January 7,
2015:

Fair value at grant date HK$7.57
Share price at grant date HK$23.10
Exercise price HK$23.31
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 40.0%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 1.9%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the additional special grant of 10,040,399 share
options made on January 7, 2015:

Fair value at grant date HK$7.94
Share price at grant date HK$23.10
Exercise price HK$23.31
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 40.4%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 7 years
Expected dividends 1.9%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
of the share-based payment for the 114,158 share options made on August 31,
2015:

Fair value at grant date HK$7.09
Share price at grant date HK$24.15
Exercise price HK$24.15
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 36.1%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 2.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.3%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price
volatility as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable companies
given the limited trading history of the Company’s shares.

In total, share-based compensation expense of US$15.2 million and US$11.0
million was recognized in the consolidated income statement, with the offset in
equity reserves, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively.

Samsonite International S.A.  FTEEEEBRAF]
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Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December 31,

2015 were as follows:

Number of share options

s

BE2015F12A3MBILFE - BRENFELE

BREHE
Closing price
Exercise immediately
Canceled/ price preceding the
As of lapsed As of per share  date of grant
January 1, Granted Exercised  duringthe December 31, (HK$) (HK$)
2015  duringthe during the period 2015 R SBEELBEA
20154 period period" HAPRFESH/ 7420154  Date of grant Exercise period 1TEE HoL
1A18 AR BT R 12A318 #&HAH (3&7T) j
Directors
EE
Timothy Parker 1,821,615 - - - 1,821,615 January 7, 2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
2014$1 ﬁ 7H January 6, 2024
20151878 -
20245 1R 6H
Timothy Parker 2,368,749 - - - 2,368,749  January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
2013ﬂ51ﬁ8E| January 7, 2023
201451 H8H-
20231 H87H
Ramesh - 2,166,815 - - 2,166,815  January 7,2015 January 7, 2016 - 23.31 23.30
Tainwala 20151878 January 6, 2025
2016518 7H-
20251 86H
Ramesh 638,033 - - - 638,033  January 7,2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
Tainwala 20141878 January 6, 2024
20151878 -
2024F1H6H
Ramesh 843,208 - - - 843,208  January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
Tainwala 201341 88H January 7, 2023
20145 188H-
20235 1H7H
Kyle Gendreau - 866,726 - - 866,726  January 7,2015 January 7, 2016 - 23.31 23.30
2015$1ﬁ 78 January 6, 2025
2016518 7H-
20251 86H
Kyle Gendreau - 2,506,600 - - 2,506,600 January 7,2015 January 7, 2018 - 23.31 23.30
2015£F1 ﬁ 78 January 6, 2025
20181 H7H-
2025 1H6H
Kyle Gendreau 589,543 - - - 589,543  January 7,2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
2014¢1ﬁ 78 January 6, 2024
2015%F1A7H-
20245 1H6H
Kyle Gendreau 779,124 - - - 779,124 January 8, 2013  January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
2013£|-:1 AsH January 7, 2023
201451 H8H-
2023 187H
Tom Korbas - 714,182 - - 714,182  January 7,2015 January 7, 2016 - 23.31 23.30
2015@1 B7H January 6, 2025
20161878 -
2025 1H6H
Tom Korbas 577,351 - - - 577,351 January 7,2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
2014&1 E 78 January 6, 2024
2015%F1A7H-
2024 1H6H
Tom Korbas 552,588 - - - 552,588  January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
201341 H88H January 7, 2023
201451 H8H -
20231 H87H
Total Directors 8,170,211 6,254,323 - - 14,424,534
BEE5
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Number of share options

BREHE
Closing price
Exercise immediately
Canceled/ price  preceding the
As of lapsed As of per share  date of grant
Name/category of January 1, Granted  Exercised duringthe December 31, (HK$) (HK$)
grantee 2015  duringthe during the period 2015 Bl ZERLEBAA
FERAH 720155 period period" HARIEEEH/ 72015%  Date of grant Exercise period TEE Kk E
HE /55| 118 HRkdE  #BRiaTfy KR 12A318 A 11 (8) (&)
Others
At
Employees - 12,259,089 = (698,651) 11,560,438 January 7, 2015 January 7, 2016 - 23.31 23.30
=] 2015451 A7F [
20161 A 7H-
2025 1H6H
Employees - 7,533,799 - - 7,533,799  January 7,2015 January 7, 2018 - 23.31 23.30
B 201561 A7F ISR
2018 1H7H-
20255 1H6H
Employees - 114,158 - - 114,158  August 31,2015 August 31,2016 -  24.15 2415
&S 2015478 A31 5 August3D, 2025
201658 H31H-
20258 A30H
Employees 8,531,526 - (517,722)  (716,092) 7,297,712 January 7, 2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
&8 201451 87Q | January 6, 2024
20151 A 78 -
20245 1H6H
Employee 257,566 - - - 257,566  May 29, 2014 May 29, 2015 - 24.77 25.25
& 201445 A 29 B | May 28,2024
2015 5H29H -
2024%5H28H
Employees 9,674,041 - (1,289,347) (579,857) 7,804,837  January 8,2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
=] 2013158 F (SRS
20145 1H8H-
20231 R87H
Employee 108,522 - - - 108,522  July 1, 2013 July 1, 2014 - 18.68 18.68
=] 2013710 [
2014578 1H-
2023F6H30H
Total Employees 18,571,655 19,907,046 (1,807,069) (1,994,600) 34,677,032
EE&ET
Total 26,741,866 26,161,369 (1,807,069) (1,994,600) 49,101,566
#Hat
Note BffzE

(1) The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date of exercise by participants was HK$26.02.

SRS EETE R AR O ET IR THER 26,0278

Details of the accounting treatment for share options are set out in notes 3(m)(vi)

and 14(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Samsonite International S.A.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2015 amounted to US$0.4 million.

BANK LOANS

As of December 31, 2015, the Group had bank loans of approximately US$64.1
million that were repayable upon demand or within one year.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets, and liabilities of the Company for the last five
fiscal years is set out on page 216 of this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

See note 24 to the consolidated financial statements for a review of any material
events subsequent to December 31, 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation provide that the Company shall keep
indemnified to the extent permitted by law, among others, its directors and any
attorneyin fact it may appoint against any reasonable costs and expenses incurred
by them by virtue of their involvement in legal proceedings or suits initiated
against them by reason of their current or former holding of office as a director
or attorney in fact or at the request of the Company or of any other company of
which the Company is a shareholder or creditor, except where they are found
to be grossly negligent or to have breached their duties to the Company. In the
event of any extra-judicial compromise settlement, the Articles of Incorporation
provide that a director or attorney in fact is only to be indemnified if the Company
is informed by its legal counsel that the director or attorney in fact has not failed
in his or her duties to the Company. Save as disclosed above, the Company is not
a party to any permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Company is not a party to any management contract under which any person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company where such contract is not a contract of
services with any director of the Company or any person engaged in the full time
employment of the Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued 1,807,069 ordinary
shares at a weighted-average exercise price of HK$19.06 per share, or HK$34.4
million in aggregate, in connection with the exercise of share options that were
granted under the Company’s Share Award Scheme. There were no purchases
or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of any movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

DIRECTORS

As of December 31, 2015 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the composition
of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala
Kyle Francis Gendreau

Non-Executive Directors

Timothy Charles Parker
Tom Korbas'"

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Paul Kenneth Etchells
Keith Hamill

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)
Ying Yeh

Note

(1) Mr. Tom Korbas was re-designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from
April 1, 2016.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as of the date of this report
are set out on pages 80 to 85 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM has or is
proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in respect of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala’s interests in certain of the
Company’s continuing connected transactions on pages 114 to 120 of this Annual
Report, none of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of the year to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EEREESITHAENRKRG RE
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND RO ERRARE
UNDERLYING SHARES R2015F 128310 » ARAIEERESTHRAE

As of December 31, 2015, the interests and short positions of the directors and ~ WA R R E BB (% (5 kA &G ([(E
chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the — FREEMEBI])FBXVEHIER) 0D KARR D
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the ~ FHARE(ER LG D) EXVEE 7 M8HE
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified ~ A& AR F R FAMEZ FAR (BRERE(E
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of = REIEEHI) B RGN SR & ERRIEHEA 1Y
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed ~ HZHZKXR) » AL AL R BARE (RS LB K
to have under such provisions of the SFOQ), or as recorded in the register required 1) &8 XVEDE 352 (RETFHOBRCMAER ROXR - K
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise ~ RIEC ETRAD ISR 10 A LM EITAERE
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for ~ fT@# X ZHRETAD ([RETRADDASITAE
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set ~ ANA B KBz SARIAT

out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company 1. REQBRMDNEFE
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares
held at December 31, 2015%!
Name of Director Nature of Interest R20155 12 A31 BRFENZER/ Approximate shareholding %
EEHE EREME HEROEE @ IEREHNBIN A D
Timothy Charles Parker Beneficial owner 60,475,844 (L) 4.2
BEREAA
Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala Beneficial owner 13,840,090 (L) 0.9
EREAA
Kyle Francis Gendreau Beneficial owner 6,151,641 (L)< 0.4
EXHEBA
Tom Korbas Beneficial owner 2,540,292 (L)@ 0.1
BEREAA
Keith Hamill Beneficial owner 193,745 (L) 0.0
EREAA
Bruce Hardy McLain Beneficial owner 883,400 (L) 0.0
BEREAA
Ying Yeh Beneficial owner 3,000 (L) 0.0
Eg BEREAA
Notes ffzF
(a) (L) represents long position.
[(REAE- 255 -

(b)  Comprised of 28,142,740 shares held by Mr. Parker and 28,142,740 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker, each as beneficial and
registered owner. Mr. Parker is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms. Parker. Also includes share options held by Mr. Parker that are
exercisable for 4,190,364 shares.

3% 28,142,740 IR Parker S5 4 5 A OB 1D K 28,142,740 IR B EL B8 Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker Z L MRA - HELHABERETHEEA - RIEE
S RIERB] - Parker BEWR BIEH Parker L FTFA KRN HIMES o IVEIE Parker SEA FTISA AI{TAERRHE 4,190,364 RIRMD O EB AR AE o
(c) Comprised of 10,192,034 shares held by Mr. Tainwala and share options exercisable for 3,648,056 shares.
3% 10,192,034 B Tainwala SEE 58 HIBR 0 ] AT 17665248 3,648,056 IR AR 1 AV BB AR AE o
(d) Comprised of 1,409,648 shares held by Mr. Gendreau and share options exercisable for 4,741,993 shares.
BE 1,409,648 IR H Gendreau SE AR EHIBR D T FIATAERRAE 4,741,993 IRAR 1D AR IR AE -
(e} Comprised of 696,171 shares held by Mr. Korbas and share options exercisable for 1,844,121 shares.
BI¥E 696,171 B Korbas SEAERFE HARAD I AT AERRAE 1,844,121 BRAR 1D EVRB AR AE -
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2. Interests in the shares of associated corporations 2. PMEESEERR 1 R R
Number of ordinary shares held
Name of at December 31, 2015 Approximate
Name of Director Associated Corporation Nature of Interest R2015%F 12 831 BIFEH shareholding %
EEHE AL E AR ERME ZiEREA IHRENBIA B DL
Ramesh Dungarmal Samsonite South Asia Beneficial owner and 14,196,493 (L)® 40.0
Tainwala Private Limited interest in a controlled
corporation
BEREEAR
R A E N ER
Samsonite Interest in a controlled 8 (L)@ 40.0
Middle East FZCO corporation

REZEFEE N ER

Notes FffzF

(a)

(b)

(]

(L) represents long position.

L) R&RFR -

This amount includes (i) 1,807,020 shares jointly held by Mr. Tainwala’ s wife, Mrs. Shobha Tainwala, and his daughter, (i) 9,644,473 shares in which Mr. Tainwala has full
discretion to exercise voting rights under powers of attorney on behalf of other shareholders in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited, (iii) 556,000 shares held by Tainwala
Holdings Private Limited and (iv) 2,189,000 shares held by Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited. Mrs. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in 66.3% of the issued share
capital of Tainwala Holdings Private Limited while Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in 69.9% of the issued share capital of Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited (since
Mrs. Tainwala’s controlling interest in that company is attributed to him) and Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited (since he has a controlling interest in that company).
The remaining 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited is held by the Group.

ZBEEEIEA () Tainwala £EMZEF Shobha Tainwala Z R E Z RHEFE 1,807,020 AP ~ (ii)9,644,473BMEAD - B Tainwala EE A2 RFISRIEZEERE
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited B EL AR 5RAT/# 4R =4 ~ (jii)Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 3%/ 556,000 B2 BR 3 % (iv]Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited 748
#92,189,000 A% 15 ° Tainwala A K 1R4E#EE Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 66.3% 23 4TRRAH9AEES » M Tainwala 554 B3 18 /E B Periwinkle Fashions Private
Limited 69.9% B2 1TARANAVAELS o Bt » Tainwala 5E4E 3R EHEA Tainwala Holdings Private Limited (FA/A Tainwala A AR 2 BT MR AR EZS IR B R Tainwala 564£) |
Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited (AR R &2 B HA 2R #5 ) A Samsonite South Asia Private Limited fTiS A Y2 E8#E % - Samsonite South Asia Private Limited
ERT B9 60% IR ER AN EEIFE o

Mr. Tainwala holds 100% of the equity interest in Periwinkle Holdings Limited and therefore Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire 40% equity interest in
Samsonite Middle East FZCO held by Periwinkle Holdings Limited. The remaining 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite Middle East FZCO is held by the Group.

Tainwala 554457 Periwinkle Holdings Limited 3P4 » E L » Tainwala S 4 HIE fEHEE Periwinkle Holdings Limited 74 Samsonite Middle East FZCO ffi#540% IR I 2
Bz ° Samsonite Middle East FZCOER T # 60% BB AL EIIFA -

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2015, none of the directors or chief B EXHEEEIN - R20155F12A318 - KARQFE
executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or short positions ~ FEHE=EITHA BB AR ER AR 7] R H E ]
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its  FBEEEE (R (EH LEAEIEH) XV EH EE) BIIR
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were 13 HHERK KEEEFTFHEARBE(EFRBE K
notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 ) S XVELE 7 K& 89 B /A A1 E N2 7] K Bk A2 P 4
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken — z@=sA R (BIERIE(ES RFEEH) OB RIEX
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQ), or recorded in the register — HEWE EXAIEHE B ORI AR) » SRR ALXA
required to be maintained by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO,  GIZBIRIE (& H REFE 5 55 XV EBEE 352 (5515 19
or as otherwise notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the — Z MM IIAR « iR i (GRAESFRI) B STTA
Model Code. BARNE MR AR ERSORE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRRRG KRR G AR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND BmRRE
UNDERLYING SHARES
1. Long and short position in the shares of the Company 1. REDABRDNEFERKE
Number of ordinary shares held Approximate
at December 31, 20155 shareholding %
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest R2015F12 831 BEFEW TRIRFERIBEA
RERETH EREME EERHA Aot
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Custodian corporation/ 112,633,876 (P) 7.9
Approved lending agent
FERE/EEHREBEA
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Investment manager 5,757,600 (L) 0.4
REEEA
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 8,956,236 (L) 0.6
BEREAA
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 3,061,721 (S) 0.2
BERHEBA
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.  Interest in a controlled 113,980,517 (L) 8.0
corporation
REEHEE N ERE
Wellington Management Interest in a controlled 99,759,951 (L) 7.0
Company, LLP corporation
REEHEE N ERE
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. Beneficial owner 99,254,600 (L) 7.0
and its affiliates BREAA
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.
SRR NG
Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled 81,758,194 (L) 5.7
EERR+ R corporation
RE B
Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled 6,329,333 (S) 0.4
EEAR+ SR corporation
REEGEE RN ERE
FIL Limited Investment manager 85,363,885 (L) 6.0
REEEA
Note izt

(a) (L) represents long position. (S) represents short position. (P) represents lending pool.

(L) RELF A © (S) RFRKR - (P) REAIEE TR -

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2015, so far as the directors are B EXIEEESIN » W2015%F 12 8318 » EEI T
aware, no other persons [except the directors or chief executives) or corporations  &FBEMEMA T (EEHEZRITHAERIN SE
had 5% or more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of the ~ BIR AR BIRR D RABRER (D P A L AR QR BZBR
Company which were recorded in the register required to be maintained by the & (EH R HAE &) 5 XV IBEE 336 I&EF R Z
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFQ. B5% S bA FRIRERR SRR -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Company and required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
to be disclosed in the Company’s annual report:

a) Transactions between Samsonite India and associates of
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala

Samsonite South Asia Private Limited ("Samsonite India”], a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into transactions with associates of Mr.
Ramesh Tainwala, a director of the Company, and certain members of his family
(the “Tainwala Group”) which relate to the operation of Samsonite India in the
ordinary and usual course of its business. Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala
Group are also substantial shareholders in Samsonite India.

Manufacturing agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of understanding
(the “Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding”) with Abhishri Packaging Private
Limited ("Abhishri”], a company controlled by certain members of the Tainwala
Group. Under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding, Abhishri purchases
certain raw materials and components from Samsonite India and manufactures
hard-side luggage products on behalf of Samsonite India. The price paid by
Abhishri to Samsonite India for raw materials and components is based on the
current market price paid by Samsonite India, and the prices paid by Samsonite
India for products manufactured and manufacturing services provided by Abhishri
are determined based on Samsonite India’s current procurement policies, and
are monitored against relevant factors including the cost of raw materials, the
range of commercially appropriate margins that Samsonite India is able to make
on comparable products and, where available, quotations and market prices
for comparable third party products and services. Samsonite India followed its
procurement policies when determining the pricing and terms of all transactions
under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding during the year ended
December 31, 2015. The pricing under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding
is on normal commercial terms as the margins available to Samsonite India from
the prices charged by Abhishriare comparable to (or better to the Company than] the
margins available from the prices charged by certain other third party manufacturers
who are not connected persons under agreements with Samsonite India.

On October 9, 2015, the Company entered into a framework agreement with
Abhishri (the “Abhishri Framework Agreement”) with effect from April 6, 2015. The
Company entered into the Abhishri Framework Agreement to govern the terms
of sales of components and finished products and the provision of manufacturing
services by Abhishri to members of the Group in addition to sales of components
and finished products and the provision of manufacturing services by Abhishri to
Samsonite India under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding.

The Abhishri Framework Agreement provides that all transactions between
Abhishri and the members of the Group thereunder (i) shall be in writing and
shall incorporate the Group’s general purchase conditions and standard supplier
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agreement terms, (i) shall be on normal commercial terms, which shall mean
pricing and payment terms no less favorable to the Group than those available from
independent third party suppliers for comparable components, finished products
or manufacturing services, and (iii) shall be in compliance with all applicable
provisions of the Listing Rules. The initial term of the Abhishri Framework
Agreement will expire on December 31, 2017 and may be renewed thereafter,
subject to the parties complying with the applicable provisions of the Listing
Rules in respect of any such renewal. The prices paid by the Group for products
manufactured and manufacturing services provided by Abhishri are determined
based on the Group’s current procurement policies, and are monitored against
relevant factors including comparisons of the landed cost of purchases sourced
from Abhishri relative to the landed cost of comparable products if sourced
from non-connected third parties. The Group followed its procurement policies
when determining the pricing and terms of all transactions under the Abhishri
Framework Agreement during the year ended December 31, 2015. The pricing
under the Abhishri Framework Agreement is on normal commercial terms as
the margins available to the members of the Group from the prices charged by
Abhishri are comparable to (or better to the Company than) the margins available
from the prices charged by certain other third party manufacturers who are not
connected persons under agreements with the Group.

Dealership agreement with Bagzone

OnNovember 16,2009, Samsonite Indiaenteredintoamemorandumofunderstanding
with Bagzone Lifestyles Private Limited ("Bagzone’], a company controlled by
certain members of the Tainwala Group. The memorandum of understanding was
renewed with effect from January 1, 2015 for a period expiring on December 31,
2017. Other than the extension of the term, all other terms of the memorandum
of understanding remained the same. Under this memorandum of understanding,
Bagzone was appointed as a preferred dealer of Samsonite, American Tourister
and other products in India, which as of December 31, 2015 are sold in 98 exclusive
Samsonite retail outlets and 38 multi-brand outlet stores operated by Bagzone.
Samsonite India directly rents three of these exclusive Samsonite retail outlets and
is reimbursed by Bagzone for the associated rental costs. The other 133 outlets are
directly rented by Bagzone, which bears the costs of such rentals. Bagzone pays all
operating costs of these 136 retail outlets. Bagzone receives a normal operating
margin of 47.5% on the retail price for products it purchases from Samsonite India
and sells through both the exclusive Samsonite retail outlets and the multi-brand
outlet stores. Samsonite India does not own or operate retail outlets itself because of
restrictions imposed under Indian law with respect to ownership of retail businesses
by non-Indian nationals. Under this memorandum of understanding, the margin
available to Bagzone will be reviewed and amended as necessary from time to time
to ensure that the maximum profit margin with respect to products purchased from
Samsonite India does not exceed 3.0% of its net sales of such products. Samsonite
India followed the pricing terms in the memorandum of understanding for all
transactions during the year ended December 31, 2015. These transactions are
on normal commercial terms as the profit margin available to Bagzone is within
a range that is reasonably consistent with that made by other third party dealers in
India to whom Samsonite India sells products.

License and lease agreements with members of the Tainwala Group

Samsonite India has entered into six lease or license agreements for company
accommodation and office premises with members of the Tainwala Group. On
March 30, 2015, Samsonite India renewed the leave and license agreement and
amenities agreement dated August 5, 2010 and August 9, 2010, respectively,
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with Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited for the use of certain office premises
in Mumbai, India for use as Samsonite India’s corporate office for a period of 3
years effective from April 1, 2015. These agreements are on normal commercial
terms and the rent, license fees and administrative charges payable thereunder
are within the reasonable range of the then prevailing market rates at the date of
execution. Samsonite India followed its procurement policies in relation to each of
these agreements during year ended December 31, 2015.

Aggregate value of transactions between the members of the Group
and the Tainwala Group

The aggregate value of payments made by the members of the Group to the
Tainwala Group under all transactions described above for the year ended
December 31, 2015 was approximately US$5.5 million. The annual caps for the
maximum aggregate amount payable by the Group under transactions with
the Tainwala Group for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the year ending
December 31, 2016 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules
at US$10.4 million and US$22.9 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made by the Tainwala Group to the Group
under all transactions described above for the year ended December 31, 2015
was approximately US$10.5 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable to the Group under transactions with the Tainwala Group for
the year ended December 31, 2015 and the year ending December 31, 2016 have
been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$24.7 million and
US$16.8 million, respectively.

The annual caps in respect of transactions between the Group and the Tainwala
Group were determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in
purchases of raw materials and finished products between the members of the
Group and the Tainwala Group due to increases in sales and production in line
with the Group's then-current business plan; (i) estimated increases in rental and
associated costs payable by Samsonite India in line with local market conditions;
and [iii) expected market conditions and fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate
for the Indian Rupee against the US Dollar.

The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the transactions
between the Group and the Tainwala Group will be, on an annual basis, more than
0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

b) Transactions between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of
the Group

Samsonite Middle East FZCO ("Samsonite Middle East”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is held 40.0% by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and certain
members of the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of
the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and (i) is entitled to control
the exercise of 10.0% or more of the voting power in Samsonite Middle East,
Samsonite Middle East is also a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(5) of the Listing Rules.

HABERBRAR

Samsonite International S.A.

20106F 8 A9 WAl RIREHE A RRE R
LAMEARENE ZE W E T il ABAL{EA Samsonite
IndiaMARMER * B2015F 481 BRAH=45F -
It TR — M R IKIRET S - MipeRIE T ER
ME®  BEEBARTERKEAFARLEANE
BmEMNSIRGEEA - REZE2015F12A3181LE
FZ > Samsonite India BB MR BB E B EE o

AEBRE D THE Tainwala EENK S E 5

BIEFMABERS @ AEEKBARIREZE2015F
12831 BItEE R Tainwala EE X HEELH B
5.5 EEFEI o RB(EMBADKNIRE  AEEIE
HZE2015F 12 A3 BIEFEREZE2016F 12 A31
BIEFEHATainwala RBTETHR S ENNRS
BENFEELRDAIEAICLAEETE 22988
ETL o

BiE FMFTARS  Tainwala EEREE 20154 12
A3 BIEFERASES NNBENAI10588E
TC ° IRBCETTRBD IR - AEEIZREZE2015F
A BIEFEEREE 2016512 A31BILEER
Tainwala EBFTETHR ZENN RS BENTE
ERABIEAE2A4TEEETRI168BEET °

AEEHETainwala EBEFETHRZNEE £
RIOEEZRUATEEETE : (| ASBEKE QA A
Tainwala R B 2 B E R R &K mEEETF
FEEE L THREEEEEGINERERE R
FIBBEBHREMBFT 2 : (1 HEHTRAR/FE
Samsonite India B S RABEK AN HEHER
K (iii) ENfE B bt 3 32 Te MO BE SR T8 BT R SO E) ©

RIBCEMARA) - MAKBE HE Tainwala EEHETTH
RHNESBERBES L ERFITEBOIRERR
5.0% @ Bt - IEXSHERIFERMER S - WEHR
RSP ETARRND 8 14A.76(2) 15RE0 I i o R AR R
HEHTE °

b) Samsonite Middle East B2~ B H {th 5
ERTNRS

AKAAIFEEEK B AT Samsonite Middle East
FZCO([Samsonite Middle East])H Ramesh
Tainwalat £ R TainwalaEBMNETHKERSE
40.0% %z - B Ramesh Tainwalast4E : (i| &
AABESE - IARAIEEANT - Rl BREZES
Samsonite Middle East 10.0% 8t A _E R RERTT
i BARIRC AR 88 14A.07(5) 1§  Samsonite
Middle East TRAARNRRIHIBIEAL -




With effect from June 16, 2011, Samsonite Middle East entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the "Middle East Framework Agreement”) covering
all transactions with other subsidiaries of the Company in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group’s business including the purchase by Samsonite Middle
East of finished products from other subsidiaries of the Company, the receipt
and payment by Samsonite Middle East of cross-charges and fees in relation to
the sharing of global marketing, promotion, product development and personnel
costs between subsidiaries of the Company and the payment by Samsonite Middle
East of royalties in respect of intellectual property rights licensed to Samsonite
Middle East. Purchases by Samsonite Middle East of finished products from other
subsidiaries of the Company are made at prices and on terms that are consistent
with the prices and terms applicable to intra-Group purchases made by non-
connected subsidiaries of the Company, and the royalties paid by Samsonite
Middle East are consistent with the royalty rate and terms paid by the Company’s
other non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

Samsonite Middle East and the Company have further renewed the Middle East
Framework Agreement for a period of three years with effect from January 1,
2016 (the “Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement”). Save for the duration
of, and annual caps under, the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement, all
other terms are the same as those in the Middle East Framework Agreement.
The purpose of the Company entering into the Renewed Middle East Framework
Agreement was to ensure that Samsonite Middle East could continue to enter into
transactions with other members of the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of the Company’s business as an essential part of the Group’s global operations.

The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions
between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the Group must be on normal
commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between
other subsidiaries of the Company and in compliance with all applicable provisions
of the Listing Rules. The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement will expire
on December 31, 2018 and is renewable for further periods of three years, subject
to compliance with the then applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is
terminated earlier by mutual agreement. The Company has followed its policies
for intra-company transactions in relation to all transactions under the Middle
East Framework Agreement during the year ended December 31, 2015.

The aggregate value of payments made by the members of the rest of the Group to
Samsonite Middle East for the year ended December 31, 2015 was approximately
US$0.3 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable by
the rest of the Group under transactions payable to Samsonite Middle East for the
year ended December 31, 2015 and the year ending December 31, 2016 have been
set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$2.0 million and US$0.5
million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of
the Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2015 was approximately US$4.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2015 and the year ending December 31, 2016 have
been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$8.9 million and
US$7.4 million, respectively.
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The annual caps under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement were
determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in purchases
of finished products by Samsonite Middle East from the rest of the Group due to
increased sales in line with Samsonite Middle East’s then-current business plan;
(i) estimated growth in royalty payments by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of
the Group due to growth in underlying sales; [iii) estimated growth in marketing
and development costs in line with Samsonite Middle East’s then-current business
plan; and (iv) expected market conditions.

The highestapplicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the transactions
under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement will be, onan annual basis,
more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

c) Transactions between Samsonite India and
the rest of the Group

Samsonite India, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is held 40.0% by
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala:
(i) as a director of the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and (i) is
entitled to control the exercise of 10.0% or more of the voting power in Samsonite
India, Samsonite India is also a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011, Samsonite India entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the “India Framework Agreement”) covering all
transactions with other subsidiaries of the Company in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group's business including the purchase by Samsonite India of raw
materials, components, spare parts, finished products and capital assets from
other subsidiaries of the Company, the sale of finished products by Samsonite
India to other subsidiaries of the Company, the receipt and payment by Samsonite
India of cross-charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing,
promotion and product development costs between subsidiaries of the Company,
and the payment by Samsonite India of royalties in respect of intellectual property
rights licensed to Samsonite India.

Samsonite India and the Company have further renewed the India Framework
Agreement for a period of three years with effect from January 1, 2016 [the
“Renewed India Framework Agreement”). Save for the duration of, and annual caps
under, the Renewed India Framework Agreement, all other terms are the same as
those in the India Framework Agreement. The purpose of the Company entering
into the Renewed India Framework Agreement was to ensure that Samsonite India
could continue to enter into transactions with other members of the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business as an essential part of the
Group’s global operations.

The Renewed India Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions between
Samsonite India and the rest of the Group must be on normal commercial terms
consistent with those in intra-company transactions between other subsidiaries of
the Company and in compliance with all relevant provisions of the Listing Rules.
The Renewed India Framework Agreement will expire on December 31, 2018 and
is renewable for further periods of three years, subject to compliance with the
then applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier
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by mutual agreement. The Company has followed its policies for intra-company
transactions in relation to all transactions under the India Framework Agreement
during the year ended December 31, 2015. Purchases by Samsonite India of raw
materials, components, spare parts, finished products and capital assets from
other subsidiaries of the Company, and purchases of finished products from
Samsonite India by other subsidiaries of the Company, are made at prices and
on terms that are consistent with the prices and terms applicable to intra-Group
purchases made between non-connected subsidiaries of the Company. The
royalties paid by Samsonite India are consistent with the royalty rate and terms
paid by the Company’s other non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

The aggregate value of payments made by the rest of the members of the Group
to Samsonite India for the year ended December 31, 2015 was approximately
US$19.4 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable by
the rest of the Group under transactions payable to Samsonite India for the year
ended December 31, 2015 and the year ending December 31, 2016 have been set
pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$43.3 million and US$27.0
million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the rest of the
Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2015 was approximately US$7.8 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable by Samsonite India to the rest of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2015 and the year ending December 31, 2016 have been set
pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$17.5 million and US$11.7
million, respectively.

The annual caps under the Renewed India Framework Agreement were
determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in purchases of
raw materials and finished products between Samsonite India and the rest of the
Group due toincreases in sales and production in line with Samsonite India’s then-
current business plan; (i) estimated growth in royalty payments by Samsonite
India to the rest of the Group due to growth in underlying sales; (i) estimated
growth in marketing and development costs in line with Samsonite India’s then-
current business plan; and (iv] expected market conditions and fluctuations in the
foreign exchange rate for the Indian Rupee against the US Dollar.

The highestapplicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the transactions
under the Renewed India Framework Agreement will be, on an annual basis,
more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the INEDs
of the Company, who have confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.
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MARREMMBRRKERME - T4 - &4
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[ A ) 2 FEHE AT ) 7 5 [ ) B0 ER B 3 R (B 4% B 1R
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In conducting such review, the INEDs of the Company have (i} reviewed with
managementthe purpose, nature and scope of the continuing connected transactions
and the policies and system of controls used by the Company to ensure compliance
with the Company’s policies and the Listing Rules, (i reviewed the monitoring
activities performed by the Company’s Internal Audit department in connection
with such transactions, (iii) reviewed the procedures performed by the Company’s
external auditors in connection with the preparation of the limited assurance report
described below, and [iv] reviewed with management the Company’s disclosure
with respect to such transactions as included in this annual report and in other
announcements that may be published by the Company from time to time.

In addition, the Auditor of the Company was engaged to provide a limited assurance
report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”. The auditor
has issued its unqualified Limited Assurance Report containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Company in pages 114 to 120 of this Annual Report in accordance with Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s report has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Company
during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, none of these
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued share
capital required under the Listing Rules during the year ended December 31, 2015
and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

AUDITOR

The financial statements were audited by KPMG LLP, who shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 16, 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 M A% AR

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

Samsonite International S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samsonite
International S.A. and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
income statements and statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity,
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Samsonite International S.A. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

KPMe LLP

KPMG LLP
Providence, Rhode Island
March 16, 2016
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Samsonite International S.A.
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Consolidated Income Statement
CEE

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31HLLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars,

except per share data) (UTFETZ  BIREGZERIP) 2015
Net sales HE 5 4 2,432,477 2,350,707
Cost of sales HERA (1,153,513)  (1,106,881)
Gross profit EF 1,278,964 1,243,826
Distribution expenses DX (665,762) (626,300
Marketing expenses il (132,068) (144,733)
General and administrative expenses —MRITERE (154,465) (151,137)
Other expenses HEAX (17,798) (22,379)
Operating profit 1 m T 308,871 299,277
Finance income HIFEUA 19 868 478
Finance costs Wi5EH 19 (18,679) (17,383)
Net finance costs FEITEE (17,811) (16,905)
Profit before income tax SR Ey T ETh vl 20 291,060 282,372
Income tax expense e 18 (74,043) (77,018)
Profit for the year 4 % 217,017 205,354
Profit attributable to equity holders RRFEFFE AFE(L 5 A 197,639 186,256
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests  FE¥ZRARE 5 FE (L it A 19,378 19,098
Profit for the year F 5 A 217,017 205,354
Earnings per share BRERN
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREE R
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (AFRETES) 12 0.140 0.132

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AEEZERER

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A3MBILEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

(UFETZ5))

2015

Profit for the year F R 217,017 205,354
Other comprehensive loss: HihZHEEE :
Items that will never be reclassified KINGEDEERRZ
to profit or loss: BH
Remeasurements on defined BEHFIE BN E
benefit plans, net of tax (B H0RRHIE) 14, 18(c) (530) (17,060)
(530) (17,060)
Items that are or may be reclassified HitgdapgEsfolEEass
subsequently to profit or loss: HH
Changes in fair value of cash flow RenBLHZ AR EEED
hedges, net of tax (BB EIE) 18(c) (1,690) 6,988
Foreign currency translation losses BONETEHNERE K
for foreign operations E1E 19 (35,272) (35,087)
(36,962) (28,099)
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEEE (37,492) (45,159)
Total comprehensive income FARHEWE
for the year 4age 179,525 160,195
Total comprehensive income BB ARG EES S
attributable to equity holders 1axs 163,751 145,095
Total comprehensive income SRR R IR
attributable to non-controlling FEKEE
interests k) 15,774 15,100
Total comprehensive income FAZEKE
for the year pickas) 179,525 160,195

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFZExZ25Y) 2015
Non-Current Assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R&E 13 186,083 178,325
Goodwill &S 7(a) 297,360 270,079
Other intangible assets HEEREE 7(b) 762,411 766,687
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 18(d) 50,752 57,752
Other assets and receivables Hitn & E R EWGRIE 8(a) 25,159 23,195
Total non-current assets JEMBENEELRRE 1,321,765 1,296,038
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories T8 9 349,076 332,274
Trade and other receivables JRE MG R 50 e B Ath i s kR 10 283,495 290,841
Prepaid expenses and other assets TENERREAMEE 8(b) 80,702 71,718
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MREEEY 11 180,803 140,423
Total current assets BB ELREE 894,076 835,256
Total assets BEMREE 2,215,841 2,131,294
Equity and Liabilities ERkEE
Equity: M
Share capital [N 23(b) 14,098 14,080
Reserves i 23(b) 1,345,456 1,255,608
Total equity attributable to equity holders I&HERF A AEIL i AR 1,359,554 1,269,688
Non-controlling interests RS 23(c) 39,832 37,752
Total equity AT 1,399,386 1,307,440
Non-Current Liabilities ERBEE
Loans and borrowings ERRIER 13(a) 57 18
Employee benefits BEERF 14 38,523 49,657
Non-controlling interest put options FEE AR e m SR HA R 23(c) 55,829 58,288
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 18(d) 106,240 107,625
Other liabilities Hit ki 4,403 4,704
Total non-current liabilities JEMENEELRRE 205,052 220,292
Current Liabilities i =R i
Loans and borrowings BRMER 13(b) 62,724 65,131
Employee benefits BEERF 14 59,139 62,022
Trade and other payables JE A BR R e ELAth A~ FR0E 17 442,141 415,445
Current tax liabilities BIEAfE I B E 18 47,399 60,964
Total current liabilities mE aERRE 611,403 603,562
Total liabilities afEwE 816,455 823,854
Total equity and liabilities RN aEREE 2,215,841 2,131,294
Net current assets MEVEEFE 282,673 231,694
Total assets less current liabilities BERBRINBEE 1,604,438 1,527,732
The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
BEPIFT B AR S I IS TRR A — 35 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except number of shares]

Number of shares

(UFETZS - REEEERIP) RIDEE

Year ended December 31, 2014: HZ2014F12A31HILEE :
Balance, January 1, 2014 48 201451 A1 H 1,407,137,004
Profit for the year FE RN -

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax

Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges,
net of tax

Foreign currency translation losses

HAh 2w et (B518)
EFFTEERENE (D HRHE) 14 -
Rengdhz ArBEEDY

(BHMBEE) 18(c) -
HNESTE 5 518 19 -

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

FRZHE WS (BB AR -

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:

BEGANR S - BEET AR

Change in fair value of put options ROLEEA R EEEE 21 -
Cash distributions to equity holders MR A AEH 2R DR 12 -
Share-based compensation expense VARG 32 45F 2 S =2 14 -
Exercise of stock options TR 14 889,452
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR RS -
Other transactions Hih3z 5 -
Balance, December 31, 2014 s 2014F12 B31H 1,408,026,456

Year ended December 31, 2015:

BE2015F12A3MBLEFE:

Balance, January 1, 2015 e 20151 A1H 1,408,026,456
Profit for the year F R F -
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hib 2w (EE) -
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax BT EEEENETE
(BkrEE) 14 =
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, Renehs A EEE
net of tax (BH0Br#IE) 18(c] =
Foreign currency translation losses HNEETE H 18 19 =

Total comprehensive income (loss] for the year

FRZE K (BR)ER —

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:

BEEANR S - BEET AR

Change in fair value of put options ROEIREA S BEEE) 21 -
Cash distributions to equity holders MR A AEH 2R 2 9K 12 -
Share-based compensation expense VARG 32 45F 2 i =2 14 -
Exercise of stock options 1TSS 14 1,807,069
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W BE FEIE R i 2 23 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR AR A S -
Balance, December 31, 2015 8% - 2015F12 BA31H 1,409,833,525

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

(]

Total equity
attributable to
Additional Translation Retained equity holders Non-controlling
Share capital paid-in capital reserve Other reserves earnings BREFEA interest

BRA FINBARA BREEE HAtf#E REEF FEfh RS AR FRERRAER

14,071 962,192 (7,577) (64,517) 288,587 1,192,756 37,826 1,230,582
- - - - 186,256 186,256 19,098 205,354
- - - (16,947 - (16,947) (113) (17,060)
- - - 6,984 - 6,984 4 6,988
- - (31,198) - - (31,198) (3,889) (35,087)
- - (31,198) (9,963) 186,256 145,095 15,100 160,195
- - - - (1,195) (1,195) - (1,195)
- - - - (80,000) (80,000) - (80,000)
- - - 11,041 - 11,041 - 11,041
9 2,800 - (818) - 1,991 - 1,991
- - - - - - (15,075) (15,075)
_ _ - - - - (99) (99)
14,080 964,992 (38,775) (64,257) 393,648 1,269,688 37,752 1,307,440
14,080 964,992 (38,775) (64,257) 393,648 1,269,688 37,752 1,307,440
- - - - 197,639 197,639 19,378 217,017
= = - (533) - (533) 3 (530)
- - - (1,689) - (1,689) (1] (1,690)
- - (31,666) - - (31,666) (3,606) (35,272)
- - (31,666) (2,222) 197,639 163,751 15,774 179,525
- - - - 1,775 1,775 - 1,775
- - - - (88,000) (88,000) - (88,000)
- - - 15,215 - 15,215 - 15,215
18 6,229 - (1,804) - 4,443 - 4,443
- - (1,102) - (6,216) (7,318) (2,085) (9,403)
- - - - - - (11,609) (11,609)
14,098 971,221 (71,543) (53,068) 498,846 1,359,554 39,832 1,399,386
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BABSHEE

Year ended December 31,
HBZ12A31BLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFExZ25Y) 2015
Cash flows from operating activities: RETEZEERE
Profit for the year F R H) 217,017 205,354
Adjustments to reconcile profit to net YR SR LA i B B A 25 B
cash generated from operating activities: Fri5IR & SR LR
Loss on sale and disposal of assets, net HERMNEEELBE - 358 10 39
Depreciation e 6 48,985 42,588
Amortization of intangible assets BB ERRE 7(b) 10,590 9,180
Provision for doubtful accounts RERE G 1,160 1,097
Change in fair value of put options ROLEEA R BEES 21(g) 5,772 4,245
Net change in defined benefit pension ERERAMBRRESFTEINEE) T
plans 14(b) (8,809) (8,776)
Non-cash share-based compensation VAR 32 1 2 JE3R & B 14(a) 15,215 11,041
Income tax expense SR 18 74,043 77,018
363,983 341,786
Changes in operating assets and liabilities K AERBREZE
(excluding allocated purchase price in (MBREBER 2
business combinations): B EUHERE) -
Trade and other receivables P L B R e L At PR MR R OE (10,528) (42,629)
Inventories 78 (31,783) (23,450)
Other current assets HEMmeEE (5,968) (196)
Trade and other payables AT B 350 e ELAth A< 008 35,774 43,993
Other assets and liabilities, net HtWEERAE F58 (7,290) (13,492)
Cash generated from operating activities KEEESIRS 344,188 306,012
Interest paid EAFE (1,900) (1,964)
Income tax paid BT FTEH (83,265) (74,134)
Net cash generated from operating activities 48 & /EEETSIRE F58 259,023 229,914
Cash flows from investing activities: RETZHZHERE :
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BBEYX - BE MEE 6 (68,477) (69,636)
Acquisition of businesses, WHEZE B (MR KENR ®)
net of cash acquired 5 (30,138) (196,665)
Other uses HibBBAFIAE (5,437) (821)
Net cash used in investing activities REEEMAReFE (104,052) (267,122)
Cash flows from financing activities: RMETBHRERNE !
Current loans and borrowings BVERE R R & RETS F B (30 -
proceeds (payments), net FRE 13 (1,111) 52,607
Acquisition of non-controlling interest e BE JEIE AR A 2 23(c) (15,716) -
Payment of deferred financing costs T AHEAE ELE R A = (2,001)
Proceeds from stock option exercises 1T IR FTIS SRIA 14 6,247 2,809
Cash distributions to equity holders AR AEH 2 IRE DK 12 (88,000) (80,000)
Dividend payments to AR R AR 2
non-controlling interests 23 (11,609) (15,075)
Net cash used in financing activities B ESFT AR e R (110,189) (41,660)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash Re KRS EEMEMORLD ) FE
equivalents 44,782 (78,868)
Cash and cash equivalents, at January 1 ReRBLEEY M1 A1H 140,423 225,347
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXSHHRE RRESFEMHTE
and cash equivalents (4,402) (6,056)
Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 & RINESZEY - K12A31H 1 180,803 140,423

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR RE

1. Background

Samsonite International S.A. (the "Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and
casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective cases for personal electronic
devices throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American Tourister®,
Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck® and Lipault® brand names as well as other
owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells its products through a variety of
wholesale distribution channels, through its company-operated retail stores and
through e-commerce. The principal wholesale distribution customers of the Group
are department and specialty retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and
warehouse clubs. The Group sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and
Latin America.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”]. The Company was
incorporated in Luxembourg on March 8, 2011 as a public limited liability company
(a société anonyme), whose registered office is 13-15 Avenue de la Liberté, L-1931
Luxembourg.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 23.

2.
(a)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which collective term includes
all International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations, as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted all these
new and revised IFRSs for all periods presented, except for any new standards or
interpretations that are not yet mandatorily effective for the accounting period ended
December 31, 2015. The revised and new accounting standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective for the accounting period ended December 31, 2015 are set
out in note 3(v).

These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

The accounting policies below, where material, have been applied consistently
to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) on March 16, 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

2.
(b)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis

Basis of Preparation continued
Basis of Measurement

except for the following material items in the consolidated statement of financial

position as set out in the accounting policies below:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

e the defined benefit liability is recognized as the net total of the plan assets,
plus unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses, less

unrecognized actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(c)

The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic

Functional and Presentation Currency

environment in which the Group operates (“functional currency”). The functional
currencies of the significant subsidiaries within the Group are the currencies of the
primary economic environment and key business processes of these subsidiaries
and include, but are not limited to, United States Dollars, Euros, Renminbi and Indian
Rupee.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in
the United States Dollar (“USD"), which is the functional and presentation currency of

the Company.

(d)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS

Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. No significant
changes occurred during the current reporting period of estimates reported in prior

periods.
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2.
(d)

Basis of Preparation continued
Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions continued
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:
¢ Note 3(o) — Revenue recognition
e Note 5 — Business combinations
e Note 6 — Property, plant and equipment
e Note 7 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
e Note 9 — Inventories
¢ Note 10 — Trade and other receivables
e Note 14(a) — Share-based payments
e Note 14(b) — Pension plans and defined benefit schemes
¢ Note 18 — Income taxes
e Note 21(g) — Fair value of financial instruments
¢ Note 23(c] — Non-controlling interests
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have an
effect on the consolidated financial statements resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year is included in the following notes:
» Note 14(b) — Pension plans and defined benefit schemes
¢ Note 16 — Contingent liabilities
* Note 18 — Income taxes (utilization of tax losses)

¢ Note 21 — Financial risk management and financial instruments

(e)

The IASB has issued a number of new, revised and amended IFRSs. For the purpose

Changes in Accounting Policies

of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,

2015, there were no new or revised IFRSs yet effective.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group to

all periods presented, where material, in these consolidated financial statements.

(a) Principles of Consolidation
(i)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial information of subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

in consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(a) Principles of Consolidation continued
(i) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from total equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that subsidiary, with the resulting gain or loss being recognized
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value

on initial recognition of a financial asset or an associate.

(iii)

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the

Business Combinations

acquisition date, which is the date on which control is obtained by the Group. In
assessing control, the Group takes into consideration substantive potential voting
rights.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the excess of the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree, over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition date. If
the net fair value is greater than the consideration transferred, then this excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the
settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts generally are recognized in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured
and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the

fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.
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3.

(a)
(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Principles of Consolidation continued
Business Combinations continued

When share-based payment awards (“replacement awards”) are required to
be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees (“acquiree’s awards”)
and relate to past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s
replacement awards is included in measuring consideration transferred in the
business combination. This determination is based on the market-based value of the
replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the acquiree’s awards

and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk
(i)  Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation
are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising on the retranslation of
qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between
amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate

at the date of the transaction.

(ii)

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into USD

Foreign Operations

at period end exchange rates. Equity accounts denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into USD at historical exchange rates. Income and expense accounts are
translated at average monthly exchange rates. All foreign currency differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations are recorded in
the foreign currency translation reserve in the consolidated statement of position. The
net exchange gains or losses resulting from translating at varied exchange rates are
recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

and attributed to non-controlling interests, as appropriate.

3. FTEEHBEME s
(a) #RERA &
liii) ZHEBEOE

VARR 1 2 A 0 22 ([ & 5% | ) 7R 85
BRI KR B stiB T RIS A 528
(B8 77 22mh )i - RIUCEE 75 2 (R S Y
2EPSRED SR AT R EB A EER
B - WWEE DR EENTISEEEE
H U 7 SR Y TS B EE BT
WARKR S R SEE BB A I/ AR RAR B B0 48

(b) INEIRE R BE R

il SRS

SNER Z RS AMBITERMRE - RIS
B MNEEHERMEBEER A BESKRER
MEREMBELNEESR - BREMAREA
BB REPEANEZER(REMEE
Wes R ) s - EFTREE SN INEZERN
BRMER - E¥IEBNIMNEREEEE
B BR ) e B 3H PR AR (3L B AR ) R A8 R A
AR ) IR RS MR IE KB H fy SN
HRAZHENERE ° ZARBEFEILAS
BHEMEEREERAE  BEEAAE
EEAMEXRSHRESNEER UK
FBERAGEMIFERIRE RS A ME

5gd

lii)  RINFH
REBBINTEARNEE R A BERMRE
RMERETT ° UWIMNEHEIRARR B &RE
SERBE BT - WARFAXREZEA
FHERBE - AR RINEBTB®RE
BHENINEZBEHHEAGR MRS
KhERETD - REEERBEESEL
Ba PRt AR MEEREN 8D - PARE
am R E D R IEE AR (WER)

Annual Report 2015 —O— R &4

133



134 Samsonite International S.A.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(c) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.
All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's
management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group’s segment reporting is based on geographical areas, representative
of how the Group’s business is managed and its operating results are evaluated.
The Group’s operations are organized as follows: (i) “Asia”; (i) “North America”; (iii)
“Europe”; (iv] “Latin America”, and (v] “Corporate”.

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, income
tax assets and liabilities, and licensing activities from the license of brand names
owned by the Group.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to

acquire property, plant and equipment.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Assets under finance leases
are stated at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. Improvements
which extend the life of an asset are capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are
expensed as incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if applicable, as follows:

20 to 30 years
3to 10 years

e Buildings

e Machinery, equipment and other

e Leasehold improvements Lesser of useful life or the lease term
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually

and adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Group with freehold interest is not

depreciated.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment continued

The Group capitalizes the costs of purchased software and costs to configure,
install and test software and includes these costs within machinery, equipment
and other in the consolidated statement of financial position. Software assessment
and evaluation, process reengineering, data conversion, training, maintenance and

ongoing software support costs are expensed as incurred.

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of a business is included in intangible assets.
For measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3(al(iii]. Subsequent to
initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit
(“CGU"), or groups of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and are tested annually for impairment.

(ii)

Intangible assets primarily consist of tradenames, customer relationships, patents

Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill)

and key money. No recognized intangible assets have been generated internally.
Intangible assets which are considered to have an indefinite life, such as
tradenames, are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are not
amortized but are tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events
or circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. Samsonite®, American
Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck® and Lipault® are the significant
tradenames of the Group. It is anticipated that the economic benefits associated
with these tradenames will continue for an indefinite period. The conclusion that the
tradenames are an indefinite lived asset is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with

the policy for amortization of intangible assets with finite lives as set out below
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3.

(e)
(ii)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill) continued
Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized and measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization
expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives from the date that they are available for use, as this most closely reflects
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
e Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
e Key money 3to 10 years
e Patents 1to 10 years

Intangible assets having a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually

and adjusted if applicable.

(f)  Impairment
(i)  Financial Assets (Including Trade and Other Receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired.
A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that
the Group would not consider otherwise, or indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific
asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables are assessed for
specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but
not yet identified.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends, adjusted
for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are
such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical
trends. Impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to

determine the recoverable amount.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(f)
(ii)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and

Impairment continued
Non-financial Assets

deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For those CGUs or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the “CGU”]. For the purposes of goodwill impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the group of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. This allocation
is subject to an operating segment before aggregation ceiling test and reflects the
lowest level at which that goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes to the
asset or CGU.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is
an indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset may be allocated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the group of units, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss that has been recognized on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods if estimates used to determine the recoverable amount change.
For other assets, impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no

impairment loss had been recognized.

3. FEETHREEa
(f)  RE#&
lii) FEMEE
AEBRNSHERLFEMEE(FERE
EFRBEERIN MREEETERN - UE
%Eﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ% o W17 A EMZEF Y
© BISEZ B E R AT R @ S A AT (AT © Bt
%EE PERENRCELEUARNEGE
EEMARNNERABFRNEZEER
5 IROSBEREFR R EETHE -
REBREXRETEEEMHNAIKRES
BREERBEREAABEBHEKAR
EFOBREE - EEEREER - BEIARK
BenENAr RREERREERNRITHS
Al R % B E R R E R R A0 E BRI R ARIR
EHBE - SURERRTE - TEBIET
AANBER D BRI BEERPEERRK
EBTREMEEXEEARNRERANS
ERANRNEEARN(REELESM]) -
MEAEREREN S - XA 6PTRENE
Be K= AIIES GHp R RRa A E
ReEEBMNAR - ZHRAEREHOE
B ERAIFAIN B RANEENEER
B e EL BN ERE BRI RIEKF
AEENRAEEL EELERNRE
WA o WARRBRAREERERME - B
SEEAUREDENAREENREELE
AL AT 238 o
MEESER T EE BN ANREER

BEMA AN E SR - RIFERBRERBE - 8
TEJESTEEATE SR FERR o BLIR B A A B T

REVRERIRSELTOR - BARD DR
EBEMARINEREENREE - ARIZL
DI LR A BB 7 (BE Az 4B Bl ) o EL At 58 E O BR
G-

i R Al @ 2 B ET B FTEk
B RN EE P ERNREBENEEER B
ATEE - gt HMEEMS - BEPHEDE
BEREBER S MG BETE - AHEE

BHEEMNPRBERZERERD HTBEF
FE o fin I A B RJ MR [B] & BR A fib T 3R &
3 AISBOREESE - PrEO/REREE
A B 28 A R E DR E B8 &
NEEMEERE BRI EREHE) B
B

Annual Report 2015 —O— R &4

137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(9]

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is calculated

Inventories

using the weighted average method. The cost of inventory includes expenditures
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production
overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost also may include transfers
from other comprehensive income of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of inventories. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognized as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of
inventories are recognized as expenses in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which

the reversal occurs.

(h)

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of

Trade and Other Receivables

future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This
fair value is determined for disclosure purposes and generally approximates carrying

value.

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, deposits held at call with

Cash and Cash Equivalents

banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(j)

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value. Trade and other

Trade and Other Payables

payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method.

(k)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable

Interest-bearing Borrowings

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortized cost with any difference between the amount initially recognized
and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Financial Instruments
(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a
separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal right to offset
the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
receivables are measured at cost, less any impairment losses. Receivables are
comprised of trade and other receivables.

The Group initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they
are originated. The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, canceled or expire.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables. Both loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to their initial recognition, loans and borrowings are

accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(ii]

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its foreign

Derivative Financial Instruments

currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract
and accounted for separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the host
contract and the embedded derivative are not closely related, a separate instrument
with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative, and the combined instrument is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. For derivatives designated in hedging relationships, changes in the fair value
are either offset through profit or loss against the change in fair value of the hedged
item attributable to the risk being hedged or recognized in hedging reserves that are
reported directly in equity (deficit) until the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss
and, at that time, the related hedging gain or loss is removed from equity (deficit) and

is used to offset the change in value of the hedged item.
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3.

(U
(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Financial Instruments continued
Derivative Financial Instruments continued

Other than agreements with holders of non-controlling interests, there
were no derivatives embedded in host contracts during the periods presented. The
Group has certain put option agreements that are classified as financial liabilities
in accordance with IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation (“IAS 32"), in the
consolidated statement of financial position, as the Group has a potential obligation to
settle the option in cash in the future. The amount recognized initially is the fair value
of the redeemable non-controlling interests and subsequently remeasured at each
reporting date based on a price to earnings multiple discounted to the reporting date.
For agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS 3, Business Combinations
(“IFRS 3”], on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized in
profit or loss. For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008, subsequent changes
in liabilities are recognized through equity.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and any attributable transaction
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as
described below.

The Group periodically enters into derivative contracts that it designates as
a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received
or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge]. For all hedging
relationships, the Group formally documents the hedging relationship and its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging
instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed prospectively
and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring ineffectiveness. The
Group also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis,
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting cash flows of hedged items by determining whether the actual results of
each hedge are within a range of 80% to 125%. For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss
on the derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and
reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss. Gains and losses on the derivative representing
hedge ineffectiveness are excluded from the assessment of effectiveness and are
recognized in current profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines that
the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged item, the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is de-designated
as a hedging instrument because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur,
or management determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument
is no longer appropriate.

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualified hedging relationship, all changes in fair value are recognized

immediately through profit or loss.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Financial Instruments continued

(iii) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax

effects.

(m) Employee Benefits

(il  Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the

periods during which services are rendered by employees.

(ii)

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined

Defined Benefit Plans

contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate
is based on a high grade bond yield curve under which the benefits were projected
and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate was then determined
as a single rate yielding the same present value. IAS 19, Employee Benefits ("IAS19")
limits the measurement of the defined benefit asset to the lower of the surplus in the
defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling, which is defined as the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or redirections in
future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic
benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements that apply to
any plan in the Group. An economic benefit is available to the Group if it is realizable
during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have pension plans and post-retirement health
benefit plans which provide retirement benefits for eligible employees, generally
measured by length of service, compensation and other factors. The Group follows the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure provisions of IAS 19. Under
IAS 19, remeasurements, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and are not
subsequently reclassified into profit or loss. The measurement date for all pension

and other employee benefit plans is the Group’s fiscal year end.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(m) Employee Benefits continued

(i) Defined Benefit Plans continued

Under IAS 19, the Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the
period on the net defined benefit Liability (asset) by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period. Consequently,
the net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset) now comprises:

¢ Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation;

¢ Interest income on plan assets; and

¢ Interest on the effect of asset ceiling.

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than
pension plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount
rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under which the benefits are projected
and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate is then determined
as a single rate yielding the same present value. Any actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Actuarial

valuations are obtained annually at the end of the fiscal year.

(iv)

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination

Termination Benefits

of an employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision
to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

(v) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(vi)

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to

Share-based Compensation

employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number
of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense
is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market
performance conditions at the vesting date. For equity-settled share-based payment
awards with market performance conditions or non-vesting conditions, the grant-
date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and
there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(n) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following
temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition,
deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, if they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and
deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

(o)

Revenues from wholesale product sales are recognized when (i) evidence of a sales

Revenue Recognition

arrangement at a fixed or determinable price exists (usually in the form of a sales
order), (i) collectability is reasonably assured, and (iii) title transfers to the customer.
Provisions are made for estimates of markdown allowances, warranties, returns and
discounts at the time product sales are recognized. Shipping terms are predominately
FOB shipping point (title transfers to the customer at the Group's shipping location)
except in certain Asian countries where title transfers upon delivery to the customer.
In all cases, sales are recognized upon transfer of title to customers. Revenues from
retail sales are recognized at the point of sale to consumers. Revenue excludes

collected sales taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(o) Revenue Recognition continued

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognized in profit or loss.

The Group licenses its brand names to certain third parties. Net sales in the
accompanying consolidated income statement include royalties earned on licensing
agreements with third parties, for which revenue is earned and recognized when the

third party makes a sale of a branded product of the Group.

Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and Administrative
Expenses

(p)

The Group includes the following types of costs in cost of sales: direct product
purchase and manufacturing costs, duties, freight, receiving, inspection, internal
transfer costs, depreciation and procurement and manufacturing overhead. The
impairment of inventories and the reversals of such impairments are included in cost
of sales during the period in which they occur.

Distribution expenses are primarily comprised of rent, employee benefits,
customer freight, depreciation, amortization, warehousing costs and other selling
expenses.

Marketing expenses consist of advertising and promotional activities. Costs
for producing media advertising are deferred until the related advertising first
appears in print or television media, at which time such costs are expensed. All other
advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs associated
with customer support programs giving the Group an identifiable advertising benefit
equal to at least the amount of the advertising allowance are accrued and charged to
marketing expenses when the related revenues are recognized. From time to time,
the Group offers various types of incentive arrangements such as cash or payment
discounts, rebates or free products. All such incentive arrangements are accrued and
reduce reported revenues when incurred.

General and administrative expenses consist of management salaries and
benefits, information technology costs, and other costs related to administrative

functions and are expensed as incurred.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(q) Finance Income and Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the
discount on provisions, changes in the fair value of put options associated with the
Group’s majority-owned subsidiaries, and net gains (losses) on hedging instruments
that are recognized in profit or loss. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported
on a net basis.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments are included
in the initial measurement of the related financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Such costs are amortized as finance costs using the

effective interest method over the term of the related debt obligation.

(r) Earnings Per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”] data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the period, adjusted for any shares held by the Group. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
adjusted for any shares held by the Group, for the effects of all potentially dilutive

ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees, as applicable.

(s) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a
lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Other leases are
operating leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(s) Leases continued
The Group leases retail stores, distribution centers and office facilities. Initial
terms of the leases range from one to twenty years. Most leases provide for monthly
fixed minimum rentals or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of stated
amounts and normally require the Group to pay real estate taxes, insurance, common
area maintenance costs and other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent
expense for leases that include scheduled and specified escalations of the minimum
rent on a straight-line basis over the base term of the lease. Any difference between
the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable under the lease is included in
other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. Contingent rental
payments are expensed as incurred.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between
the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(t} Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u) Related Parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(1)
(2)
(3]

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(u) Related Parties continued
(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(1) the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, the subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(2)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member];

(3)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(4)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

(5)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(6)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i);

(7)  a person identified in (i)(1] has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is part, provides key
management services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(v] New Standards and Interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not
yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2015, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final element of its comprehensive response
to the financial crisis by issuing IFRS 9, Financial Instruments ("IFRS 9”). The
improvements introduced by IFRS 9 include a logical model for classification and
measurement, a single forward-looking expected loss impairment model and a
substantially reformed approach to hedge accounting. IFRS 9 will come into effect on
January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. The Group has not determined the

extent of the impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(v] New Standards and Interpretations continued

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("IFRS 15”). IFRS 15 sets out requirements for recognizing revenue that applies to
all contracts with customers. IFRS 15 is effective as of January 1, 2018 with earlier
application permitted. The Group has not determined the extent of the impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases (“"IFRS 16”) which, once
adopted, replaces the existing standard IAS 17, Leases. IFRS 16 will provide much-
needed transparency on companies’ lease assets and liabilities, meaning that off
balance sheet lease financing generally is no longer possible and therefore also will
improve comparability between companies that lease and those that borrow to buy.
IFRS 16 is effective January 1, 2019. Early application is permitted for companies that
also adopt IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Group has not yet

determined the extent of the impact on its consolidated financial statements.

4. Segment Reporting

(a) Operating Segments

Management of the business and evaluation of operating results is organized primarily

along geographic lines dividing responsibility for the Group’s operations, besides the

Corporate segment, as follows:

e Asia — includes operations in South Asia (India and Middle East], China,
Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan, Hong Kong, Thailand, Indonesia,
Philippines and Australia;

e North America — includes operations in the United States of America and Canada;

e Europe — includes operations in European countries as well as South Africa;

e Latin America — includes operations in Chile, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil, Colombia,
Panama, Peru and Uruguay; and

e Corporate — primarily includes certain licensing activities from brand names
owned by the Group and Corporate headquarters overhead.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included
below. Performance is measured based on segment operating profit or loss, as
included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker. Segment operating profit or loss is used to measure performance
as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the

results of the Group’s segments.
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4. Segment Reporting continued 4L, DEPHRE &

(a) Operating Segments continued (a) &ESI &
Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 72015512 31 B % 2014512 A 31
December 31, 2014 is as follows: HEEZEZB IFFENDEERNAT

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F 123 ALEE

(Expressed in North Latin
thousands of i America Europe America Corporate Consolidated
US Dollars) (AFETZ%) E5)) Bl BOM EVRIEY)| i1 ast
External revenues SR R 947,602 811,304 544,740 120,476 8,355 2,432,477
Operating profit LR 114,813 56,083 52,132 3,645 82,198 308,871
Operating profit (loss) iR £ B R ED

excluding intragroup &R AL E R

charges (E8) 178,377 107,890 69,186 6,437 (53,019) 308,871
Depreciation and PreE R

amortization 20,317 12,900 19,328 4,601 2,429 59,575
Capital expenditures N 26,305 14,209 20,383 5,660 1,920 68,477
Interest income FBHA 488 2 44h (66) - 868
Interest expense 2R (146) (145) (461) (287) (2,121) (3,160)
Income tax (expense) Fisfi(Fx)

benefit Eiinc) (29,382) (21,680) (16,982) (2,743) (3,256) (74,043)
Total assets BEELR 609,838 762,054 466,915 112,099 264,935 2,215,841
Total liabilities afERE 229,924 502,839 225,856 44,145 (186,309) 816,455

Year ended December 31, 2014
BZE2014F 12831 BIEFE

(Expressed in North Latin
thousands of i America Europe America Corporate  Consolidated
US Dollars) (UFZETE5Y) CEY) LM BUM AT M % A&t
External revenues HhEBU R 892,258 761,310 557,934 130,606 8,599 2,350,707
Operating profit N 108,030 50,719 69,195 3,401 67,932 299,277
Operating profit (Loss) iR 2R N B

excluding intragroup BRAMLE RN

charges (E518) 169,043 101,868 74,335 6,644 (52,613) 299,277
Depreciation and P i

amortization 18,635 10,120 17,203 4,001 1,809 51,768
Capital expenditures N 18,931 12,259 32,480 3,955 2,011 69,636
Interest income FSHA 354 6 107 9 2 478
Interest expense MERMZ (622) (17) (164) (219) (2,672) (3,694)
Income tax (expense) FRER ()

benefit e (24,232) (20,177) (22,049 926 (11,486) (77,018)
Total assets BEMHTE 568,960 767,971 441,078 100,427 252,858 2,131,294
Total liabilities BEGER 209,397 494,438 181,636 65,964 (127,581) 823,854

(b) Geographical Information (b) tbiER

The following tables set out enterprise-wide information about the geographical ~ TFTXR#HIIFA TS BN B EEEN OIS
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s ~ &¥} : (i) AEE R B IMNEEF AU s & (i) A
property, plant, and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (specified non-current  S£EMYI% « BELEE  BEFEENULSE
assets). The geographical location of customers is based on the selling location of the ~ Z((FEHIERBEE) - BEHIOIHAE T
goods. The geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based on the  ERERAEEME - IEEHIERBEEN
physical location of the assets. IR E DENEENERLE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

e M RARMIEE

4. Segment Reporting continued 4L, DEPHRE &
(b) Geographical Information continued (b) IFHER &

(i)  Revenue from External Customers il REIMBEFHKE

The following table presents the revenues earned in major geographical locations  FXRHFMANEBEB EBNE BT
where the Group has operations. The geographic location of the Group’s net sales  EUSHIIZS » AL B S FBN MG E D
reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily #MHREEHEERHER @ WH—EAKImH
indicate the country in which its end consumers were actually located. BEERMENER -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UAFETZ27) 2015

Asia: EEVL I
China 7 252,722 227,454
South Korea FEE 184,141 189,502
India ENE 135,066 126,653
Japan B 93,668 77,855
Hong Kong'" HAN 77,224 74,899
Australia SEM 56,203 48,613
United Arab Emirates Py {REE S 2 R B 41,043 37,208
Thailand RE 25,703 24,897
Singapore FT N 25,126 25,622
Taiwan = 22,970 23,131
Indonesia Elfe 17,817 20,347
Other HAh 15,919 16,077

Total Asia EEp = 947,602 892,258

North America: 1EEM
United States EE 769,505 720,737
Canada mEX 41,799 40,573

Total North America dEEMEE 811,304 761,310

150 Samsonite International S.A. FTHEEEREERAR]



4. Segment Reporting continued 4L, DEPHRE &
(b) Geographical Information continued (b) IFHER &
()  Revenue from External Customers continued il REIMBEFHNE F

Year ended December 31,
HBZ12B31BLEEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ7) 2015
Europe: B
Germany = 80,252 81,847
France VN 68,393 75,473
Belgium b 1) B 64,4611 65,239
Italy vl 60,614 60,799
United Kingdom [ 59,774 45,684
Spain sz 41,055 44,812
Holland feT i 28,307 26,474
Russia K7 Hy 27,085 40,037
Turkey TEH 17,745 15,925
Switzerland It 17,701 19,567
Sweden T 16,821 17,053
Austria B3 F| 14,684 15,695
Norway ok 11,941 15,170
Other HAth 35,957 34,159
Total Europe BUM A FT 544,740 557,934
Latin America: T EMN
Chile =l 57,867 58,898
Mexico BFEH 38,429 39,830
Brazil® il 10,016 18,925
Other HAth 14,164 12,953
Total Latin America NTEMEER 120,476 130,606
Corporate and other (royalty revenue): EREM (B
Luxembourg [EARE 8,240 8,456
United States E9E 115 143
Total Corporate and other ENEMEET 8,355 8,599
Total HBET 2,432,477 2,350,707
Notes B aE
(1) Includes Macau. () BERF -
(2) The net sales figure for Brazil includes net sales to third party distributors in Brazil. (2) EANEE FEBIRaEREREE= D

A S BRI E I -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

4. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued
(ii) Specified Non-current Assets

The following table presents the Group’s significant non-current assets by
geographical location. Unallocated specified non-current assets mainly comprise

goodwill.

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFET25)
Luxembourg ERE
United States e
Belgium Lt )R
China A
Hungary 1) 77 A

India HIE

Hong Kong BB

Chile B

South Korea FEE

L, DERE =

(b) HuiHER &

i) EENERBEE

T AR E 2 56 A E B A EAIER
BEE - AP RNETERDEETERE
7 -

December 31,

12A31H
2015

677,309 639,777
51,590 87,851
58,466 66,569
25,153 16,719
20,953 21,632
15,252 18,378
14,789 14,569
12,033 12,738
9,937 10,856

5. Business Combinations

(a) 2015 Acquisitions

The Group completed two business combinations during the year ended December 31,
2015.

(i) Rolling Luggage
On February 16, 2015, certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries completed
the acquisition of the business and substantially all of the assets of Rolling Luggage
for a cash consideration of GBP15.8 million, with a subsequent working capital
adjustment of GBP(0.3) million and a subsequent purchase price adjustment of
GBP(0.5) million for leases that were not successfully transferred, for a total purchase
price of GBP15.0 million. The acquisition provides the Group with a significant retail
footprint in some of the world’s leading airports, and further expands the Group’s
portfolio of retail store locations.

From the date of acquisition, Rolling Luggage contributed US$27.6 million of
revenue and net income of US$638 thousand to the consolidated financial results of
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Samsonite International S.A. HFEEEEAR AT

5. EBEHt

(a) 2015FWIEEE
HZE2015F 12 A3 HIEFE » AEBTHK
IS A GF

(i)  Rolling Luggage

R201562 816 B - AARET2EHBA
AISERUREE Rolling Luggage A9 75 KT T
FEEE  ReRER15.8EBRE - Hig
MEEESIEL (0.3 BB RENAE - Wit
REERNEENHEHRWEEEL 05 ES
BEERAE - BUIEES15.0 BB EE o It
TR EAR R BTN W B & Tt AR
GISETEX  WE—FERAEENT
BIE#HE -

B UHE A HAAE + Rolling Luggage A4
SBHEHZE2015F12 A31 B IEFEREGE B
BEEER27.6 ABETTRE R 63.8 8T
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5. Business Combinations continved

(a) 2015 Acquisitions continued
(i)  Rolling Luggage continued

The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets and liabilities
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date as an allocation of the

purchase price.

Property, plant and equipment

Identifiable intangible assets AHpEEEE
Other non-current assets H3Emen & e
Inventories rE

Other current assets Himen&E

Trade and other payables
HimEhaE

Other current liabilities

FE RN EAR A 3RIR

5. ¥K&0ta
(a) 2015 KIBEE &
(i) Rolling Luggage #&

TR MU R BRKEEERE
EUARFTAEE BN EERSHIERWER
B EL °

1,072
770
1,608
2,322
11
(3,258)
(1,268)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETZ%)

W% - BEKRERB

The table above represents the final purchase price allocation and has been
updated from the interim disclosure to reflect certain measurement adjustments.

Goodwill in the amount of US$21.8 million was recognized as a result of the
acquisition. The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be
achieved from integrating Rolling Luggage into the Group's existing business. None of

the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

(ii) Chic Accent
On September 30, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company completed
the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, and assumed certain liabilities,
comprising the business as a going concern of Chic Accent for a cash consideration
of EUR8.5 million, with a subsequent working capital adjustment of EUR(2.1) million
in cash. The acquisition provides the Group with 31 retail store locations in Italy
dedicated to premium accessories, ladies’ handbags, travel luggage and business
products, and further expands the Group's portfolio of retail store locations.

From the date of acquisition, Chic Accent contributed US$5.6 million of revenue
and net income of US$767 thousand to the consolidated financial results of the Group

for the year ended December 31, 2015.

FRIRHBBEESE - WE BT
HEBEFHARRSE TER% -

AEBEEH L WEEIARER21.888
EUHEE - EEXZEHMNTEAK Rolling
Luggage & FEARK B IR A E BT ERN
B E B o TEHAN M B i R r] sh %
B #F AR -

(ii)  Chic Accent
R201569 A30F - AAR—H2EHBA
A)SEAUREE Chic AccentiT AT A BEE + Wik
RERFECEEBNETAG  ReRE
RBSEERUT HERZEESIEL(2.1)
BEBMITHRSHE o WIEKEEREER
BEANRGEINHEEERE  FEHEBER
- ZEFE TERREBED - WiE—
FEEASENTEEES -

B UiE B HAAR + Chic Accent BANEE
HZE2015512 A31 BILEENRAMBE
BERS.6ABFE TG R T76.7TEFETFER
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

R BTSRRI 2

5. Business Combinations continued 5. ¥XKe0fa

(a) 2015 Acquisitions continued (a) 20155 KAEEIE &
(ii)  Chic Accent continued (i)  Chic Accent &

The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets and liabilities TREGMAN K E BB EERE
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date as a final allocation of the  EARFTAEABNEHERSEIIEARER
purchase price. DA

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFETZ%)
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R&E 1,027
Identifiable intangible assets AR EEEE 308
Other current assets HthnshaeE 21
Inventories T8 3,802
Trade and other payables JEAS BR R e B Ath A FRE (5,618)
Other current liabilities Httn#aE (585)
Goodwill in the amount of US$8.1 million was recognized as a result of the REEEFUWEFIERERS 1 AEXE

acquisition. The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be  JTAIREE o BE £ Z HATEHHS Chic Accent
achieved from integrating Chic Accent into the Group’s existing business. All of the — A#FEZAREEIR B ZE 15 FTE A5 R Kz AT

goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. B o TR B E HER B AT MBS B T2
ks -
(iii) Pro forma results lii) HwEXE

If these acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2015, the Group estimates that  f#iith ZWEEBEHR 201541 A1 B#ETT * &
consolidated net sales for 2015 would have been approximately US$2,449.1 million, £ E (#2015 F4R A HEFREL 5 2,449.1
and consolidated profit for 2015 would have been approximately US$214.9 million. I~ B&E3ETT © M 20154 A% MBI A214.9
determining these amounts, the Group has assumed that the fair value adjustments BEXT - £EEHSSHER - AEERK
that arose on the date of the acquisitions would have been the same if the acquisitions ~ HUkfE B HAE A A A BEFH Ik E
had occurred on January 1, 2015. RIEMN 201541 A1 B#EfTEMER ©
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5. Business Combinations continued

(b) 2014 Acquisitions

The Group completed three business combinations during the year ended December
31, 2014.

(i) Lipault

On April 1, 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary within the Group completed the
acquisition of (i) Distri Bagages, a société a responsabilité limitée incorporated and
organized under the Laws of France, and [ii] Licences et Développements, a société
a responsabilité limitée incorporated and organized under the Laws of France
(collectively, the “Lipault Entities”). Lipault is a luggage brand founded in France
in 2005, whose products are designed to meet the needs of today’s savvy travelers,
featuring ultra-lightweight, smart designs and bright fashion colors and constructed
using luxurious but durable nylon twill fabric and that will help the Group engage with
the fashionable, female consumers through its signature Parisian style and vibrant
colors. The purchase price included a cash consideration of EUR20.0 million, with a
subsequent working capital adjustment of EURO.1 million, for a total purchase price of
EUR20.1 million. The allocation of the purchase price was completed in 2014 resulting
in goodwill of US$15.8 million, none of which is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes. No subsequent adjustments have been made to the amounts recognized
for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed that were disclosed in the 2014 Annual

Report.

(ii) Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck Products”)

On May 28, 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary within the Group completed the
acquisition of Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck Products”). Founded in Silicon
Valley, California in 2001, Speck Products is a leading designer and distributor of
slim protective cases for personal electronic devices that are marketed under the
Speck brand. Speck Products offers a diverse product range that is sleek, stylish
and functionally innovative, and provides superior, military-grade protection for
smartphones, tablets and laptops from a range of manufacturers. The Speck brand
is particularly well-known for its “slim protection” designs such as the iconic Candy
Shell smartphone case, which is constructed using a “hard-soft” technology that
Speck Products pioneered. The purchase price included a cash consideration of
US$85.0 million, with a subsequent working capital adjustment of US$0.04 million,
for a total purchase price of US$85.0 million. The allocation of the purchase price was
completed in 2014 resulting in goodwill of US$22.9 million, of which approximately
half is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. No subsequent adjustments have
been made to the amounts recognized for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed

that were disclosed in the 2014 Annual Report.

5. ¥¥E0ta

(b) 2014 FUNiEE1E
HZE2014F 1231 BIEEE - RSB
=IBEBEH -

(i)  Lipault
R2014F4 1R - AEBEEP —H2EH
JB A A FERK UK BE (i) Distri Bagages(—fEiR
BEBEEAMA Y REBNEREAELS
A1) » R (i) Licences et Développements(—
MRBABUAETMA L RAKN FRE
FAA) (% [Lipault EEE ) ° Lipault 27
2005 FREBIAIN AT Mg - HEMR
e R TERAREENER  ERFER
BT - BEE AR RERNRHER
WERAEZEAMANEENSMERE - M
ItmEEE A ERBEERE GRS &
e ETRS|IRRNZIDEEE - WEBES
FHRENE220.088T - EEHEEES
{EH 0.1 BEBRUTH AR - LUIEES20.1
BERT - WEEER 2014 FTRAR © E
£ 15.8 B BRI - RENEEE AR
B B T LAHIRR o BUERER 2014 FFRP I
BHEWREEEREAEAEMERANSEHR
{EH BB REE -

(i) Speculative Product Design, LLC
(F'Speck Products )
R201445 7280  AEBHEF -2
& i & A Al 52K UK S Speculative Product
Design, LLC([Speck Products]) ¢ Speck
Products 7 2001 S 7E I A48 fE 28 N B A K
3o R RELAERNRE RAEAA KA
Speck & & SHE A B FREAEIRER °
Speck Products 2tk is ~ EBFREEIFTT)
BENZREERRY - AR ARARENSEF
- FIREKRFREMBRERARAIE
HURTE © Speck mhRH) [ArERE | Rt E
B - flan B R MR Candy Shell B gEF
HEIRTERS - ThLASpeck Products & &ll#Y [#X
WE5R | BT sdis - WHEE A IER £ (885.0

BEET HEREEES(EH0.04BEE
TR - BBERBS.0ABET - W

BER2014FRXOE - EEEE2298
B3  HEN—F B BB A BT A
B o BHEFN 2014 FEHHHEBENCIE
BERBRES BRMERNSHAELRER

B o
e
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156 Samsonite International S.A.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

5. Business Combinations continved

(b) 2014 Acquisitions continued
(iii) Gregory Mountain Products, LLC (“Gregory”)

On July 23, 2014, certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Samsonite
Purchasers”) purchased substantially all of the assets of Gregory Mountain Products,
LLC ("Gregory”). The Gregory brand is a leader and pioneer in its industry, responsible
for many innovations in backpack design. It is well-respected by active outdoor
and adventure enthusiasts as a leading brand in the premium technical backpack
segment. In addition to technical backpacks, Gregory branded lifestyle backpacks
are popular in Japan and other Asian countries. The purchase price included a cash
consideration of US$84.1 million. The allocation of the purchase price was completed
in 2014 resulting in goodwill of US$19.0 million, of which approximately half is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. No subsequent adjustments have been
made to the amounts recognized for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed that

were disclosed in the 2014 Annual Report.

(c) Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred approximately US$8.9 million and US$13.5 million in acquisition-
related costs during the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively. Such costs are primarily comprised of costs associated with due
diligence and integration activities, as well as professional and legal fees, and are

recognized within other expenses on the consolidated income statement.

HABERERAT

5. ¥K&0ta
(b) 2014 FWEEEIE &
(iii) Gregory Mountain Products, LLC
(F'Gregory )
R2014F7H 238  AEEET2ENE
REN[#FEBE 7 1) E Gregory Mountain
Products, LLC([ Gregory | )iTFFIEEE °
Gregory IR EITHMBE kiR - s
TEBRANEEEF - HXIERONPING
FRBHEEE  EanEXSenNEEn
F2 o BREZEE BN Gregory EERIRE R
BEBARFEM MBI RKEZED - WEE
BREESRESLIBEEET WEEER
2014 F e - EAREBI19.088%ET
TRHAR) — B A s A5 B 6 T AR o #E
BN 2014 FFRPRENERBEERE
AIEAEFERN S RIEHRERE -

(c) WIBSEIEMEBERAR
REEREZE 201512 A31 H KX 20144
12A31BIEFESRIEELN8IAEETR
13.5 ABETHIESEEBKAE - HRK
AEZREARBESERAINEE B
KN ARBERERER - DRGRERER
FR L S A ERR o



6. Property, Plant and Equipment 6. M%¥ -  BWERZME

Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements

and other
MRS~ RE
Buildings HEWERE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFZETZ) gF REAM
2015 20154
Cost: D% NE
As of January 1, 2015 20154
1A18 11,271 55,593 402,299 469,163
Purchases of property, BEVE  BFE
plant and equipment BT 26 2,659 65,792 68,477
Additions through FHRFEBE G
business combinations (note 5) NE (FIFED) - - 2,099 2,099
Disposals and write-offs & - (1,485) (20,602) (22,087)
Effect of movement in 4N [EE =R 5
foreign currency exchange rates 0} (569) (5,080) (26,835) (32,484)
As of December 31, 2015 PR 2015
12H31H 10,728 51,687 422,753 485,168
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERRIA
and impairment:
As of January 1, 2015 R 20154
1A18 1,198 23,832 265,808 290,838
Depreciation for the year FANE 24 3,153 45,808 48,985
Disposals and write-offs £HES R 8 - (1,485) (19,351) (20,836)
Effect of movement in H|NGEE B 2R B B
foreign currency exchange rates V& (123) (2,710) (17,069) (19,902)
As of December 31, 2015 20154
12A31H 1,099 22,790 275,196 299,085
Carrying value: FHEE :
As of December 31, 2015 R20154F
12A31H 9,629 28,897 147,557 186,083
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

e EREME &
6. Property, Plant and Equipment continved 6. M¥ -BERSZE=
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
and other
HES - RAE
Buildings HEWERE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFZETZ) gF REAM
2014 20145
Cost: PR
As of January 1, 2014 20144
1H1H 11,292 50,546 374,993 436,831
Purchases of property, BEWE -
plant and equipment 5 R B A 681 11,455 57,500 69,636
Additions through e
business combinations ABHRE - - 7,020 7,020
Disposals & - - (10,890) (10,890)
Effect of movements in b R B
exchange rates/other FE [ HAth (702) (6,408) (26,324) (33,434)
As of December 31, 2014 R 20144F
12A31H 11,271 55,593 402,299 469,163
Accumulated depreciation RFHTERRE :
and impairment:
As of January 1, 2014 20145
118 1,333 24,218 255,933 281,484
Depreciation for the year FRITE 26 3,140 39,422 42,588
Disposals k= - - (10,060) (10,060)
Effect of movements in b R BN
exchange rates/other R [ HAity (161) (3,526) (19,487) (23,174)
As of December 31, 2014 R 20144F
12A31H 1,198 23,832 265,808 290,838
Carrying value: BRTEME
As of December 31, 2014 R 20144
12A31H 10,073 31,761 136,491 178,325
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, HZE2015412 A31H&2014F12 A

2014 amounted to US$49.0 million and US$42.6 million, respectively. Of this amount, 31 B IFEEMITEEAH R A49.0EBETT
US$8.0 million and US$6.9 million was included in cost of sales during the years 42 6EHEBFETT - £%E4L 5T 8.0HE
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Remaining amounts  ET Kk 6.9EEETHRIFFAEZE 2015412
were presented in distribution and general and administrative expenses. The Group has 531 H % 20144 12 A 31 H I FE R4S ER
authorized capital expenditures of US$84.0 million in 2016, of which approximately 78 - # &R DR — B ETHBEXNE
US$7.8 million has been committed as of December 31, 2015. All land owned by the Bl o NEBBE N 2016 FHEAE8LOBEETLH

Group is freehold. BARY  HPHN78EEETENR2015F
No impairment indicators existed as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 12 A31 B - FIAMAEEES T
2014. WERKAKRE o

72015412 A 31 B} 2014512 A 31
B BIEGFEREDR
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(a) Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill balance amounted to US$297.4 million as of December 31, 2015,
of which approximately US$61.5 million is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:

7. BEREMEFEE

(a) BEE

2015612 A31 8 « AEBMNEELERA

297.4BEXET  HPH61.5B&EETES

RISEET1S B B9 T LAFIRR o
EEMEREENAT -

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFET25) 2015
Cost: PR
As of January 1 ®M1A1H 1,239,866 1,184,143
Additions through business combinations (note 5) BBEEAHANE (HFES) 29,909 57,690
Effect of movement in foreign currency exchange rates  SMEE RSB M2 (2,628) (1,967)
As of December 31 MW12A318 1,267,147 1,239,866
Accumulated impairment losses: ZFHRERE
As of January 1 and as of December 31 R1A1EERI12A31H (969,787) (969,787)
Carrying Amount FEE 297,360 270,079

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating

segment were as follows:

Asia  North America

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (X FETZ23) EE) JEEM
As of December 31, 2015 20155

12A31H 174,438 84,018
As of December 31, 2014 20144

12A431H 170,661 84,018

M -
Europe Latin America Consolidated
BOM AT M |
38,904 - 297,360
15,400 - 270,079

In accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36”), the recoverable
amounts of the Group’s CGUs with goodwill were determined using the higher of
fair value less cost to sell or value in use, which is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s
operating segments, comprised of groups of CGUs, as these represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. The allocation is made to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from the

business combination in which the goodwill arose.

BAR IAS 55 36 5% & 2R 8 ([1AS 5 36
1) AEERERRSESBMHAKE
SRR T AR BERLDERANSE A EET
BmaEr  BRMBRFEGERAZEME
ERARRTET RS REETE

HREARANE - HRAREAEER
BEERELNRREN HEIEELAE
BB (RS EEBMMEBIFRK)
EEE S REEHZENEENELS G
W EEEMAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(a) Goodwill continued

Separate calculations are prepared for each of the groups of CGUs that make
up the consolidated entity. These calculations use discounted cash flow projections
based on financial estimates reviewed by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates
appropriate for the market in which the unit operates. The values assigned to the key
assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends and are based
on both external sources and internal sources (historical data) and are summarized
below.

e Pre-tax discount rates of 10-12% were used in discounting the projected cash
flows. The pre-tax discount rates were calculated for each CGU.

e Segment cash flows were projected based on the historical operating results and
the five-year forecasts.

e The terminal values were extrapolated using constant long-term growth rates
of 3-4% for each CGU, which is consistent with the average growth rate for the
industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash
flow projections. Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation
and has also taken into account the business plans going forward. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions

would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount.

MERBEEARAR

7. BEREMELEE &
(a)

42
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N
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Bt HE - ZEAEENEEERMNAFH
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WEBEXRTEEEHRRBEME - WA
SNEBIRR R N ERE B GRASIR) AR - &
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e LA10-12%B9RBR B RTRL TR = AR BEER TEER
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(b) Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consisted of the following:

7.

(b) HMELEE
HiBEVEERRE

BEREMETLEE &

Total other

Total intangible
Customer subject to assets
relationships Other  amortization ~ Tradenames HihmH
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UTFETL5) EFEBER& Hith BRI GRS BEERE
Cost: PR
As of January 1, 2014 K2014F1A1H 115,250 5,721 120,971 594,583 715,554
Additions through business BREBERE
combinations 23,664 701 24,365 89,033 113,398
Other additions HMRE - 1,744 1,744 - 1,744
Effect of movement in foreign SN BEE S
currency exchange rates op-2 (143) 131 (12) (1,970) (1,982)
As of December 31, 2014 and R2014F 12 A31 B &
January 1, 2015 201561 H41H 138,771 8,297 147,068 681,646 828,714
Additions through business FREBEIIRE
combinations (note 5) (K¥7E5) - - - 1,078 1,078
Other additions HEMRE - 6,675 6,675 - 6,675
Disposals HE - (4,160) (4,160) - (4,160)
Effect of movement in foreign SN fE R B
currency exchange rates & (249) (596) (845) (567) (1,412)
As of December 31, 2015 A2015F12H831H 138,522 10,216 148,738 682,157 830,895
Accumulated amortization: REHEEs -
As of January 1, 2014 R2014F1A1H (47,250) (5,597) (52,847) - (52,847)
Amortization for the year FAEE (8,895) (285) (9,180) - (9,180)
As of December 31, 2014 and R2014F 12 A31 B &
January 1, 2015 201561 H81H (56,145) (5,882) (62,027) - (62,027)
Amortization for the year F 5 (9,852) (738) (10,590) - (10,590)
Disposal e - 4,160 4,160 - 4,160
Effect of movement in foreign SN B 3= 4 &)
currency exchange rates b7 18 (45) (27) = (27)
As of December 31, 2015 A2015%12H831H (65,979) (2,505) (68,484) - (68,484)
Carrying amounts: BRTEE
As of December 31, 2015 A2015F12H831H 72,543 7,711 80,254 682,157 762,411
As of December 31, 2014 R2014F12 A31H 82,626 2,415 85,041 681,646 766,687
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

The aggregate carrying amounts of each significant tradename were as follows:

7. BEREMELEE «
(b) HMELEE &
EESHANGEDENT :

December 31,

12A31H

[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFETEF) 2015

Samsonite EEE 462,459 462,459
American Tourister American Tourister 69,969 69,969
High Sierra High Sierra 39,900 39,900
Gregory Gregory 38,600 38,600
Speck Speck 36,800 36,800
Hartmann Hartmann 16,500 16,500
Lipault Lipault 12,259 12,259
Other HAl 5,670 5,159
Total tradenames EEESE 682,157 681,646

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014 was US$10.6 million and US$9.2 million, respectively,
and is presented as a distribution expense in the consolidated income statement.
Future amortization expense as of December 31, 2015 for the next five years is
estimated to be US$11.5 million, US$11.2 million, US$9.6 million, US$9.5 million,
US$9.2 million and a total of US$29.3 million thereafter.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Group is required to evaluate its intangible
assets with finite lives for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance
indicate that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. The fair value of
customer relationships is determined using a combination of the income approach
and the multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued
after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related
cash flows. There were no impairment indicators and there were no accumulated
impairment losses as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

The Group’s tradenames have been deemed to have indefinite lives due to their
high quality and perceived value. In accordance with IAS 36, the recoverable amounts
of the Group’s tradenames were determined using the relief-from-royalty income

approach to derive fair value less cost to sell.

HABERERAT
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ETRI2EEET  HEBBER293E8
ETT
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

The calculations use discounted projections based on financial estimates
reviewed by management covering a five-year period. Revenues beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the market.
The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of
future trends and are based on both external sources and internal sources [historical
data) and are summarized below.

e Pre-tax discount rates of 10-12% were used. The pre-tax discount rates were
calculated separately for each tradename.

e Revenues were based on anticipated selling prices and projected based on the
historical operating results, the five-year forecasts and royalty rates based on
recent transfer pricing studies in the jurisdictions the Group operates in.

e The terminal values were extrapolated using constant long-term growth rates of
3-4% for each tradename, which is consistent with the average growth rate for the
industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash
flow projections. Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation
and has also taken into account the business plans going forward. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of its indefinite lived intangible assets to exceed

their recoverable amounts.

8. Prepaid Expenses, Other Assets and Receivables

(a)

Other assets and receivables consisted of the following:

Non-current

7. BEREMELEE «
(b) HMELEE &
ZEFEENE R ERMNAFHN
fisthat - WL MBARTRA - R T FHIR
Yoz 7o 2 F P AE T 35 8 B 1O (il 138 R 4
B - TERRARANEERTEREEH R
BB H flat - ASMB IR K A ERE B
CRERR) BikiE - FHBERRNT -
o {EM10-12%MEBRBATAR R - BLEE A
ﬁ%ﬁfﬁf‘ﬁ%ﬁrﬁﬁfﬁﬁ g
o WERIBEFTEER

- WAR SR 4L

EEE EEEJ"E‘E‘J&BZZK%I BPTE
AR R R E B B E R B
EREA o

o B3-4%t BEREERE(LRATE
T4 02 5 — B HEBT A 7 0 B R
féi o

o B HEEBIERAA N EEFE -

ETReREBAMRANEEER
HAMBAY - T EEBROBRHRER

SRERNEREAYE - BRBREEL

MEBR BT - BEERRKOEE S

R ERERA  LUIEBROHEFARE

MAERR(C - TR R EE

BATRESE -

8. BANEM HMEEKRE

LEe]
(a) JERE
A B RAEMHORBIE

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ7) 2015
Deposits T 21,346 19,097
Other Hit 3,813 4,098
Total other assets and receivables EhEE K EWRGIAZEE 25,159 23,195

(b)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are expected to be recoverable or

Current

expensed within one year.

(b) B
BNERREMASEERBN —FRKE
K e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

9. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

9. FE
HEBEATEE :

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFZ725) 2015
Raw materials FEA 22,608 17,558
Work in process TR 1,725 2,099
Finished goods BUAK 324,743 312,617
Total inventories BviEE 349,076 332,274

The amounts above include inventories carried at net realizable value
(estimated selling price less costs to sell] of US$94.7 million and US$102.8 million
as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. During the years
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the impairment of inventories to
net realizable value amounted to US$2.1 million and US$6.8 million, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the reversal of
impairments recognized in profit or loss amounted to US$1.9 million and US$2.3
million, respectively, where the Group was able to sell the previously written-down

inventories at higher selling prices than previously estimated.

10. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are presented net of related allowances for doubtful
accounts of US$12.7 million and US$13.5 million as of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, respectively.

(a) Aging Analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts) of US$269.1 million and US$276.3 million as of December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014, respectively, with the following aging analysis by due date of

the respective invoice:

LA @R e R 2R3 E (G EE
EHEKA)FIRRNAFE - 720154 12 A 31
HX%201412 A31AHRIA%.TAEBET
&102.8EBEET - BE2015F12A31BK
2014F 12 AN BIEFE - FEMRE A&
RFES A2 I BEEXTR68EBET
EHZE2015412A31AK201412 A31H
ILFEE  RBERPERORERES A
1988ETk23BEET  BAEENS
KRBT E B LS BIMEFE -

10. EYERFR H b FEUNFRIR
2 51) 6 FE U AR 50 e H At FE MR IE B 0 BR R AR
ERARE - RERAEREER 20155 12 A 31
ARk2014F 12831 BH R E12.7B8%ET
RI135EEET °

(a) BREGDHT

2015412 A31 B R2014612A318 -
A B W B R L i L2 R T Y R BR R
(MBRREBRE) DRI A269.1TBEEETR
276 3HBETT  BREERIHBHERRD
e -

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETZ3) 2015
Current BNER 232,027 234,230
Past due Pkt 37,092 42,066
Total trade receivables FEUAR 4858 269,119 276,296

Credit terms are granted based on the credit worthiness of individual
customers. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, trade receivables are on

average due within 60 days from the invoice date.

HABERERAT
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10. Trade and Other Receivables continued

(b) Impairment of Trade Receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

10. FRURARFR ELAL PRI IR &
(b) FEWARFRAVIRIE

BB UCR R SR ERAE AR ERES
RIARERBREFANBE RN - it
WSRO LR 2 R A B O T
8 o AKEIL KK S BB G L

The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year follows: mh ©
FARBEEESNT
[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFET25]) 2015 2014
As of January 1 ®R1A1H 13,459 14,353
Impairment loss recognized ERREEE 1,160 1,097
Impairment loss written back or off BRI S SR EE R (1,899) (1,991)
As of December 31 W12 A31H 12,720 13,459

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

1. RERBREEEY

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFZExZ25Y) 2015
Bank balances RITHEER 169,994 138,906
Short-term investments FHARE 10,809 1,517
Total cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EEWERE 180,803 140,423

Short-term investments are comprised of overnight sweep accounts and time
deposits. The Group had no restrictions on the use of any of its cash as of December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

12. Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014.

(UFZETES]
R R SRR

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars,
except share and per share data)

REREORERRABERS REBF
e B20154F12 A31 B KR 20144 12 A 31
B - ZNERELE AR S W R TARS) o

12. BREF

(a) EZR

BHZE2015F 12831 H&2014F 128311
ILFE - BREABFTDREARARLBER
MR B SAETE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31BLEE

2015

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year FHEETEBR

Weighted-average impact of share options exercised
during the year

1,408,026,456  1,407,137,004

FRBITEBRENNETOEE

1,372,329 624,648

HIM R0 B9 A E9 2R

Weighted-average number of shares during the period

1,409,398,785  1,407,761,652

Profit attributable to the equity holders N&HERFE AFE(L 5 ) 197,639 186,256
Basic earnings per share BRRERZEF)
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (AT 251) 0.140 0.132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

12. Earnings Per Share continued

(b) Diluted

Dilutive earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted-average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

(UFETZES]
R R EFREIE I

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars,
except share and per share data)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic]
at end of the year

Effect of share options BkEr®

12. BRER &

(b) #H

SRS R TS B T AR
g - AR RATE A R R
RipiE e -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31BLEE

2015

FRE BB IEFHE(EAR)

1,409,398,785
2,782,489

1,407,761,652
2,520,360

HAR R {0 B A4 S 15 8K

Weighted-average number of shares during the period

1,612,181,274  1,410,282,012

Profit attributable to the equity holders N&HERFE AFE(L 5 ) 197,639 186,256
Diluted earnings per share BREE R
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (LAFRZET25) 0.140 0.132
(c) Dividends and Distributions (c) RERDIK

On March 16, 2015, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the amount of
US$88.0 million, or approximately US$0.0624 per share, be made to the Company’s
shareholders of record on June 17, 2015 from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The
shareholders approved this distribution on June 4, 2015 at the Annual General
Meeting and the distribution was paid on July 13, 2015.

On March 18, 2014, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the
amount of US$80.0 million, or approximately US$0.0568 per share, be made to the
Company’s shareholders of record on June 17, 2014 from its ad hoc distributable
reserve. The shareholders approved this distribution on June 5, 2014 at the Annual
General Meeting and the distribution was paid on July 11, 2014.

No other dividends or distributions were declared or paid during the years
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

13. Loans and Borrowings
(a)

Non-current obligations represent non-current debt and finance lease obligations as

Non-current Obligations

follows:

M20156F3 168 - EFGERERARRIA
HAIRFERERR 20154 6 A 17 BRFIRES
REA R FIIREEH 88.0 BB =Tk B4
0.0624ETTHIR S DK © BT 20154 6 A
LARTHRRAF RS EIERES IR -
Mo IKER 2015867 A 138X o

R2014F3R18H E=CE#EA
RIS R AR 20146 6 A 17 B35
ARER A A AR A BIAR R /E L 80.0 B &= Tsk
BFARAY0.0568 ETTHIR L DR © AR 2014
FoASERTMRRBFERE FHt/EZIE
Dk MARER2014F7 B 11 BT »

REZE20154 12 831 AR 2014412
A3 BIEFE AR AN ES Rk A
HAREKD IR

13. ERMRMERK

(a) FARBER
REIERDESRBEAEFENIRDE
BT

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFE725) 2015
Finance lease obligations L& TR SR IE 87 32
Less current installments RENER 5 B R (30) (14)
Non-current loans and borrowings FERDERE R R fER 57 18

HABERERAT
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13. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations and Credit Facilities

Current obligations represent current debt and finance lease obligations as follows:

13. ERRER &

(b) RBEBREERE
REMBES K EEHERERNREEZ O
T

December 31,

128311

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFET25) 2015

Revolving Facility BREE 48,174 60,000

Other lines of credit E{zREEE 15,921 7,536

Finance lease obligations BEEAE 30 14
Total current obligations MENEIS 4R 64,125 67,550
Less deferred financing costs BRIERYE B (1,401) (2,419)
Current loans and borrowings BIERE N R &K 62,724 65,131

The Group maintains a revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) in the
amount of US$500.0 million. The facility can be increased by an additional US$300.0
million, subject to lender approval. The Revolving Facility has an initial term of five
years from its effective date of June 17, 2014, with a one year extension available
at the request of the Group and at the option of the lenders. The interest rate on
borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR or (b) the
prime rate of the lender and (i) a margin to be determined based on the Group’s
leverage ratio. Based on the Group's leverage ratio, the Revolving Facility carries a
commitment fee ranging from 0.2% to 0.325% per annum on any unutilized amounts,
as well as an agency fee if another lender joins the Revolving Facility. The Revolving
Facility is secured by certain of the Group’s assets in the United States and Europe, as
well as the Group's intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also contains financial
covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios, and operating covenants
that, among other things, limit the Group’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens
on its assets, and participate in certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset
sales or investments. The Group was in compliance with the financial covenants as
of December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2015, US$449.3 million was available to
be borrowed on the Revolving Facility as a result of US$48.2 million of outstanding
borrowings and the utilization of US$2.5 million of the facility for outstanding letters
of credit extended to certain creditors. As of December 31, 2014, US$437.5 million was
available to be borrowed as a result of US$60.0 million of outstanding borrowings and
the utilization of US$2.5 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended

to certain creditors.

AEFB@EFBREERE ([ERE
B )&% 500.0 BEXETT o giE A RN
M300.0 B EETT - HEBBSERAIE -
BIREEB2014F 6 A17THBMEM B HRE
SIS EHARE  WAEALEERRE
FANBEER—F o AIREE THIEHFE
AT EIERAA ¢ (i)(a) R ZERIT R ZEHF S
X (b) B A BB BT K (i) iR AN E 8
IBIRLL REE M S E - BRIEASERERL
% BRAHBREEEARDANSERK
HWEENT0.2%E0.325%WEHE 5
—BERAMARBREERIARRREE
BREEUAEEMREARBMNNETE
EURAREENMHEEER - BREEN
B2 BRI S E AT b 3R RARIE L =5 B R B 7S
it AREERE - EReERHIAER
EEFIMER  BEBEFVEERERSN
ETOHE B BB AERESIREAR
8670 ° PR2015F 12 A31H ' AEE—FHE
SR - K 2015F12 A318 - AREK
ERNERLS2ABETRMERTETE
HARNREZERAAMEA2.588ETR
B REREEA TELNSRERL49.38
BT o RN2014F12A31H » ARKEE
MER60.0 BB ET KMEHFETEEA
MAREREARMEBFE28EETHME -
Al FEEHESEALTSBEET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

13. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations and Credit Facilities continued

Certain consolidated subsidiaries of the Group maintain credit lines with various
third party lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines
provide working capital for the day-to-day business operations of the subsidiaries,
including overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance and factoring facilities. The
majority of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate amount
outstanding under the local facilities was US$15.9 million and US$7.5 million as of
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The uncommitted available
lines of credit amounted to US$88.1 million and US$87.3 million as of December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

14. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits expense, which consists of payroll, pension plan expenses, share-
based payments and other benefits, amounted to US$298.0 million and US$287.6
million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.
Of these amounts, US$23.6 million and US$23.6 million was included in cost of sales
during the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.
The remaining amounts were presented in distribution expenses and general and
administrative expenses.

Average employee headcount worldwide was approximately 9,325 and 8,492 for

the years ending December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

(a)
On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the Company’s Share

Share-based Payment Arrangements

Award Scheme to remain in effect until September 13, 2022. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize them
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme may take the form
of either share options or restricted share units (“RSUs"), which may be granted at the
discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other persons as the Board
may determine.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the
Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the higher of:
a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the

Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

c) the nominal value of the shares.

MERBEEARAR

Samsonite International S.A.
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14. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements continued

As of February 29, 2016 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate
number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme is 89,100,758 shares, representing approximately 6.3% of the issued
share capital of the Company at that date. An individual participant may be granted
awards pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in respect of a maximum of 1% of the
Company’s total issued shares in any 12-month period. Any grant of awards to an
individual participant in excess of this limit is subject to independent shareholder’s
approval.

On January 7, 2015, the Company granted share options exercisable for
16,006,812 ordinary shares to certain directors, key management personnel and other
employees of the Group with an exercise price of HK$23.31 per share. Such options
are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on
each anniversary date of the grant. Such options have a 10-year term.

On January 7, 2015, the Company made an additional special grant of share
options exercisable for 10,040,399 ordinary shares to an Executive Director and to five
additional members of the Group’s senior management team. The exercise price of
the options granted was HK$23.31. 60% of such options will vest on January 7, 2018
and 40% will vest on January 7, 2020. Such options have a 10-year term.

On August 31, 2015, the Company granted share options exercisable for 114,158
ordinary shares to an employee of a subsidiary of the Company. The exercise price of
the options granted was HK$24.15. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over a
4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the grant.
Such options have a 10-year term.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options are
entitled to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price per
share equal to the exercise price of the options. The fair value of services received in
return for share options granted is based on the fair value of share options granted
measured using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value calculated for
share options is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made and the limitations
of the model utilized.

The grant-date fair value of the share options granted is generally recognized
as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity when such options represent
equity-settled awards, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognized
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the vesting
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is

based on the number of awards that meet the vesting conditions at the vesting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

14. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements continued

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant
date of the share-based payment for the 16,006,812 share options made on January 7,
2015:

14. BEEF &
(a) RGN ZH &
FEFHER2015F1A7TBE Y
16,006,812 {7 HE AR #E #) LA R 7 S (T EE R I B
AR EERFEANEAZHNT :

Fair value at grant date HK$7.57
Share price at grant date HK$23.10
Exercise price HK$23.31
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 40.0%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 1.9%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%

REE B AR EE 7.577% 7T
R B B E 23.10/87C
(B 233177
TEERR B (INHE T ED) 40.0%
BEREF A CGERIETAFE) 6255
TEEARR 2 1.9%

[RB& A= (LABUT &S R %) 1.4%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant
date of the share-based payment for the additional special grant of 10,040,399 share

options made on January 7, 2015:

EFER 20151 A 7 BERIZEINE
10,040,399 17 B AR M 9 DA RR {0 2 AT FE %
MAREERFERAARARSNT

Fair value at grant date HK$7.94
Share price at grant date HK$23.10
Exercise price HK$23.31
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 40.4%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 7 years
Expected dividends 1.9%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%

REE B AR EE 7.94 7T
R B B E 23.10/87C
(B 233177
TRERRB) (MK E) 40.4%
B & B R ER N I 9 AR) 74
%EHHHQE 1.9%

B AR (VAR &S R %) 1.4%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant
date of the share-based payment for the 114,158 share options made on August 31,
2015:

EFFER2015F8 A31BRE
114,158 R BERRIEN AR D X HEREAH
AR EEREANEGAZENT

Fair value at grant date HK$7.09
Share price at grant date HK$24.15
Exercise price HK$24.15
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 36.1%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 2.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.3%

REE B AREE 7.097% 7T
A BRI (E 24157 7T
(B 241577
TRERR B (MK E) 36.1%
BEREFE A CGERIETAFE) 6255
TEEARR 2 2.0%
ERBFE (LB ESAEE) 1.3%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price
volatility as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable companies
given the limited trading history of the Company’s shares.

In total, share-based compensation expense of US$15.2 million and US$11.0
million was recognized in the consolidated income statement, with the offset in
equity reserves, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,

respectively.

HABERERAT
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14. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Share-based Payment Arrangements continued

Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December
31,2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:

(a)

14. EEER =
VAR 9 323 2 5k 4
HZE2015412 831 BR2014412 8

3NBLEFE - BEENHBERESWT

Weighted-

Number of average

Options exercise price

BREHE T IIITE(E

Outstanding at January 1, 2015 201551 A1 B EKRITHE 26,741,866 HK$20.1378 7T
Granted during the period HAR 26,161,369 HK$23.3138 7T
Exercised during the period HARATE (1,807,069) HK$19.0638 T
Canceled/lapsed during the period HARRESH / KRR (1,994,600) HK$21.2238 7T
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 R 2015412 A31 B ARITE 49,101,566 HK$21.837&7T
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 201512 A31 BRI{TfE 8,036,772 HK$19.297& T

Weighted-
average
exercise price

hOREF 1T EE

Number of

Options
BREHE

Outstanding at January 1, 2014 201451 A1 BERITHE 15,345,178  HK$17.37/8 7T
Granted during the period BHARE 12,523,765 HK$23.33/8 7T
Exercised during the period HARTT(E (889,452) HK$17.3675 7T
Canceled/lapsed during the period HARRESH / K3k (237,625) HK$20.297%8 7T

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 M2014512 A31 BRIARTTE 26,741,866 HK$20.13787C

Exercisable at December 31, 2014 2014412 A31 BAI1T{E 2,946,828 HK$17.37/ 87T

At December 31, 2015, the range of exercise prices for outstanding share
options was HK$17.36 to HK$24.77 with a weighted average contractual life of 8.3
years. At December 31, 2014, the range of exercise prices for outstanding share
options was HK$17.36 to HK$24.77 with a weighted average contractual life of 8.5
years.

No RSUs had been issued under the Share Award Scheme as of December 31,
2015.

M2015%F 12 A31 8 » WARITERER
ERTTEEN T 17.36 B LE 24.7774 7T 1N
TS A8.3F - 12014512 A 31
H @ MARITEERENITERENTF17.3678
TCE 247787 - TG E KRS EF o

M 2015412 A31 8  HHERERHD
SEEN 8131 T PR HIAR (9 BT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes
(i)  Plan Descriptions

Details of the significant plans sponsored by the Group are presented below.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined benefit retirement plan, the
Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan, which covers certain employee groups.
Retirement benefits are based on a final average pay formula. This plan was closed
to new entrants effective January 1, 2010. Effective December 31, 2010, the plan was
frozen to future accruals. This plan was terminated effective December 31, 2014. The
administration of the plan will be moved to a third party insurance company. For those
participants who will receive a benefit in the form of an annuity, the Group intends
to purchase an annuity contract for such participants’ benefits from an insurer to be
selected at a later date. The Group anticipates the administration of the plan will be
moved within the next year, pending regulatory approval.

The Group also maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain
management employees. This plan was closed to new entrants effective January 1,
2010. Effective December 31, 2010, the plan was frozen to future accruals.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group also provides health care and life insurance
benefits to certain retired employees who meet certain age and years of service
eligibility requirements. The plan was closed to new entrants with regards to life
insurance benefits effective January 1, 2009 and was closed to new entrants with
regards to medical benefits effective December 31, 2009. Eligible retirees are
required to contribute to the costs of post-retirement benefits. The Group’s other
post-retirement benefits are not vested and the Group has the right to modify any
benefit provision, including contribution requirements, with respect to any current or
former employee, dependent or beneficiary. As of December 31, 2015 and December
31, 2014, the percentage of health insurance cost that the retiree must contribute was
100%.

A Belgium subsidiary of the Group sponsors a pre-pension defined benefit
retirement plan to certain employees who meet certain age and years of service
eligibility requirements. Benefits are calculated based on a final pay formula and are

contributed until the employee reaches the legal retirement age.

MERBEEARAR

Samsonite International S.A.

14. BEEF &
(b) RBRASFHEIREREEAE
i) ETEIFE
BASBEMHANEATEFEBERIMOT -
£ @ — X B T A Bl 1) i 2848 A
RAGTEERCREE TEEHENTFE
B ERWKAGE]) o RINBEF HERHZL
FHZAAXGTHE o ILEH ST RE S 2010
F1A1TRBRABMIFET - tiT 385 2010
F12 A31 BRRRARKREIFRIA © IbETHE
FR20145F12 A 31 BARARIE - GHEIMERT
ERERE=HRBAT » A EEHR
EREFNN2EENS  ASEHRTEES
HE KRR R —BRER AR (ERHEE B
BH)BEFSEH - AEETENSREASE
AEBRENEEIE  hRHEEHFEEE
BHLE ©
AEBNAETEEERERI—E
TEFTRIRETE o BETENERZ B 20104 1
A1 ABRABRIETL o thatEIH 2010412
A 31 BRBREARRRFTZIA o
AEEN—FHEENBARTAET
FEETFi RRFFRAERERNRKE
BRMHEBERASRBERN - ZiTEHASE
IREREFILTEE B 2009 F 1 A1 BRAR
EETE T - Mak B AR TR E B 2009 5
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F12A31HKR2014F12 A318 © EIKEE
FhERRIR P AR R A S LE 73 100% ©
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FeEETFRERBFHERERNERSR
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i)  Plan Descriptions continued

The U.S. plans are administered by trustees, which are independent of the
Group, with their assets held separately from those of the Group. These plans are
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations. The latest independent
actuarial valuations of the plans were as of December 31, 2015 and were prepared
by independent qualified actuaries, who are members of the Society of Actuaries of
the United States of America, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under these defined benefit
retirement plans were US$227.4 million and US$244.2 million as of December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, which are 90.7% and 87.7% funded by the
plan assets held by the trustees as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,

respectively.

(ii)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position
for the Group’s significant plans

EBEEH &
EBHREtEIREEENE &
e B3 g
ZEBEHBYRNAEENTEEA
B REEERAEENEEDRFE
RNEB Y ZET S ERTIRBEBE AEER 5
FIERBEMERNEZEL - Zat8lRaH
BB EAETIR 2015412 A 31 BEfE
REBRBEZSNGENE LA ABBERM
WA EMNERAEL - ZBEEGERT
REFIREZEEEENRIKGEIR 20155F
12 A31 B X 2014512 31 HOAED BB
2274 BBFETLK2442BEFETT  1R2015F
12 A31 B X% 2014412 A31 BEH 515 90.7%
K.87.7% E35EE ARFA HIETEIE EALRR o

14.

(b)
(i)

li) FEEFEAFERFEIBRRER

PR NRIE

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (HUFE725) 2015
Present value of unfunded obligations REEAENRE (14,104) (15,853)
Present value of partly funded obligations o e BEARENRAE (224,840) (241,534)
Fair value of plan assets FFEIEEMAREE 206,378 213,991
Net pension liability RINEBEFE (32,566) (43,396)
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities R AEMELENEBRRE 270 1,878

The net pension liability is recorded in employee benefits in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not have net unrecognized actuarial
losses as the Group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive
income.

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one year.
However, it is not practicable to segregate the amount from the amounts payable in
the next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate to future changes in
actuarial assumptions and market conditions. The Group estimates that the benefit
payments for the pension and post-retirement benefits will be approximately US$17.5
million during 2016 and between US$16.4 million and US$17.2 million each year from
2017 through 2020.

RASBEFEETAGE BT
RNESBFIAT - BRASER A 2HE
Wes R RERFT A B E B - MASETER
RIS E I8 -

FatE S B EEHAN—FREE - A
i+ AR RN TR E B R KT
RAREEME - FLTBEESZEREER
R+—EANENRESRAERE - A5EE
ST 2016 F YR IR RAR IR AR T FRAS4Y
175 B&ET - MAE2017FE 20204 -
BENTF16LEBEETENT2EEET ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

14. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

14.
(b)

(i)  Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position [ii)

for the Group’s significant plans continued

The net pension liability is shown below:

EBERF &

RASFTEIR EEEBAGE &
AEETEHHERGEHBRRE
ShEERR AR &

Bihke BEFBIIRMT :

December 31, 2015
2015 12A31H

U.S. post- Belgium

U.S. pension retirement retirement

benefits benefits benefits

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFET25) EXEBRKREEF EEBIKEEF L FIRF R AR R

Present value of the defined TE FEAR M AR

benefit obligation BE (227,426) (1,681) (9,837) (238,944)
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEARER 206,378 - - 206,378
Net liability FafE (21,048) (1,681) (9,837) (32,566)

December 31, 2014
20145128318

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETZ3)) EEBRIR SRR ZERAKEIER FERIRFR AR AR R
Present value of the defined TERER AR
benefit obligation A (244,229) (1,826) (11,332) (257,387)
Fair value of plan assets FAEIBEAREE 213,991 - - 213,991
Net liability FRE (30,238) (1,826) (11,332) (43,396)

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations for the {iii)

Group’s significant plans

25

Year ended December 31, 2015
HBZ2015F12B3M BAILEE

FEEEEF RN ERBENEERE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UTFETL5) EEBRKREEF XEENRERER L 7 BF 3R Rk 38 F)
Change in benefit obligation: RAIEEEE)
Benefit obligation at January 1 B1A18H
R 244,229 1,826 11,332 257,387
Service cost BRAGAL AR - - 578 578
Interest cost FLERA 8,674 64 153 8,891
Plan participants’ contributions FHEI2mEHENK - 168 - 168
Remeasurements EFETE (8,524) (199) (785) (9,508)
Benefits paid B A& F (16,953) (178) (289) (17,420)
Foreign exchange adjustments H|NPE B - - (1,152) (1,152)
Benefit obligation at December 31 M12A318/
YR 227,426 1,681 9,837 238,944
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14. Employee Benefits continved 14. EEEHN &

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued (b) EBAREFTEIRERBEAE &
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations for the (i) F&EEFEHBNETERAKERE
Group’s significant plans continued 28 &

Year ended December 31, 2014
BZE2014F 12831 HILFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFET25) XEENEER XERRREER L T BF3E AR 3= F
Change in benefit obligation: YIS
Benefit obligation at January 1 B1A1TEH
1@ R EIE 213,419 1,938 12,780 228,137
Service cost i ID N - - 626 626
Interest cost B 9,054 80 328 9,462
Plan participants ' contributions FHEI2 AR - 211 - 211
Remeasurements EHEE 38,974 (180) (445) 38,349
Benefits paid BEAEF (17,218) (223) (419) (17,860)
Foreign exchange adjustments HNEE BB - - (1,538) (1,538)
Benefit obligation at December 31 R12A31BH
B A 244,229 1,826 11,332 257,387
(iv) Movement in plan assets for the Group’s significant plans livl ZTEEZEFGENTEEESE

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F12A3MALEE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFETZ7) EEBKRESEF EEBIKEEF L IR R AR R
Change in plan assets: FEIBESS
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 1 81 B&EE
BENAREE 213,991 - - 213,991
Interest income FEMA 7,714 - - 7,714
Remeasurements EHFEE (10,913) - - (10,913)
Employer contributions fEEHR 14,140 10 289 14,439
Plan participants’ contributions FHEI2mE MK - 168 - 168
Benefits paid B EF (16,953) (178) (289) (17,420)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (1,601) - - (1,601)
Fair value of plan assets at K12 A318H
December 31 FrEIEEN
NRfEE 206,378 - - 206,378
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FRMBHRRMTE &

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(iv) Movement in plan assets for the Group’s significant plans continued

14. EEER =
(b) RkEETEIREFEBFGE &
v AEBIBHBOHHVEELD &

Year ended December 31, 2014
HZE2014F 12831 BIEEE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UTFETZ5) EERKREEF EERREER L6 T BF3E PR 38 F)
Change in plan assets: SHEIEEEE)
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 1 81 B&:H2
BENAAEER 199,102 - - 199,102
Interest income FEMA 8,606 - - 8,606
Remeasurements EHEE 10,261 - - 10,261
Employer contributions EE G 14,139 12 419 14,570
Plan participants’ contributions a2 mE MR - 211 - 211
Benefits paid BAEF (17,218) (223) (419) (17,860)
Administrative expenses THRX (899) - - (899)
Fair value of plan assets at R12A31BH
December 31 TEIEER
AR EE 213,991 - - 213,991

(v) Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income for the (v)

Group’s significant plans

AEEMEEH MR 2 E R
RIENHE

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZE2015F12ANBLFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETL7) XEBKREEF EERBRIKREEF L FIRF R R R R
Cumulative amount at January 1 R1ATEH
Rite¥ 135,441 (3,753) 2,028 133,716
Effect of changes in demographic AL RE
assumptions BEHMTE - - = =
Effect of changes in financial B RS RAR
assumptions Sl (9,036) (62) (680) (9,778)
Effect of experience adjustments KRR E 512 (137) (105) 270
(Return) on plan assets (excluding FrEIEE(B1HR)
interest income) (TEFEFIE
WA) 11,014 - - 11,014
Cumulative amount at December 31 K12 A318H
RiteRE 137,931 (3,952) 1,243 135,222
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14. Employee Benefits continved 14. EEEHN &

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued (b) EBAREFTEIRERBEAE &
(v) Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income for the (v) F&EEFEFHEREME2EKIEFRE
Group’s significant plans continued RNEHTE A

Year ended December 31, 2014
HE2014F 12831 ALFE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETL5]) ZEERSER EERNEIER e Rl RER AR R A
Cumulative amount at January 1 M1 ATE®
Rite# 106,928 (3,573) 2,473 105,828
Effect of changes in demographic AR FEHREE
assumptions 2y 22,250 (80) (2,287) 19,883
Effect of changes in financial I RERE
assumptions = 14,681 116 1,791 16,588
Effect of experience adjustments KEREN T E 2,043 (216) 51 1,878
(Return) on plan assets (excluding talEE(EHR)
interest income) (TBEME
WA) (10,461) - - (10,461)

Cumulative amount at December 31 K12 8318/
Ritew 135,441 (3,753) 2,028 133,716

(vi) Costs recognized in the consolidated income statement for the Group’s [vi] FEBTZEFERGFERBIRHPER
significant plans Y AR

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015512A3MALEE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFETZ3) XERNRSER XERNKREER L B R AR F
Service cost BRAS R - - 578 578
Interest expense on defined TERRAR AR
benefit obligation FEFMAEZ 8,674 64 153 8,891
Interest (income) on plan assets FHEIEER
HMEA) (7,715) - - (7,715)
Administrative expenses TR 2 1,500 - - 1,500
Total net periodic benefit cost JFIE BRRR A
N 2,459 64 731 3,254
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

REIERRMET &

14. Employee Benefits continved 14. EEEHN &

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued (b) EBAREFTEIREEEFGE &

(vi) Costs recognized in the consolidated income statement for the Group’s (vil ZAEEFZEFERGEEWBERDER
significant plans continued HI B2 A

Year ended December 31, 2014
BZE2014F 12831 ALEE

U.S. post- Belgium
U.S. pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UTFETL5) EERKREEF ZERNEEF L6 T BSF3R AR 3@ F)
Service cost BT A - - 626 626
Interest expense on defined TE REAR AR
benefit obligation FEFEZ 9,054 80 328 9,462
Interest (income) on plan assets FHEIEER
FLECKRA) (8,606) - - (8,606)
Administrative expenses THAX 1,100 - - 1,100
Total net periodic benefit cost T ERE T
DN L 1,548 80 954 2,582
The expense is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated income RiFE KT - FAXIRATIEE®
statement: 2

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A3BILEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFZErZ25Y) 2015
General and administrative expenses — R R ATERF S 1,343 1,412
Other expenses EAY 1,911 1,170
3,254 2,582
Pension expense included in other income and expense relates to the actuarial RASHRX BEEAREEE AT EBE

determined pension expense associated with the pension plans of two companies  BRIME A& (AR ERKESBFIERQF
unrelated to the Group’s current operations whose pension obligations were  ([ZERESBFIERAF ) AI1993 F i - H
assumed by the Group as a result of a 1993 agreement with the Pension Benefit E{R& 375 HAEEAE) WBEETEK
Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”). The plans were part of a controlled company of SHIXBBMNHEMIARFAS - K1993F
corporations of which the Group was a part of, prior to 1993. Al - Zat Bl REAERI AR (AEERE —
BDIH—FH o
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14. EEER &

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued (b) EREFEIREERAFE &
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used for the Group’s significant plans i) AEEXEHBIFFARERR

2015

Weighted average assumptions used
to determine benefit obligations

2015
BYERER12A31HH

EEES =il S Sl

U.S. post-
retirement
benefits

EEIRIREZIEF

Belgium
retirement
benefits

EERIBSR IR F

U.S. pension

benefits

KEIRAEIEA

as of December 31: Hep -

Discount rate ARIRE 4.07% 4.07% 1.80%

Rate of compensation increase g == N/A 73 N/ATiE A -

Rate of price inflation fEE AR N/A 73 N/A F3E 1.75%
Weighted average assumptions used to BERERBZE12A3AH

determine net periodic benefit cost IEFER)FE AR A A8

for the year ended December 31: T8RS - B

Discount rate LR 3.68% 3.68% 1.50%

Rate of compensation increase g == - N/A 738 -
2014 20144F
Weighted average assumptions used REREN12A31 B

to determine benefit obligations as of BREENIEFESERE -

December 31: Hep -

Discount rate gtk 3.68% 3.68% 1.50%

Rate of compensation increase g Rx N/A A N/A AN A -

Rate of price inflation BE AR N/ATERA N/A AN 2.00%
Weighted average assumptions used to BERERBE12A31H

determine net periodic benefit cost 1EEFER)FE BRI A )

for the year ended December 31: e BR®R - B

Discount rate RAIRE 4.42% 4.462% 2.80%

Rate of compensation increase g R =X - N/ANiE A -

201512 A31 AKX 2014612 A31 8
M EREERIREDBIA(2)% & 10%

AEIR R THE R S T AR (B 2 1 Wi 2 3 iy
i RBZHE - BALOSE N EIHK
mETEFT KA o BIIRENERETE REL
HERRERE—FI%E -

HBRARBEBEFFEMS  BE20165F
12A3MHIESFE  BEBEERREEMHA
B ATEETIA T 1% FFRER - P RE
BB EEHZE2027F 12 31 BIEF
ER) 4.5% WHELLIRFFZIEREK o

The actual rate of return on assets for December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014 was (2)% and 10%, respectively.

The discount rate is based on a high-grade bond yield curve under which
benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount
rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value.

For post-retirement benefit measurement purposes, a 7.1% annual rate of
increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits is assumed for the year
ended December 31, 2016. The rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 4.5% for the

year ended December 31, 2027 and remain at that level thereafter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used for the Group’s significant plans continued

Reasonably possible changes as of the reporting date to one of the relevant
actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

(UFET25))
BRISR (50246 1)
EEERABIELR(1%E

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Discount rate (50 basis points)

Medical cost trend rate (1% movement)

14. BEEHN

(b) RASTEIREBEBANE &

(vii) ST B R A
Rifs R - KPR R

MARTEEH (R BRRESTE) S 1S

EEERRE - S RSERRMT -

December 31, 2015
2015128318

Increase Decrease

E# T

(11,348) 12,397

) (8) 8

The estimated benefit obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement
date without considering future compensation levels), exceeded the fair value of
plan assets as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 by US$32.6 million and
US$43.4 million, respectively.

(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset
category for the Group’s significant plans

TEET R AIENE (T2 BRI AT -
et 2 B AlE B RS R F KT EERNE
FIBEHRE)DRIE KR2015F12 A31B K
20145F12 A31 ANt EIEEN AR BES
H32.6 AEETTRALILEBET °

(viii) AEEEEFEFEERAS R
BEENAABERIREESR

December 31, 2015
2015128318

Targeted
allocation Fair value
BESE AREE
(Us$’000)
(F#7)
Fixed Income Ehallead -%-100% 174,942
Cash He -%-100% 31,436
Total HET 100% 206,378

December 31, 2014
20145128318

Targeted
allocation Fair value
BEAE AREE
(US$’ 000)
(FZ*7T)
Equity (b3 -%-40% -
Fixed Income Eipradlireas -%-100% 155,864
Asset allocation BEDR 20%-40% 55,226
Other Hib -%-10% 2,901
Total BEr 100% 213,991

Samsonite International S.A.
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14. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset
category for the Group’s significant plans continued

The asset allocation targets are set with the expectation that the plan’s assets
will fund the plan’s expected liabilities with an appropriate level of risk. Expected
returns, risk and correlation among asset classes are based on historical data and
input received from the Group’s investment advisers.

The funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet
minimum funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws. In 2016,

there is no minimum required contribution for the U.S. pension.

(ix) Historical Information for the Group’s significant plans

14. BEEEH &
(b) BASHBREHEEFE &
(viii) XEBEEFEFXERKSTERFE
BEENAAEERIEEESEA
BESRN B ZIIREIEERART
BEERERBOEIEHREERHEESH
TEHMEE - EES B2 ENEDER - &
S MIEEEERERREAEEREBRNB
FHERBAER -
gl ERECR ERBEEE R &
BUERESMESR - 1R R ARFA KIEMRK
ERAFIE c 2016 F » ERRKE W ER
BT ERK -

lix) AEEEEFAENBEER

December 31,

12A31H

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (WU FETZ5) 2013
Present value of the defined TERRAR A E

benefit obligation MR (E (238,944) (257,387) (228,137) (257,185) (242,453)
Fair value of plan assets FTEIAER

RAfEE 206,378 213,991 199,102 188,807 182,728

Net liability FaE (32,566) (43,396) (29,035) (68,378) (59,725
Experience adjustments arising &G EMEE

on plan liabilities R AL B T B 270 1,878 (1,084) 7,354 (2,660)

(c) Defined Contribution Plan
A U.S. subsidiary of the Group provides a defined contribution 401(k) retirement
plan. The plan covers substantially all non-union employees of the subsidiary for the
sole purpose of encouraging participants to save for retirement. Plan participants
may contribute up to 75% of their compensation to the plan, a percentage of which
is matched by the Group. The Group may also make non-elective contributions to
participants’ accounts. Participant contributions and the earnings thereon are fully
vested upon contribution. Participants become vested in the matching and non-
elective contributions upon completion of two and three years of service, respectively.
Forfeited contributions made by the Group are used to reduce future matching
contributions and/or administrative expenses.

In connection with this plan, the Group recognized an expense of US$3.1 million
and US$2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,

respectively. Forfeited contributions were inconsequential for the periods presented.

(c) EFEMAKETE
AN E— B KB A AR BB R
401(K)RIRETE o BETEVREZNBAREB
ABAFTIEEE - ENERBBREER
RINGEE - sHEI2EER M EEL SER
M 75% R - MASBE I RZA DT
TR SIS - REEINA] IR EERFE
SRR RN o 2 HEE MR BRI
REEBHHEE - HEHARIBEREHERRE
ARIREBMFER=FREB2HEE - K&
B2 U B SR T RER D R R FH R R /
HATRFA °
#HZE20154 12 A31 AKX 2014512 A
BNBIEFE - ANEEFULETE D BITER 3.1
BEETK25BBETHRAE - RTZE7
HiR - RIEERE T ERX o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

14. Employee Benefits continued
(d) Samsonite LLC’s U.S. Pension Plan Settlement Agreement

Samsonite LLC (a U.S. subsidiary of the Group) and the PBGC are party to a Settlement
Agreement under which PBGC was granted an equal and ratable lien on certain
domestic assets of Samsonite LLC and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries (excluding any
equity interests in subsidiaries and any inventory or accounts receivable of Samsonite
LLC or its U.S. subsidiaries), together with Samsonite’s intellectual property rights
in the U.S. and Samsonite’s rights under licenses of such intellectual property to
affiliates or third parties. The PBGC's lien, which is in the amount of US$35.8 million,
is equal and ratable with the lien granted over such assets to Samsonite’s senior
secured lenders. Other provisions of the agreement restrict the transfer of U.S. assets
outside of the ordinary course of business. The Group is in compliance with these
requirements as of December 31, 2015.

The agreement will expire upon (a) the Group obtaining investment grade status
on its senior unsecured debt, (b) the date the plan has no unfunded benefit liabilities
for two consecutive plan years, (c) the date on which the Group becomes part of a
controlled company whose unsecured debt has investment grade status, or (d) the

date the plan is successfully terminated.

15. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2016 is approximately US$84.0 million.
Capital commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
were US$7.8 million and US$16.7 million, respectively, which were not recognized as
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position as they have not met the

recognition criteria.

HABERERAT
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15. Commitments continued

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable leases of office,
warehouse and retail store space and equipment. As of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, future minimum payments under non-cancellable leases were as

follows:

15. RiE &

(b) EEHERE
FEBENHEHEREIEAERAE - %E
ZEBENZEERRBEN A BIEEE -

2m5¢12ﬂ31a&2m4¢12ﬂ315v$
ATEHAE IR T AR R FE N AR RIEA T

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFET23) 2015
Within one year —FR 94,453 74,018
After one year but within two years —FREMFNR 89,374 62,286
After two years but within five years MFRERFA 102,717 98,483
More than five years HEFA 64,573 61,375
Total operating lease commitments LETHE RS 351,117 296,162

Certain of the leases are renewable at the Group’s option. Certain of the leases
also contain rent escalation clauses that require additional rents in later years of the
lease term, which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental expense under cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases
amounted to US$122.0 million and US$112.2 million for the years ended December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Certain of the retail leases provide
for additional rent payments based on a percentage of sales. These additional rent
payments amounted to US$2.5 million and US$3.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and are included in rent

expense.

16. Contingent Liabilities
In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to various forms of litigation
and legal proceedings. The facts and circumstances relating to particular cases are
evaluated in determining whether it is more likely than not that there will be a future
outflow of funds and, once established, whether a provision relating to specific litigation
is sufficient. The Group records provisions based on its past experience and on facts
and circumstances known at each reporting date. The provision charge is recognized
within general and administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
When the date of the incurrence of an obligation is not reliably measureable, the
provisions are not discounted and are classified in current liabilities.

The Group did not settle any significant litigation during the year ended
December 31, 2015.
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BERBEERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

17. Trade and Other Payables

(K FETZ5Y)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

17. B RRRK BB RKIR

December 31,
128311

2015

Accounts payable FERTERR 345,438 316,509
Other payables and accruals fth FE ST RIE K FE T B R 89,523 92,155
Other tax payables HAbfERBIE 7,180 6,781
Total trade and other payables FEAT AR R N LAt < FRIB A ER 442,141 415,445
Included in accounts payable are trade payables with the following aging ERNRIEBERMER  ERSER

analysis by due date of the respective invoice:

FEBEERRER DM T

December 31,

128318
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UAFETZ7) 2015
Current RN EA 262,325 234,857
Past Due pail=t 21,360 26,855
Total trade payables FEfTBRF 485 283,685 261,712

Trade payables as of December 31, 2015 are on average due within 105 days

from the invoice date.

18. Income Taxes
(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement
Taxation in the consolidated income statement for the years ended December 31, 2015

and December 31, 2014 consisted of the following:

(UTFETL25))
AEBBEFA — BAFEH -

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Current tax expense — Hong Kong Profits Tax:

R 20154 12 A 31 HAFER BRREY
REZEZ AR 105 BREIE -

18. FriS®Hi

(a) REEWRBKRPNHIE
HZE2015F 12831 A& 2014F 128311
LEFEH Wk N T B B 15 A T I8
S

=
N

Year ended December 31,

BE12ANBLFE
2015

Current period N HAEAfE (663) (1,769)
Current tax expense — Foreign: RERR BRI — 55 -

Current period 7N HA HA R (70,894) (88,235)

Adjustment for prior periods BT EAREE 2,167 (2,043)
Total current tax expense ARERFR B R S 4B R (68,727) (90,278)
Deferred tax benefit (expense): REFIEEE(FX)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences REREBOERER (1,249) 16,827

Change in tax rate i e (94) (881)

Change in recognized temporary differences EHAYREZEZS) (3,310) (917)
Total deferred tax benefit (expense) IREF B (A ) 4858 (4,653) 15,029

Total income tax expense BRTIS TR (74,043) (77,018)

HABERERAT
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18.
(a)

Income Taxes continued

Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement continued

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended December 31,

2015 and December 31, 2014 was calculated at an effective tax rate of 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries was

charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation in the relevant countries.

(b)

applicable tax rates

Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at

18. FTi5% &
(a) REGEWZRPWEIE &
HZE2015%F12HA31H KX 2014F12 A
31 B I OB BFIE B BIRIEE Pt
PSR B FR IS B % 16.5% 51 8 o SHNKS
B AR BIEREB RN E RO TR E Y
8 o
(b) BiERZ R
BEtE

BR3 A& A 128 A

B AR

Year ended December 31,

HE12A31BILFEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UAFETZ7) 2015
Profit for the year F R 217,017 205,354
Total income tax expense BATIS TR (74,043) (77,018)
Profit before income tax B TS AT 291,060 282,372
Income tax expense using the Group s applicable tax BRAEBEANEED

rate PRSHRX (82,661) (79,064)
Tax incentives HIBES 26,374 19,292
Change in tax rates ST (94) (881)
Change in tax reserves fRIﬁfﬁﬁ """"" & 2,167 (472)
Non-deductible expenses AN (4,537) (7,793)
Change in tax effect of undistributed earnings ROMBF OB BE (1,082) 3,445
Current year losses for which no deferred tax assets are ARIERIELFIBE ERAFEEIE

recognized (4,616) (1,989)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses ERB AR ERNTIERE 47 -
Change in recognized temporary differences ERRAYREEZS) (3,357) (917)
Share-based compensation LARS 9 S A 9 3857 B (2,420) (1,596)
Withholding taxes TEHH (5,100) (6,338)
Other HAth (931) 1,338
Over (under) provided in prior periods wT HAE R s aE (BT R) 2,167 (2,043)

(74,043) (77,018)

The provision for taxation for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December

31, 2014 was calculated using the Group’s applicable tax rate of 28.4% and 28.0%,

respectively. The applicable rate was based on the Group’s weighted average

worldwide tax rate.

HZE2015%12 A31 A% 2014412 A
31 HIEFEMRIERED AR EEEA
T 28.4% [ 28.0% 51 & - EAFETHIER
NEE B NI R ERF R ME ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

e M RARMIEE
18. Income Taxes continued 18. FiiSH &
(c) Income tax (expense) benefit recognized in Other Comprehensive (c) REMEZEWRERNFEH
Income (FAX)ER
Year ended December 31, 2015 Year ended December 31, 2014
BE2015F12 AN BLLEE HE2014F 12831 ALFE
Income tax
(expense)
Income tax benefit
(Expressed in thousands of Before tax benefit Net of tax Before tax FriSH Net of tax
US Dollars) (UXFETZ2%) BRBiAT  FISBIESR BRBi% BREtar (BAX)ER Btz
Remeasurements on benefit plans &7 EIMEFTE (795) 265 (530) (28,109) 11,049 (17,060)
Cash flow hedges BemEH (2,599) 909 (1,690) 10,560 (3,572) 6,988
Foreign currency translation BINETS RO INE
differences for foreign operations [ =& (35,272) - (35,272) (35,087) - (35,087)
(38,666) 1,174 (37,492) (52,636) 7,477 (45,159)
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities d ELEHBEERER
Deferred tax assets and liabilities were attributable to the following: EMIEERIEEEREEWT :

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFET23) 2015
Deferred tax assets: RETIREE ¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts REEHHE 2,177 2,390
Inventory "E 8,790 8,397
Plant and equipment BB MR 5,488 5,231
Pension and post-retirement benefits RIRE MIRIKIE R 14,324 18,713
Share-based compensation BARS 57 37 15t 9 3857 B 1,754 1,568
Tax losses HIEEER 3,447 4,755
Reserves & 19,544 23,271
Other Eith 2,376 1,355
Set off of tax IR 35 (7,148) (7,928)
Total gross deferred tax assets BIRERI IR & B 50,752 57,752
Deferred tax liabilities: ERXBARE
Plant and equipment R I s (7,164) (9,983)
Intangible assets | EE (97,986) (99,217)
Other HAt (8,238) (6,353)
Set off of tax THIE K 5H 7,148 7,928
Total gross deferred tax liabilities BRI ITE S E (106,240) (107,625)
Net deferred tax liability SFRENIE A & (55,488) (49,873)
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18. Income Taxes continved 18. FT5H &

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued (d) EEMBEEEREE#
The movement in temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2015 HZE2015F12A31H X 2014512 8
and December 31, 2014 was: NHEFENERERETHA :
Balance, Recognized Balance,
December 31, in other December 31,
2014 Recognized comprehensive 2015
20145 in profit income 20154
12A31H or loss REAMZE Other!" 12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (X FETZ23) Fi:23 RIBIRETER W FERR Hgo -2
Allowance for doubtful accounts — RERE 2,390 (41) - (172) 2,177
Inventory T8 8,397 716 - (323) 8,790
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE A (4,752) 3,096 - (20) (1,676)
Intangible assets mEEE (99,217) 473 - 758 (97,986)
Pension and post-retirement RR& K
benefits RIKTRIER 18,713 (4,132) 265 (522) 14,324
Share-based compensation VAR S A5 3 B 1,568 212 - (26) 1,754
Tax losses TRIEEE 4,755 234 - (1,542) 3,447
Reserves 1 23,271 (2,943) - (784) 19,544
Other EAb (4,998) (2,268) 909 495 (5,862)
Net deferred tax asset (liability)  FEEFEEE(EE) (49,873) (4,653) 1,174 (2,136) (55,488)
Note ks
(1) Other comprises primarily foreign exchange rate effects. (1) EtEZaRERTE -

Balance, Recognized Balance,
December 31, in other December 31,
2013 Recognized comprehensive 2014
20135 in profit income 20145
12A31H or loss REM2E Other' 12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (X FETZ25) Fr-23 RIBEER Wz TR Heh 0 o2
Allowance for doubtful accounts ~ RER B 2,110 433 - (153) 2,390
Inventory 7E 5,592 3,046 - (241) 8,397
Property, plant and equipment L E =Y ST (5,641) 491 - 398 (4,752)
Intangible assets mEE (99,825) 4,866 - (4,258) (99,217)
Pension and post-retirement BRE Rk
benefits RIRIEAET 11,927 (3,666) 11,049 (597) 18,713
Share-based compensation VARR 199 3245 9 357 B 1,309 302 - (43) 1,568
Tax losses HIRER 3,107 2,150 - (502) 4,755
Reserves it 20,028 2,891 - 352 23,271
Other At (5,576) 4,516 (3,572) (366) (4,998)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) — JFELRIBEE(ARE) (66,969) 15,029 7,477 (5,410) (49,873)
Note B
(1) Other comprises amounts recognized in business combinations (US$4,695 thousand) and foreign (1) E#EENEHEHERN S (4,695 FF71) &
exchange rate effects. R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

18. Income Taxes continued

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued
Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

18. FiiSHi &

(d EEREEEREE &
FEREEREEE

AW TR B O RIREE YRR -

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UAFETZ7) 2015
Deductible temporary differences AT R ER 1,213 437
Tax losses i EE 48,680 20,047
Balance at end of year FRES 49,893 20,484

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax
legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items
because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

Group can utilize the benefits from them.

Available tax losses (recognized and unrecognized):

RBBITHOL - AT R ERED
HAR o ANERE M AR FIR B R IA
BE - AAREE N A BERL AR MAE R B 7
ERREZFEENER

AEBARIEEE (B R RRE

7
70N

December 31,

128311
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (AFZExZ2%Y) 2015
Europe BN 36,021 20,385
Asia ZaM - 2,314
Latin America AT M 24,337 11,753
Total et 60,358 34,452

Tax losses expire in accordance with local country tax regulations. European
losses will expire beginning in 2017. Latin American losses will expire beginning in
2019.

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, a deferred tax liability of US$24.7
million and US$21.5 million, respectively, related to investments in subsidiaries is not
recognized because the Group controls whether the liability will be incurred and it is

satisfied that it will not be incurred in the foreseeable future.
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19. Finance Income and Finance Costs

The following table presents a summary of finance income and finance costs

recognized in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

19. HBRAKSEER
AR R A 2 EBRERT RN
BN R R AR 2IIR T -

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A3BHILEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (U FET25) 2015
Recognized in income or loss: RWASEEFRER
Interest income on bank deposits AT A B A 868 478
Total finance income R N 868 478
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at BB EN S RBEN

amortized cost MEFXZ (3,160) (3,694)
Change in fair value of put options RO ERER A BEE (5,772) (4,245)
Net foreign exchange loss SN B 1R HRE (6,681) (6,716)
Other finance costs HAEI %58 A (3,066) (2,728)
Total finance costs EupE= 4 F k- (18,679) (17,383)
Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss RER PR 55 R F5E (17,811) (16,905)
Recognized in other comprehensive income (loss): REMEE Y (EEB)PRER
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign BONETSHINEEE = R

operations (35,272) (35,087)
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges ReRBEHN AR BEZD) (2,599) 10,560
Income tax on finance income and finance costs R E At 2 T i s P e SR ) B TS A

recognized in other comprehensive income K& BBMEN 909 (3,572)
Net finance costs recognized in total other FE A 2T U 5 P RERR

comprehensive income, net of tax IEERTE  RTIR (36,962) (28,099)
Attributable to: THIAL R
Equity holders of the Company RATIRIERA A (33,355) (24,214)
Non-controlling interests FEERR S (3,607) (3,885)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FRMBHRRMTE &

20. Expenses

Profit before income tax was arrived at after charging the following for the years

ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Auditors’ remuneration

Research and development

Operating lease charges in respect of properties

Restructuring charges

(K FETZ5Y)
BEEENE

BB E#H

2 GIE

LS
ERMENESEHEEN
EX Rt

20. FAX
HZE2015F 12831 B KX 2014F12 A31H
IEFE - BRAERATEAEINBRIATEE

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3NBLFE

2015
48,985 42,588
10,590 9,180
5,600 4,715
26,210 26,140
121,996 12,177

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended

December 31, 2015 provided by KPMG LLP and its foreign member firms, the external

auditors of the Group, were as follows:

BRAASEEINEZEAD KPMG LLP &
HEMLEATREZE 2015412 A31 A1k
FREARENEZLAEEREHEALT

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ27)

190

Annual audit and interim review services FEEZ L ERRS 3,565

Due diligence and other acquisition-related non-audit services"!  ZEFEE I H it ELUEE R R BV IEEAZ RIS 1,354

Permitted tax services FFAI RIS AR TS 544

Other non-audit related services H i IEEZAER RS 137

Total @5t 5,600
Note Bt

(1) Primarily comprised of fees associated with financial due diligence performed in conjunction with

the acquisition of Tumi Holdings, Inc, as announced on March 4, 2016.

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial

Instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

e credit risk;
e liquidity risk; and

e market risk.

(a) Risk Management

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the Company

establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal

control systems. The Board of Directors has delegated to the Audit Committee

the responsibility for reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal control

systems. The Company’s management, under the oversight of the Board of Directors,

is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the Company’s risk

management and internal control systems.

HABERERAT
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(b) Exposure to Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to

a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally

from the Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is limited to the

carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in the consolidated financial

statements.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on
credit risk. No single customer accounted for more than 5% of the Group's sales
for the periods presented or trade and other receivables as of the reporting dates.
Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their
credit characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial
difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’'s wholesale
customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and
monitored by the Group, and future sales are made on an approval basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

21. BIBREREER

SR TEs
(b) FEIEHEEREE
FERRAMNEMIANTERRSHF R
REEITHANETMSAEEAZYKERE
HER  FEREAEERKZFAIFIEA -
EERBRKFERRGEMISHREMEY S
REEEMREE ©

PE LT BR % K% EL At FE U 3R 18
AEENEERBKFEEEZGEEFE
RIRERERZE - Rl - BEENGERAS
EEFHNERE  BIEEFNEEBLL
BIIXRERARMENRR  AALER
=R HEERBERTE WEE—XF
(RSB 25| MRS S B iR B Hi
IR Wt BR 0 R L At B UK FRTE A 5% LA o #E st
B EMEASETEEEEFRER o

AEEBRHEEERRE © Hit - A%
B RS LT P IRUMEEN R
ERREEMERT « BRI A BEITHAN

EEREFENEERRE - TR
BEEERE#ETHE - BIEREERN - )
RZAIREHFENBELH - BUKRRRE
ftENHEERRAEENBBRES A
WHARR SRR NEFNEESWEE
REAEEEITER KRNHEETELH
R AT o

CREENEAEARACERRE
£ RIEBEH - UTHEANSEANEERR
BEEMT :

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UAFETZ2) 2015
Trade and other receivables R U BR 3k B EoAth FR U R IE 283,495 290,841
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 180,803 140,423
Total mEt 464,298 431,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial 21. MIBERAREER
Instruments continved SRMIAa
(b) Exposure to Credit Risk continued (b) FEENEERR#&
Trade and Other Receivables continued P BRI H b FE KRR IR 4
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by — R¥R&E HHf - 1= 3P [ 15 B 5 &9 i W AR 3R Y
geographic region was: BAEERBREER
December 31,
12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ3) 2015
Asia M 100,121 85,438
North America JbEM 99,024 114,000
Europe M 46,402 49,943
Latin America T =M 23,572 26,915
Total trade receivables FEY AR S ERE 269,119 276,296
(c) Exposure to Liquidity Risk (c) AENRBESRER
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the FBERRAASEEBITHESHAE
obligations associated with its financial liabilities. AR E ER 8 R R 2 AR o
The Group’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating AEBRHESHEERFEAENR

activities, invested cash, available lines of credit (note 13(b]) and, subject to HB&ELES - LWERS - JAEEZ (K
shareholder approval, its ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that  F13(b)) & E B 1T#7i% (FFAR R AL EE 5 7]
its existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, willbe ~ {EB ) HFIELNESRE - NEEE
adequate to meet the operating and capital requirements of the Group for at least the 1= - HE AR L REAESRE - N LERH

next twelve months. HBES  WRUBEAAEERRSE L+
The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative  EAKZEREARFTE -
financial assets and liabilities: MERENTECHEERAGENER

FEARSREAT

December 31, 2015
20154128 31H

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
(Expressed in thousands of amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years
US Dollars) (UFZETL25) REE AHNELSRE DPR1E 12245 2FE54 5FE
Non-derivative IENTESRBE
financial liabilities:
Trade and other FEATER SR R Ho A
payables FEIFRIA 442,141 442,141 442,141 - - -
Revolving Facility BREE 48,174 48,174 48,174 - - -
Other lines of credit HER%EE 15,921 15,921 15,921 - - -
Finance lease obligations B & & & 87 87 30 18 39 -
Minimum operating HEEEHE
lease payments I - 351,117 94,453 89,374 102,717 64,573
Foreign currency SNEIRERE A
forward contracts:
Assets BE 1,785 88,463 88,463 - - -
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial 21. MIBERAREER

Instruments continued TETHa#
(c) Exposure to Liquidity Risk continued c) AENRBESRER &

December 31, 2014
2014512 H31H

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
(Expressed in thousands of amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5years 5 years
US Dollars) (UFETZ5]) REE SORSRE DR 1E26F 2E5%5 SELLE
Non-derivative TR RRARE :
financial liabilities:
Trade and other FEAT BRI oA
payables FERIFRIA 415,445 415,445 415,445 - - -
Revolving Facility BRiEE 60,000 60,000 60,000 - - -
Other lines of credit HifzREE 7,536 7,536 7,536 - - -
Finance lease obligations B4 & FHEH#IE 32 32 14 15 3 -
Minimum operating HEEEHE
lease payments FRIB - 296,162 74,018 62,286 98,483 61,375
Foreign currency SNEBIERHAE A -
forward contracts:
Assets BE 7,311 116,132 116,132 - - -
The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with TRETHERSRELEPHNITETA
derivatives, that are cash flow hedges, are expected to occur and impact profit or loss. AR EREFERZBERNHRH -

Carrying Expected Less than More than

(Expressed in thousands of amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5years 5years

US Dollars) (UFETZ5) IREE FEHRESRE DRE 182245 28545 5FELE
December 31, 2015: 2015128318 :

Assets BE 1,785 88,463 88,463 - - -
December 31, 2014: 2014124318 -

Assets BE 7,311 116,132 116,132 - - -

(d) Exposure to Market Risk (d) FAENTISER

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange  M%ER AT HEBRNEBER - IFEAK
rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of SEHNBASEFHEFERTEAEENEE
its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is  FIERRIEER - Ti5EARERN BIRRE
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while ~ RIZHITISEMBIEENAIEX L8 2 A - [

optimizing the return. R BB -
The Group periodically buys and sells financial derivatives, such as forward REBMSREE  AEETHEER
purchase contracts for hedging purposes, in order to manage market risks. HESMITETR  fIANBEIREI /R
BEEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

Exposure to Market Risk continued
Currency Risk

(d)
(i)
The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the
Group’s subsidiaries.

The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure
to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than the
respective functional currency of the Group's subsidiaries. The forward exchange
contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.

Interest on borrowings is typically denominated in the local currency of the
borrowing. Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash
flows generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk arising from the currencies that more
significantly affect the Group’s financial performance was as follows based on notional

amounts of items with largest exposure:

21. BIREREER
ﬁnﬂlw

(d) FENTSRR &

) E%@ER

AL AR E BB A ES B ML
LASNEY & # HEEMEIERXEER

|§nu °
R

+
:i‘l:lrt—

REEE T HAE AR HSMNE & K 8 H
AAREENERREBRIEEEIINE
BEENERRENERRR - ZFEHI
ESXMEHE —RDN—F o

EFRAO R B — AR AR
" EQLA@EL\fﬁzAg
ERBRSRENERHE -

AEEERHAZARRIIERNA
EoH  HAKBEMBRRAGURERY
EMEBERIT

=
gl

sk

BE

et

an

RN EHE
fER— pLobiEl

December 31, 2015
2015128 31H

Euro Renminbi Indian Rupee

Bt N ENEEL

(Euro’000) (RMB’000) [INR’000)

(F8T) (AR#¥FT) (FHIEELE)

Cash Be 25,711 157,347 571,543
Trade and other receivables, net JEURBR TR R At PR UG AR - JFER 40,606 128,254 1,428,309
Intercompany receivables (payables) NaEER ER ) FIE (8,152) (9,216) 87,691
Trade and other payables JREASF 8% 5 Ko EL At JE A< R IE (65,253) (131,306) (856,954)
Statement of financial position exposure Bk & @R (7,088) 145,079 1,230,589

December 31, 2014
20145128318

Euro Renminbi Indian Rupee

B N ENEEELE

(Euro’000) (RMB’000] (INR°000)

(FBT) (ARMFT) (FHEEL)

Cash Be 19,663 131,318 160,895
Trade and other receivables, net FEU R R R o Ath FE LSRR - 558 40,324 99,662 1,221,652
Intercompany receivables (payables) AR FER (FER ) 38 (2,578) (8,169) 110,629
Trade and other payables JEAF BR R R ELAth A5 5018 (51,108) (113,577) (864,003)
Statement of financial position exposure B ik & A 6,301 109,234 629,173
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

Exposure to Market Risk continued
Currency Risk continued

(d)
(i)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate

BRREER
SRTHEa

AIENT SRR &
EXER &
RERNEAMEZERNT :

21.

(d)
(i

Reporting date spot rate

THER %5 B R EE R
2015 2015
Euro BT 1.1113 1.3292 1.0861 1.3746
Renminbi AR 0.1592 0.1627 0.1540 0.1652
Indian Rupee EEEL 0.0156 0.0171 0.0151 0.0162
Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis INEBRBE ST

A strengthening of the Euro by 10% against the US Dollar would have increased profit
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 by US$3.6 million
and US$4.5 million, respectively, and increased equity as of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 by US$22.0 million and US$24.6 million, respectively. The analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A
10% weakening in the Euro would have an equal, but opposite impact to profit for the
period and equity as of these reporting dates.

If the Renminbi had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would
have increased for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 by
US$2.5 million and US$2.1 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014 would have increased by US$4.8 million and US$3.8 million,
respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Renminbi would have an equal, but
opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting dates.

If the Indian Rupee had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would
have increased for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 by
US$1.6 million and US$1.4 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014 would have increased by US$4.1 million and US$3.0 million,
respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Indian Rupee would have an equal,

but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting dates.

BT R ETCHHE 10% 5 Bl LB E 2015 F
12 B31 B X% 2014412 A 31 B IEFEREF
EIN3.6EEETKLSBEET KRS
2015412 A31 B X 2014F 12 A31BH
RE=IEMN22.0 BBETR 246 AEETT © %
AT RERIAEEMAI ZER(LE R X )4
BRE o BUTHEZE 10% 15 $3% R 805 F &
Rt ERE BB EREESESEERNY
g;g o

M AR H ZETTFE10% + B Z= 2015
F12A831 8K 2014% 12 A31 B IEFENG
M RIEM25BEETR2.1BEET
K 2015412 531 A R2014F12 A318
MERSEDRIEMN48HEETRISES
ETT e ZAOMBERMAEMATZRR(LHE
RAER)VERFTE - ARBIZE10% 158 2%
HIMRRT KA ERE A A ERELES
EERRMNTZE -

HMENEEL AETHEI10% @ BE
2015412 A31 B & 2014412 A 31 HiL4
EREFEDRIEMI.6cEEETRILES
9T 0 RR 2015612 B31 B R 2014412 A
3 HOEREE D RIEML 1 BEETRI.0
BEXET #%oMBRIMEEMAZRER
(LERFIR) T8 - EELEZE10%
% B 0 B R A U 3R & B B RO M
EXEZSEARNTZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

Exposure to Market Risk continued
Interest Rate Risk

(d)
(ii)
The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on
variable rate debt instruments. Although the Group does not currently have any
interest rate hedging instruments, it may, from time to time, enter into interest rate
swap contracts to manage interest rate risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments

was:

(UFETES))

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

MREREER

SR TEa

(d) FENTIZERE &

i) FE@B

¢%@%$E@Mﬁﬁlﬁmﬁmﬂzﬁﬁ
G o B SRS 52 (W 30 8 N 4 (A ) o

IE HA B TSI RS EA L) - B

FIE @B

AEBH AR ITANFIRRKRM

21.

T

December 31,
12A31H

2015

Variable rate instruments: FETH:
Financial assets ERMEE 10,809 1,517
Financial liabilities EEAE (64,095) (67,536)
(53,286) (66,019)

The Group did not have any interest bearing financial instruments with a fixed
rate as of December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.

(iii) Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities held by the Group's
defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic
net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan assets
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s investment
strategy involves a de-risking program utilizing liability hedging assets to offset
changes in the Group’s defined benefit pension plan obligations. The Group engages

professional pension plan asset managers to assist in this process.

(iv)

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed

Other Pension and Post-retirement Obligations

to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels) exceeds the fair value of the assets of the
Group’s pension plans, which is primarily the result of the performance of equity
markets during prior years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations
could significantly impact future assets and liabilities of the Group’s pension plans

and future minimum required funding levels.

HABERERAT
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2015912 A31 B & 2014412 A 31
B ANEEYEEAIRE TR B R
TH-

(i) EmsEsEs

IR(E R R B A E A T 2 R RS
AR EREBIRN ST EBEREE ST
FAERAEEERNES - RKeE8EF
EAREENLRE MR R R NINRB RS T
EIEEREY - AEBEKIKE R BIERIE

REtE - FAAESHEEREAEEE
BENERARSHSEETOED - XEH

REEXNERRSFEEEETEABIILLE

72 o

liv) HARAKERIRREERE
fhET RS AIE (Rt E A A FEEARE

%M*¥ & B AR75 X Hr B oK T FE 45 48 1) Y
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued
(e) Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management policies is to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for shareholders, to fund
capital expenditures, normal operating expenses and working capital needs, and
to pay obligations. The primary source of cash is revenue from sales of the Group’s
products. The Group anticipates generating sufficient cash flow from operations in
the majority of countries where it operates and will have sufficient available cash
and ability to draw on credit facilities for funding to satisfy the working capital and
financing needs.
The Group’s capital needs are primarily managed through cash and cash
equivalents (note 11), trade and other receivables (note 10), inventories (note 9J,
property plant and equipment (note é), trade and other payables (note 17) and loans

and borrowings (note 13).

(f)  Fair Value Versus Carrying Amounts

All financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate carrying amounts.

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date. IFRS establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to

unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level

1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows:

e Level Tinputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Group has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its
entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts
payable, short-term debt, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because of

the short maturity or duration of these instruments.

MREREER
EMIEa
e)] EXRERE
FEEEAEERANIE B EARSER
BEEE  MRFEIREDR - BB AR
¥ —RAERY RAEEATEERMEES
REMES - BE T ERR ST EBES
e RS - AEEEBE L LEHE
MASBRARMLEELEHORSRER
S RN A BB S RA M SRS ER
ARHE RN LSBEERBEEE -
AEEMNEAEREEEARERE
SEEYFHE) - RS R AR
H(HE10) - FE(HEEY) - W% - BER
S (HIEE6) « FEA R R E A R 2T
HAT) AR SRR R (M 13) B2 -

21.

() DAEEEREENLR
FASRAERABOAR BERLREE
IR

(g) ERMIAEMNIAREE
ARBEENFTEAMS2EERBERFR
S HEEEMRR S EEE BRI NNE
& ° IFRSEY —ERARBEFHAERE - %R
B BUAGTEARBENBED AR
BEOEEER - ZERRBHETINERMS

FHEREEXRENAKABRBERS SR

(B—RAFE) WS RERTAIBES

ABENFERESER(E=RFE) - 2

REBEFREBH={ERWT

o FARBARBAAEBEERNNG
ERFENEEHRNEERRERE
BmiZamECRAR) -

o FAABARBATERESE AR
HENEERBENTEEREEREAR
B8 A B ©

s F=HABMARBAREERBEBNTH
BRE A\ SR

AR BEFEEALBESHRED
WERDBENENB AR BEAEEENS
BEANKEEREAZUE -

HRIREMREFEY - BEERK

FEARIA - R BT MEAT P B #I B =
FHEE At ZEFTANEKREESEAR
BERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued
The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by reference to

market quotations received from banks.

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price. If
a listed market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the
difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the
residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government
bonds). Call options are considered derivative financial assets and are recorded at fair

value. Fair value estimates reflect the credit risk of the Group and counterparty.

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the
present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market

rate of interest at the reporting date.

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

The Group has entered into agreements that include put and call option arrangements
to sell and to acquire non-controlling interests in certain majority-owned subsidiaries
exercisable at fair value at certain predetermined dates. Pursuant to these
agreements, the Group has call options to acquire the remaining shares owned by
the non-controlling interest holders and these non-controlling interest holders have
put options to sell their ownership in these subsidiaries to the Group. In addition,
the Group has the right to buy-out these non-controlling interests in the event of
termination of the underlying agreements. The table of contractual maturities (note
21(c)) above does not include amounts for the repurchase of non-controlling interests

as they do not include contractual maturities.

HABERERAT
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial 21. MIBERAREER
Instruments continued $ETIAa

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued lg) EMIBEMNAREBES
Redeemable Non-controlling Interests continued e SR s A

TREHHK 2015912 A31 H K% 2014
F12 A3 BB EREEU DA BEFED
EENBEBEAEUNAABEFEMNE

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (including items that are required to be measured at fair
value) as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

B):

Fair value measurements at reporting date using

REBEAMER TS ZRF RN A AEE

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, TEEHEREE HihEX EAFUBE
2015 REBRTSHRE G k3PN ¢ BWABE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UXFETZ3]) 2015%12A31H (E—#%5) (SB=#% A1) (B=45)
Assets: BE -
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe
EEY 180,803 180,803 - -
Foreign currency forward contracts GNEE SR BR A 4 1,785 1,785 - -
Total assets BEE 182,588 182,588 = -
Liabilities: BfE:
Non-controlling interest put options FEFERR I A
Rk 55,829 - - 55,829
Total liabilities waE 55,829 - - 55,829

Fair value measurements at reporting date using

RIS B REAT ISR ENAREE

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, TEEHEEE HihER BARAEHE
2014 FAERMISHRE AERHABE BABE
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ) 20145 12A31H (EBE—#51) (EE=#7l) (EB=4351)
Assets: BE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFE
ZEY 140,423 140,423 - -
Foreign currency forward contracts INE IR HRA 4 7,311 7,311 - -
Total assets mEE 147,734 147,734 - -
Liabilities: BfE:
Non-controlling interest put options FEEAR
R 58,288 - - 58,288
Total liabilities FES=NE 58,288 - - 58,288
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

21. Financial Risk Management and Financial 21. MIBERAREER
Instruments continved SRMIAa
(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued (g ERMIENAREESE
Redeemable Non-controlling Interests continued e SR s A
Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Group periodically enter into forward REEETIEBMME A RERTZ

contracts related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in USD which  E2REFZUAETHENGFEARNERS

are designated as cash flow hedges. The hedging effectiveness was tested in 4 HifEE AR S HREL P - HiREE

accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The fair ~ J5iRIZIAS B 3932 @ T A « AN ER

value of these instruments was an asset of US$1.8 million and an asset of US$7.3 Al - 201512 A 31 H & 2014412 A 31

million as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. H hEIANAABENFIREEISR
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the Level BXThEETIAERT -

3 fair value, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. TREIFEBE=RFIA R EERFK
FRBEERE  ARRANERNTAHRRE
N ¢

Inter-relationship between

Significant significant unobservable inputs
Valuation Technique unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
fhE R EDNNEF LS PN ¢ EARABRHAREEAAMEETEZENER
Put options Income approach - The - EBITDA Multiple The estimated value would increase
ROh HARE valuation model converts future - Growth rate (2015: 3%) (decrease) if:
amounts based on an EBITDA - Risk adjusted discount rate - The EBITDA multiple was higher (lower);
multiple to a single current (2015: 10.5%) - The growth rate was higher (lower]; or
discounted amount reflecting - EBITDAE - The risk adjusted discount rate was
current market expectations - HRFK (20154 : 3%) lower (higher).
about those future amounts. - EGRERMBALIRE (20154 ¢ MERUATER - (AEFSEMORD)
Yeas 7704 — fEEREER 10.5%) - EBITDAREE LA (TR
EBITDABEGGI Ea i E ¢ 58 - BEEFACTE) 3
BRRE—ENCMESE I - EARRBRAEETR(EA) -
MiSEREZERESENE
HA o
The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing TRZJNE=RFIA R BENBPILE
balance for Level 3 fair values: EREE BACRASER A B -
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UATFZETZ25)
Balance at January 1, 2014 R201451 A1 BH%EE 52,848
Change in fair value included in equity STARESEI DR BEE 1,195
Change in fair value included in finance costs FAMBERNAREEES 4,245
Balance at December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2015 R 2014912 431 B X% 20151 A1 BR & 58,288
Change in fair value included in equity AR AR EBEE (1,775)
Change in fair value included in finance costs AATBERNAREBEES 5,772
Acquisition of non-controlling interests g rsliig iy (6,456)
Balance at December 31, 2015 201512 A 31 B & 55,829
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21. Financial Risk Management and Financial
Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued
Redeemable Non-controlling Interests continued

For the fair value of put options, reasonably possible changes to one of the
significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the

following effects at December 31, 2015:

Profit or loss

B

Increase

(UFETZ25]) EH

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars/

EBITDA multiple (movement of 0.1x) EBITDAfE 2R

(22)0.11%) 1,394

Growth rate (50 basis points) ERE(50%EF) 236
Risk adjusted discount rate KRR MR X

(100 basis points) (10025F) (234)

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant
market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates
are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could

significantly affect the estimates.

22. Related Party Transactions
(a) Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to their cash compensation, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to
certain directors and other key management personnel, and contributes to a post-
employment plan on their behalf.

Key management is comprised of the Group’s directors and senior management.
Compensation paid to key management personnel during the year ended December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 comprised:

% EEEE R
$ETIAa
(g) EMIENAREEE
AR E S R £
HALHEN AR EBEMS -
—EAERT AR A BR LIRS g
B - A MEARBERTE - 52502015
F12ANBEENUTHE

21.

EHF

7=

Shareholders’ Equity

IRERRE
Decrease Increase Decrease
T# EFH
(1,394) 368 (368)
(178) - -
296 - -

D AL TR E— 2 RS
BRTSER RIS T EMERHEH - %%
I E B S R TR A E R AL E
KA+ B SRR « BRI
B HEHEHEREATE -

RE

22. BERRS
(a) HIEZEEAENXRS
BETESEREMEIEERE ABNRSZH
Sh - REETTAFEERMEIFRSEN - LR
WFRRARIETEIHK -
IZEEEREAREERRSAE
BE - #E 201512 31 H KX 2014412 4
SNALFREENEREEABNFHEE :

Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31BLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ7) 2015
Director’s fees E50e 1,290 530
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind N - ZRE R EAAE YRR 5,700 5,818
Bonus!" TEaL 3,951 4,257
Share-based compensation VARS A7) 32 A<F £ 5 B 8,599 4,845
Contributions to post-employment plans RGBT EIMER 96 93
Total compensation 2 POk 19,636 15,543
Note Bt =
(1) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group. () FEATRA e I8 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

22. Related Party Transactions continued 22. BERR S a
(b) Directors’ Remuneration (b) E=ENE

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong  iRIZE A A AEHIZ 383(1) (&R A R (H &
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about — EZEFEER)EMIE 25 - EEMESHEN

Benefits of Directors) Regulation: T

Year ended December 31, 2015
BZ2015F 123N ALEE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other Share-based to post-
benefits in compensation employment
Directors’ kind expense plans
fees  Filf - REIR Bonus"  HURHBHAH Ek#E
[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UTFETZ5) ES2He HaoBYAE AL HrRE < FHEIfBLR
Executive Directors HITEF
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,672 664 1,371 - 3,707
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 631 510 1,399 29 2,569
Tom Korbas Tom Korbas - 548 304 638 39 1,529
Non-Executive Director IHMTEE
Timothy Parker®? Timothy Parker? 625 - 729 938 - 2,292
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-Executive Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 165 - - - - 165
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 125 - - - - 125
Miguel Ko R 125 - - - - 125
Bruce Hardy McLain Bruce Hardy
McLain 125 - - - - 125
Ying Yeh o3 125 - - - - 125
Total mEt 1,290 2,851 2,207 4,346 68 10,762
Notes e
(1) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group. (1) TEALRAEBMARTRERE o
(2) Mr. Parker’'s remuneration includes the bonus paid in 2015 related to his role as CEO during 2014, (2)  Parker fE A& BIERLBR 2014 FHEEFTERAR
share-based compensation expense recognized for share options awarded during his tenure as CEQ i 2015 F TATHITEAL ~ BERIEEITEARE
and US$125 thousand of Director’s fees paid in 2015 related to his role as Chairman from the fourth 28 152 0 i P e i 2 ) LA R 19 24T 19 367 B 5 2 DA
quarter of 2014. R 2014 FE N REFEEE TN 20155F

FRESE 125,000 7T ©
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22. Related Party Transactions continved 22. BERR S a
(b) Directors’ Remuneration continued (b) E=Me &

Year ended December 31, 2014
BZE2014F12831HIEEE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other Share-based to post-
benefits in compensation employment
Directors’ kind expense plans
fees  EMf - EBR Bonus'"  MABHRAH BN
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars/ (UFETZ25) E30e HtEYRR A 0[5 sHEIR
Executive Directors HITEF
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,254 388 596 - 2,238
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 524 343 551 28 1,446
Tom Korbas Tom Korbas - 505 336 533 36 1,410
Non-Executive Director FHTEF
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 786 1,018 1,693 - 3,497
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-Executive Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 130 - - - - 130
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 100 - - - - 100
Miguel Ko R 100 - - - - 100
Bruce Hardy McLain Bruce Hardy
McLain 100 - - - - 100
Ying Yeh g 100 - - - - 100
Total mEt 530 3,069 2,085 3,373 b4 9,121
Note k=3
(1) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group. (1) TEARAEBEHRFRESE -
No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join HZE2015F 12 A31H R 2014512 A

or upon joining the Group during the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31 BIEFE » BIEE S 5 A5 B (m] B

31, 2014. No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the periods — ©{EAMASINALREE B HEEE) - N2

presented. No director received any compensation during the years ended December  Hif#l * #iEE=FM R EHEEMEHE

31, 2015 or December 31, 2014 for the loss of office as a director of the Company or of ~ #(Z 2015412 431 H & 2014412 531 H

any other office in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group. IHFE - BEEEHMERR R ESTRHK
AR L b B3 55 [ B 32 B 75 8 B MO B A U R
Ef#1E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

22. Related Party Transactions continued

(c) Individuals with the Highest Emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include three directors during the year
ended December 31, 2015 and four directors during the year ended December 31,
2014, whose emoluments are disclosed above. Details of remuneration paid to the

remaining highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

22. BEFRS &

) EEFAL
HZE2015F12A31BLEEFE - A5ERF
BRoATBE=2EF(BE2014F12A
MNBILFE : MEESE)  HENHSER
EXHE - BEXNTFAREESRESTAL
B eFIFINT

Year ended December 31,
BZ12831BLEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ7) 2015
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind N - ZRL R EAME YRS 1,113 567
Bonus!" AT 966 348
Share-based compensation expense VARS A7) S A<F £ 357 BM B 52 1,902 583
Contributions to post-employment plans RNEETEIGER = -
3,981 1,498
Note BieE
] Boisleleecne e R Ems. () AR ER B -

The emoluments of each individual for 2015 and 2014 fall within these ranges:

BEANLTR2015F K 2014 FH &
BLAT#E :

2015 2014

204

HK$11,500,000-HK$11,999,999
(US$1,483,500-US$1,548,000):

HK$15,000,000-HK$15,499,999
(US$1,935,000-US$1,999,500):

HK$15,500,000-HK$15,999,999
(US$1,999,501-US$2,064,000):

11,500,000 7T -11,999,999 % 7T
(1,483,5003 71,548,000 7T) :

15,000,000 7T 15,499,999 7T
(1,935,00037£-1,999,500%7T)

15,500,0007%7C-15,999,999 % 7T
(1,999,501375-2,064,0003%7T)

No amounts have been paid to these individuals as compensation for loss of
office or as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group during the years ended
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

(d)

I Certain subsidiaries of the Group purchase raw materials and finished goods

Other Related Party Transactions

from, and Samsonite South Asia Private Limited sells certain raw materials
and components to, Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd, which is managed and
controlled by the family of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group (“Mr. Tainwala”). Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd also
manufactures hard-side luggage products on behalf of Samsonite South Asia

Private Limited.

HABERERAT

Samsonite International S.A.

1 -

HZE2015912 831 H & 20145128
3NBLIEEE - BES%EATTAREAE
A ERER AR (E S B A DN A AN A AR £ B14 7Y 48
Ej] °

(d) EHtEERIRS

. AEENETHEARERAbishr
Packaging Pvt. Ltd( A A& E# 1T
EERTHRAH Ramesh Tainwala
S ([Tainwalae &£ ) RIEE
B PR R R R R
i Samsonite South Asia Private
Limited BlI[A Abhishri Packaging Pvt.
Ltd 1 & & T RE# R o Abhishri
Packaging Pvt. Ltd 7F & Samsonite
South Asia Private Limited 2&fEE
TR ©



22. Related Party Transactions continued
(d)

Other Related Party Transactions continued

Related amounts of purchases, sales, payables and receivables were the

following:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

22.
(d)

BRELSRS &
HMBERR 5 &

PR - S TR R
MEBeEnT

Year ended December 31,
HBZ12A31BLEE

Purchases

Sales

(UAFETZ7) 2015
£ 5,560 3,631
HE 224 266

Year ended December 31,

HZ12B31HILEE

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Payables

Receivables

(XFETZ25)) 2015
e FIE 735 487
FEU R IE 39 71

Il The Group’s Indian subsidiary, Samsonite South Asia Private Limited, sells Il
finished goods to Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited. Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited is managed and controlled by the family of Mr. Tainwala. Mr. Tainwala
and his family also own non-controlling interests in Samsonite South Asia

Private Limited and in the Group’s United Arab Emirates subsidiary, Samsonite

Middle East FZCO.

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

RNEEKENEH B QR Samsonite
South Asia Private Limited [A
Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited
E 2L G © Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited i Tainwala 5t 4 M) R & & 12
KAZES) o Tainwala 584 R ERE IR
#/5 Samsonite South Asia Private
Limited R AR BB U4 (B & 25 &
% [ff /& /2 ] Samsonite Middle East
FZCORyFRIR AR SS -

Year ended December 31,

BZE12ANBLEE

Sales

Rent

(UFET25)) 2015
HE 10,606 11,415
e 69 77

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Year ended December 31,

HEZ12A31BILFE

(UAFETZ7) 2015

Receivables

FENFRIA 8,919 8,573

Approximately US$0.6 million and US$0.9 million was paid to entities owned by
Mr. Tainwala and his family, for office space rent for the years ended December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. As of December 31, 2015 and December

31, 2014, no amounts were payable to or receivable from Mr. Tainwala and his family.

#HZE2015412 A31 AKX 2014512 A
MNBILFE  BEAREZMA#N0.6BEETR
0.9 &3 T T Tainwala e A& M E R ik
ENER  UERDENES - 1R 20154
128318 K20145F12 5318 » fHEES
s UER Tainwala F5 4 K EL R FRRF0E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

22. Related Party Transactions continued
(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued

All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced at an arm’s length
basis and are to be settled in cash within six months of the reporting date. None of the

balances are secured.

23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities

(a) Company-alone Statement of Financial Position

The company-alone statement of financial position as of December 31, 2015 and

December 31, 2014 follows:

22. BERRS &
(d HEMBEELIRS &

AR e A R RS
B BYRATRELERNRE - BBRERE
A ABARNE S XN - FiaSBEE
A o

23. BRARMBERREEE
RO FHER

(a) AQTEFBAR T

AAEIR2015F 12 A31 B 2014F 12 4

31 BOEBAR RSN T

December 31,

128311
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETL25) 2015
Non-Current Assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries B A F IR E 866,682 866,682
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 866,682 866,682
Current Assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables due from subsidiaries JRE W BT/ 7 ) 1 R K L A R W R 23,443 17,127
Prepaid expenses and other assets BN A REMEE 42 Lb
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 2,106 2,980
Total current assets MENEELRTE 25,591 20,151
Total assets BEERE 892,273 886,833
Equity and Liabilities EERAE
Equity: R
Share capital [ 14,098 14,080
Reserves &1 871,195 867,602
Total equity attributable to equity holders IR B AFEIh SRR 885,293 881,682
Total equity Ly L 885,293 881,682
Non-Current Liabilities kRBEE
Total non-current liabilities MBI A ERER - -
Current Liabilities REEE
Loans and borrowings BERRER (1,401) (2,420)
Trade and other payables due to subsidiaries JEAT BB 2 B A BR 3R N HL M FE 5 SRR 6,581 6,675
Trade and other payables JFEATBR 3K R b FE S 5178 1,800 896
Total current liabilities mE A ERE 6,980 5,151
Total liabilities &R 6,980 5,151
Total equity and liabilities e BERE 892,273 886,833
Net current liabilities mEBEFE 18,611 15,000
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERLBDAE 885,293 881,682
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23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(b) Share Capital and Reserves

(i)  Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company had 99,870,203,474
and 99,872,010,543, respectively, shares authorized but unissued and 1,409,833,525
and 1,408,026,456, respectively, ordinary shares with par value of US$0.01 per share
issued and outstanding.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at shareholder
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares in issue rank equally and in full for all
dividends or other distributions declared, made or paid on the shares in respect of a
record date.

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the
Company issued 1,807,069 and 889,452 ordinary shares, respectively, in connection
with the exercise of share options that were granted under the Company’s Share
Award Scheme.

(ii)

There are no treasury shares held by the Group.

Treasury Shares

(iii)

Details of the equity components of Samsonite International S.A. Company-alone

Equity of the Company

statement of financial position as included in the consolidated financial statements as
of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are set out below.

23. BREMBEERREEE
EHNFAER

(b) BRAK: ikt

iy EER

2015412 318 K% 20144 12 A 31
B ARQEISDBIHESE99,870,203,474 B &
99,872,010,543 BUETE B AR ZITAR D LA K
1,409,833,525 % }2.1,408,026,456 i & IR FI (&
0.01 ETH B AT REATIEIN AR ©

LRRTAE ABERARABHRER
e FRERIRT 8 - AR ETEBERY
HAERSHA - AT R EZ AR ARG
FTEIR - YRR AT B R S s H AL DR ©

HZE2015F12 431 HK&2014F 12
AN BIEFE - AAFFARD AR ZE
STEIE TR B R EAREETFE M DRI 1T
1,807,069 % K 889,452 I & 3@ A% o

lil EEFERG
AR ER B R AT A D o

li)  ADFHER
MEREBRERARINAR B & MBHRRE
720154812 431 H & 2014512 531 BEt A
R MTERR MR RAR R DR FEMT -

Reserves
fi#tE

Retained

earnings

Additional (accumulated
paid-in Other deficit) Total
Share capital capital reserves REBEA equity
[Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFZET25)) BRA  REINEHBRA Hitf# B (B5HE4) R EE
As of January 1, 2014 R2014F 1818 14,071 962,192 7,036 (103,158) 880,141
Distributions to equity holders mIR S A AMEL B DK - - - (80,000 (80,000
Dividends received from subsidiaries A& A & WAV AR B - - - 80,000 80,000
Loss attributable to equity holders AR AELEE - - - (11,094) (11,094)
Exercise of share options 1T iEAR R 9 2,800 (818) - 1,991
Share-based compensation PARR 1 32 15 9 5 B - - 11,041 - 11,041
Other Hith - - - (397) (397)

As of December 31, 2014 and M2014F12A31B &
January 1, 2015 20151811 14,080 964,992 17,259 (114,649) 881,682
Distributions to equity holders MR A AEL R DR - - - (88,000) (88,000)
Dividends received from subsidiaries BLNEPNGIE:EE: ]3] - - - 88,000 88,000
Loss attributable to equity holders MiEss A AR EE - - - (16,047) (16,047)
Exercise of share options TR 2 18 6,229 (1,804) = 4,443
Share-based compensation LARS A S 1 e S B - - 15,215 - 15,215
As of December 31, 2015 R2015%12831H 14,098 971,221 30,670 (130,696) 885,293
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208 Samsonite International S.A.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

(b) Share Capital and Reserves continued
(iii) Equity of the Company continued

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of Samsonite
International S.A. for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
included a loss of US$16.0 million and US$11.1 million, respectively, which are dealt
with in the financial statements of the Group.

As of December 31, 2015, distributable reserves amounted to approximately
US$2.1 billion as shown in the statutory financial statements of Samsonite
International S.A. and calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Incorporation.

(iv)] Other Reserves

Other reserves comprises amounts related to defined benefit pension plans, the
cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related
to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred and the share option reserve for

share-based payments made by the Company.

(c) Non-controlling Interests and Acquisition of Non-controlling

Interests
The Group currently operates in certain markets by means of majority-owned
subsidiaries that are operated in conjunction with a non-controlling partner in each
country. Under these arrangements, the Group contributes brands through trademark
licensing agreements and international marketing expertise and the partner
contributes local market expertise. All interests acquired were paid in full at the time
of the acquisition and each of these subsidiaries is operated on a self-financing basis.
There are no current or future requirements for the Group to contribute any further
investment amount to any of these entities.

The agreements governing certain majority-owned subsidiaries include put
and call options whereby the Group may be required to acquire the respective non-
controlling interest at amounts intended to represent current fair value. As of
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the financial liabilities recognized related
to these put options were US$55.8 million and US$58.3 million, respectively.

The call options were deemed to have a fair value of nil as of each reporting date

as the agreements call for redemption at fair value upon the option being exercised.

HABERERAT

23. BRRHMKERREEE

BHFAER
(b) MRARGHE &

lii) AQTES &

BB BRARBE 201594124
31H X% 2014 %12 A31 H IEFERRERE
ARG E B HBEERAE B BHREA
EN160ESETR I NVEEETESE -

R2015F 12 A318 @ A5 IREHE
HWR2EET - WHFBEBERRAEE
ISR ER TS RIBIE AR B GER AL E 2
MR ETES -

liv) Eftf#E

Hit R ERENRA S EREN
R~ EEARBEENETRZABORER
EMHTANAABEEZPHRDFERAR
AIEH AR (D A RO BB AR i i -

(c) SEEREBRZRWEIFERER

RNEEBRRE THEHNEETFERMEIEE
IeE B ARE B ERIEE NS AEBD R
BB A EI#ETT - BIBEZERH - ANEEE
BRI AR ERE A MRS RIREBETISE
R MeEBARBEMTHER - WENHD
HiEm DR R BN M & EHE
REIAAEEESHAEE - AEE BRI
B#&GEF AT AZSEET AT E MR
BRIE o

REETHARNS D ERKTEAR
Bk B 15 R R I - Bt - A E
AR B ERIME RI A BEN S BEIE
B ERIEERAER - R2015F 12 A31A K
20144F12 A31 0 - BEREZERERE
BRAMNSRMAREDRIAS5.8EEXITR58.3
B&EXET o

BN ZE R E RN HA TR A
AREEER - RGNS RS B BN
RABEWRAE -

N



23. Parent Company Financial Information and 23. BARIMKERREEE
Particulars of Group Entities continved RFAER o
(c) Non-controlling Interests and Acquisition of Non-controlling (c) JEIERRMERS K UNEE JEIRIRMERS &
Interests continued
R20154 6 A26 B + NARIZEHIE
ANRIAR£15.7 8 8T S AR HTH S
R 40% FEFERR MRS - W 20154F 7 A%
R EEE S EHM0.3 B BETHNRRHA
o EHEARER 0% E100% © AULEE
BEY - KZEETR B A RFEERS MW
FOWEREEMBEASIBEET - AEEBEERIE
ERRERR D 2.1 B 8T RIRE ABFR D
6.2BBXETT °

On June 26, 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the 40%
non-controlling interest in its Russian subsidiary for US$15.7 million in cash, with a
final working capital adjustment of US$0.3 million settled in July 2015, increasing its
ownership from 60% to 100%. The carrying amount of the Russian subsidiary’s net
assets in the consolidated financial statements on the date of acquisition was US$5.1
million. The Group recognized a decrease in the non-controlling interest of US$2.1
million and a decrease in retained earnings of US$6.2 million.

The following tables summarize the information relating to the Group’s

significant subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”), before

any intra-group eliminations.

For the year ended December 31, 2015:

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

(UFETZ25])

Samsonite
Australia Pty

TRBMEARNEEEZWEA RN
R ER B A SH AT A BRI AR i = ([ 3F
PR | BV ERS -
HZE2015F 12 A31BIEFE ¢
Samsonite

South Asia
Private Limited

Samsonite

Limited Chile S.A.

NCI percentage IEERER B DL 30% 15% 40%
Non-current assets EmBEE 2,927 32,182 9,744
Current assets MENEE 24,431 28,159 93,875
Non-current liabilities EmsaE - (18,570) 2,458
Current liabilities TENEE 11,673 19,428 60,127
Net assets FEE 15,685 59,483 41,034
Carrying amount of NCI FEIZERR R R MO BRE(E 4,706 8,922 16,414
Net outside revenue Eapl Vi EnyE:s-tl 56,203 57,867 135,066
Profit il 6,322 7,619 16,122
ocl Hih 2 E M= (1,503) (9,400) (1,903)
Total comprehensive income >EERRE 4,819 (1,981) 14,219
Profit allocated to NCI DBECE IR AR A 1,896 1,113 6,449
0OCl allocated to NCI DECEIEERES A H M 2 e (451) (1,410) (761)
Dividends paid to NCI BTSRRI R R AR 2 441 183 1,472
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRRSEBYRIEMORL)

cash equivalents FEE (1,058) 804 6,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FRMBHRRMTE &

23. Parent Company Financial Information and

Particulars of Group Entities continued
(c) Non-controlling Interests and Acquisition of Non-controlling (c)

Interests continued

For the year ended December 31, 2014:

23. BARMBERKERE

BHNFHAER o
FER IR R IR R

HE2014F12A31HIEFE -

Samsonite Samsonite
Australia Pty Samsonite South Asia
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UFETL25) Limited ChileS.A.  Private Limited
NCI percentage FEEER A DL 30% 15% 40%
Non-current assets ERBEE 948 36,444 11,533
Current assets MBEE 20,506 29,333 79,921
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE - (18,570) 2,161
Current liabilities mBAE 9,117 21,665 58,798
Net assets FEE 12,337 62,682 30,495
Carrying amount of NCI IR R M BRI (B 3,701 9,402 12,198
Net outside revenue Eapl Vi EnyEsc 48,613 58,898 126,653
Profit i ) 5,551 9,074 13,959
OCl HEth 2 mEikes (1,095) (10,098) (886)
Total comprehensive income 2HEN 4R 4,456 (1,024) 13,073
Profit allocated to NCI DR IR A5 T 1,665 1,361 5,584
OCl allocated to NCI DEEIHE RS RO A 2 E e (329) (1,515) (354)
Dividends paid to NCI B IR AR B 821 3,457 1,505
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRRSFEWNEMORD)
cash equivalents FRE 3,013 (1,167) 1,066

Samsonite International S.A. HFEEEEAR AT



23. Parent Company Financial Information and 23. BARAMBEERREEE

Particulars of Group Entities continued RFAER o
(d) Particulars of Group Entities d) SEERNFAER
Ownership %
HEERE%
Entity name
HEAE Country 2015
Samsonite International S.A. Luxembourg ERE Parent Parent
MABERAERAR] [SYNC] [SYNC]
Astrum R.E. LLC United States e 100 100
Bypersonal S.A. de C.V. Mexico = 100 100
Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
Delilah US Investments S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
Direct Marketing Ventures, LLC United States =35 100 100
Equipaje en Movimiento, S.A. de C.V. Mexico =t 100 100
Global Licensing Company, LLC United States EE 100 100
HL Operating, LLC United States ESE 100 100
Jody Apparel I, LLC United States = 100 100
Lonberg Express S.A. Uruguay ShiE 100 100
Limited Liability Company “Samsonite” Russia {37 Hir 100 60
Lipault UK Limited United Kingdom R 100 100
McGregor II, LLC United States EE 100 100
PT Samsonite Indonesia Indonesia EIfE 60 60
PTL Acquisition Inc. United States EH 100 -
PTL Holdings Inc. United States EH 100 -
Samsonite (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia BoRATR 100 100
Samsonite (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand Z=E 60 60
Samsonite A/S Denmark 7z 100 100
Samsonite AB Sweden Ti 82 100 100
Samsonite AG Switzerland I 99 99
Samsonite Argentina S.A. Argentina B AR 3L 95 95
Samsonite Asia Limited Hong Kong BB 100 100
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited Australia M 70 70
Samsonite Belgium Holdings BVBA Belgium [illiss 100 100
Samsonite Brasil Ltda. Brazil (i) 100 100
Samsonite B.V. Netherlands Gl 100 100
Samsonite Canada Inc. Canada me 100 100
Samsonite CES Holding B.V. Netherlands far 100 60
Samsonite Chile S.A. Chile B 85 85
Samsonite China Holdings Limited Hong Kong aBE 100 100
Samsonite (China) Co., Ltd. China A= 100 100
Samsonite Colombia S.A.S. Colombia LI 100 100
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC United States = 100 100
Samsonite Espana S.A. Spain Gisplin 100 100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

23. Parent Company Financial Information and 23. BARAMBEERREEE

Particulars of Group Entities continved BNFHER o
(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued d SEERNFAER &

Ownership %

BEE%
2015
Samsonite Europe NV Belgium ]SS 100 100
Samsonite Finanziaria S.r.L. Italy BARH 100 100
Samsonite Finland Oy Finland Y | 100 100
Samsonite Ges.m.b.H. Austria B4 A 100 100
Samsonite GmbH Germany = 100 100
Samsonite Hungaria Borond KFT Hungary 9 77 A 100 100
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
Samsonite Japan Co. Ltd. Japan SFN 100 100
Samsonite Korea Limited Korea, Republic of REERE 100 100
Samsonite Latinoamerica, S.A. de C.V.  Mexico =P &f 100 100
Samsonite Limited United Kingdom R 100 100
Samsonite LLC United States EH 100 100
Samsonite Macau Limitada Macau R 100 100
Samsonite Mauritius Limited Mauritius FEEKAT 100 100
Samsonite Mercosur Limited Bahamas Breis 100 100
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico == PY&f 100 100
Samsonite Middle East FZCO United Arab Emirates Bz A& 2 R 60 60
Samsonite Norway AS Norway Bk 100 100
Samsonite Pacific LLC United States EH 100 100
Samsonite Panama S.A. Panama BefE 100 100
Samsonite Peru S.A.C. Peru WE 100 100
Samsonite Philippines Inc. Philippines JERE 60 60
Samsonite S.A.S. France VB 100 100
Samsonite S.p.A. Italy BARH 100 100
Samsonite Seyahat Uriinleri Sanayive  Turkey TEH 60 60
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi
Samsonite Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore EoimIE 100 100
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited  India ENfE 60 60
Samsonite Southern Africa Ltd. South Africa EZES 60 60
Samsonite Sp.z0.0 Poland it 100 100
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg ERE 100 100
SC Chile Uno S.A. Chile 2H 100 100
SC Inversiones Chile Ltda Chile =l 100 100
Speck Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China A= 100 100
Speculative Product Design, LLC United States =35 100 100

Samsonite International S.A. HFEEEEAR AT



23. Parent Company Financial Information and 23. BARAMBEERREEE

Particulars of Group Entities continued RFAER o
(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued d SEERNFAER &
The particulars of the investment in subsidiaries held directly by Samsonite M 2015412 A 31 B & 2014512 A 31

International S.A. as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are set out below. ARNEEREERAREEFENIEAR
AR E FEBESIAT -

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars] (UFETZ%) 2015124318 2014F12A31H
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR ¢ KA 866,682 866,682
Trade and others payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and FE (<} H B 2 ] B FE 1<F BEE 2k % b <
have no fixed terms of repayment. HoIg A mIK i . 8 R E R R o
The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or TEDEREMLS  SESAEN
liabilities of the Group are set out below. WB A TR S EE T -
Date of Principal
Entity Name Country Incorporation Share Capital Activities
HigeH EiE AR B B FEXH
Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 2009 USD21,804,401 Holding ok
ERE 21,804,401 37T R
Delilah US Investments S.a.r.L. Luxembourg 2009 uUsD78,160,399 Holding *x
ERE 78,160,399 7T R
Samsonite LLC United States 1987 USD nil Holding ok
%[ 07T PR
Samsonite Asia Limited Hong Kong 1996 HKD20 Distribution ok
o 20787 3
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited Australia 1984 AUD20 Distribution K
SR 20087T 3
Samsonite Belgium Holdings BVBA Luxembourg 2014 USD4,881,476,000 Holding ox
ERE 4,881,476,0005 7T R
Samsonite Chile S.A. Chile 2007 CLP23,928,441,630 Distribution x
=Xl 23,928,441,630 B FILLER 784
Samsonite (China) Co., Ltd. China 2006 RMB25,651,990 Distribution xR
H AR 25,651,990 7T 73 8H
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC United States 1985 USD nil Distribution x
e ES 18
Samsonite Espana S.A. Spain 1952 EUR3,122,195 Distribution o
ity 3,122,195t 7§
Samsonite Europe NV Belgium 1966 EUR13,085,106 Production/ ok
B NlESs 13,085,106 BT Distribution
HE/DHE
Samsonite GmbH Germany 1966 EUR25,565 Distribution *x
= 25,565 7T D
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg 2009 USD114,115,900 Holding/Licensing **
ERE 114,115,900 37T YENR / PREEFT AL 8
Samsonite Japan Co. Ltd. Japan 2004 JPY850,000,000 Distribution x
B 850,000,000 H 73 8H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A MISIRERMEE &

23. Parent Company Financial Information and
Particulars of Group Entities continued

23. BATRBENREEE
SRR o

(d) Particulars of Group Entities continued (d) SEEBENFHEER &
Date of Principal
Entity Name Country Incorporation Share Capital Activities
BREE B=x SEf AL B 2R BRA FEERK
Samsonite Korea Limited Korea, Republic of 1997 KRW1,060,000,000 Distribution oH
RNEERE 1,060,000,000 52 PaN iz
Samsonite Limited United Kingdom 1986 GPB20,000 Distribution o
HEE 20,000 4% 73 8H
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico 1986 MXN520,926,854 Production/ ok
ePithey 520,926,854 ZFA=FLLZR  Distribution
HE/ D
Samsonite S.A.S. France 1965 EURT1,643,840 Distribution *x
EE 1,643,840 BXTT PaNc]
Samsonite S.p.A. Italy 1980 EUR780,000 Distribution *x
=Vl 780,000 87T PaN iz
Samsonite South Asia Private India 1995 INR354,912,330 Production/ *
Limited EE 354,912,330 E)ZELL  Distribution
HE/DH
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.L. Luxembourg 2011 USD55,417,991 Holding *
EARE 55,417,991 37T R
Notes B 3
& Directly held by the Company. S AARAEERA °
s Indirectly held by the Company. A AARARIFEBERSE ©

A limited liability company and wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

24. Subsequent Events
The Group has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2015, the
reporting date, through March 16, 2016, the date this financial information was
authorized for issue by the Board.

From December 31, 2015 to February 29, 2016, the Company issued 10,028
ordinary shares in connection with the exercise of share options that were granted
under the Company’s Share Award Scheme. There were no purchases or redemptions
of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries since
December 31, 2015.

On March 3, 2016, the Company’s shareholders approved the resolution
proposed to (i] reduce the Company’'s authorized share capital from
US$1,012,800,369.99, representing 101,280,036,999 shares (including the subscribed
share capital) to US$35,000,000, representing 3,500,000,000 shares (including the
subscribed share capital) with a par value of US$0.01 each and (i) renew, for a period
of five years from the date of the publication of the amendment of the authorized
share capital, the authorization of the Board to issue shares, to grant options to
subscribe for shares and to issue any other securities or instruments convertible into
shares, subject to the restrictions set out in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation,

the Luxembourg companies law and the Listing Rules.

HABERERAT

Samsonite International S.A.

KBRS MEREEARRINTBEDRE

24. HiBE1E
AEBEFER2015F12 831 B (&R
H)EZE2016F3 16 B (AP AR EEE
SREETHE) RS -

2015412 A31 BE 201642 A 29
B« AARIBLARA AR SR+ 218 N
BB AR AT TR M 31T 10,028 IR TR - B
20154F 12 A 31 HEASK » N2 &) sk E AE (AT B
BAREEERBEREARR EHES

R201653A38  AAAKRE
#fE — 18R CHRREREZ) S
ANDFEREEO0.01 =T HEERAH
1,012,800,369.99 % 7t.(14 101,280,036,999 %
f&fn - E¥EE RIBARAS) HIR = 35,000,000
%7t (153,500,000,000 B 1D - BIEDRE
BRAR(NEBESFSRTRONBEEZR
AHERTAERAZ B AFHR « UEH
TR AR O B AR LA T BE 1T AT SRR R AR A Y
R E B HRER - EEEFARRER
SRR - ERERAVERCEWRAD T
BERR A AMEE -
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24. Subsequent Events continued

On March 3, 2016, the Company and PTL Acquisition Inc. (“Merger Sub”) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)] entered into an Agreement and
Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Tumi Holdings, Inc. (“Tumi”), pursuant
to which the Company agreed to acquire Tumi for cash consideration of US$26.75
per share, subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Merger Agreement. The
acquisition is proposed to be effected by way of a merger of Merger Sub with and into
Tumi, with Tumi surviving the merger as an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Tumi is a leading global premium lifestyle brand offering a comprehensive
line of business bags, travel luggage and accessories. The Tumi brand is sold in
approximately 2,000 points of distribution in over 75 countries.

Closing of the merger is conditional on the satisfaction (or, to the extent not
prohibited by applicable law, waiver) of certain conditions, which include, among other
things, the adoption of the Merger Agreement by the stockholders of Tumi, approval of
the merger by the shareholders of the Company and the receipt of certain regulatory
approvals. The Merger Agreement may be terminated in certain circumstances,
including if the requisite approval by the stockholders of Tumi or the shareholders
of the Company has not been obtained or if there has been a material breach of
the covenants or agreements set out in the Merger Agreement by the Company
or by Tumi. The Merger Agreement provides that, upon termination of the Merger
Agreement upon certain specified conditions, the Company or Tumi will be required
to pay the other party a termination fee as set forth and described in the Merger
Agreement. Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, either party may terminate
the Merger Agreement if the merger is not consummated by 5:00 p.m. (New York City
time) on December 31, 2016, subject to extension until March 3, 2017 for the purpose
of obtaining regulatory clearances.

The aggregate cash consideration payable by the Company under the terms of
the Merger Agreement is expected to be approximately US$1,824 million. The total
consideration will be funded by a new committed debt financing that will comprise
US$500 million in a revolving facility and up to US$1,925 million in new term loan
facilities, as well as the Group’s own cash resources.

Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions of the merger, it is

currently expected that closing will occur in the second half of 2016.

24, BREHE

M2016F3A3H + ARAIRPTL
Acquisition([& 0B RR ] - AAEIW
M2 &EKEB/AR)E Tumi Holdings, Inc.
(TTumil) 2T & Of ek Rat &l ([ & OF
#1) BUARRIRENRESRESREK
19 26.75 E TCUREE Tumi » A GH a8 A5
BRRAKIEFTRIR o WEBHEAS BT A 7
BEBTumi&HIEBFATumi AFREE @ M
Tumi RN & H KRB BIERRRRINEEEE
A E BT A -

Tumi & — {2 BReE 55 00 A B 1l 400
mig - HEENEMSEERBHE - REET
FHEREHESE o Tumi mIEERB 75 AER
#72,000 185 $HERSHE o

AEHFHAREE TR (KEEA
EENTRIENESEENR - BE#R) - FEE
T 25 RMeEREMETINEGMHE
ETumiRRER - 5 EHEERRFRR
BERES TEEMBIE - SO0HHEFE
HTERTTALL - BIEREUSHIE Tumi
ARER B AR A BRI R (EH A9 BEAE - SR A RIS
Tumi & PHRE R SN Rm Sk iHhEEER
EBR - 0HHERE - REHERLER -
EETHREBRAT ARR R TumiBH [
A& GRS AT E RIS
R o RETHIIMER KB EIFTAR - HE O
FEIEAREEN2016F 12 A31 B NF 5B IERT
(AR )R E - BIMEfI— Al gB 4R IE& OF
i - ERBUSEERBILE B AT R
TNER20179F3A3A -

RRARRBEHHRERANHR S
REBBEEHAN1.82L0BEFET - BRE
BB —BHNEAREERE (HEEIES
BETHEREERBN&ZES19.25 X
HETE SR ENER) RASEEEREER
BT o

& O EEMN IR EK BRI
PRT - #ZIBR S B RITEERE RN 2016 F ¥4
SERK °
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Financial Summary
BIHE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity and non- ZA&£EBAEAEFBRFENLGEEERE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is as follows: E - BE  RARIEZEREROBES
T

December 31,

12A31H
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) (UAFETZ2]) 2013
Net sales HEFE 2,432,477 2,350,707 2,037,812 1,771,726 1,565,147
Gross profit =7 1,278,964 1,243,826 1,088,337 951,005 856,948
Gross profit margin EN= 52.6% 52.9% 53.4% 53.7% 54.8%
Operating profit g m A 308,871 299,277 281,292 241,742 209,930
Profit for the year attributable to: TFATREMS
FREF -
Equity holders ferERA A 197,639 186,256 176,087 148,439 86,748
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A 19,378 19,098 21,334 18,188 16,870
Total assets BERTE 2,215,841 2,131,294 1,934,891 1,813,164 1,544,546
Total liabilities BfEeE 816,455 823,854 704,309 727,059 599,346
Equity attributable to equity holders PHEREE A
JE(E R 1,359,554 1,269,688 1,192,756 1,051,593 918,131
Non-controlling interests FEIER MRS 39,832 37,752 37,826 34,512 27,069

216 Samsonite International S.A. FTHEEEREERAR]
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